
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Council 
 

20 March 2012 
 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Part 9.1 of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, i.e. where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 
version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, but please give 
as much notice as possible before the meeting. 



 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 

 
 
 
 
To: Members of the County Council 

 

Notice of a Meeting of the County Council 
 

Tuesday, 20 March 2012 at 10.00 am 
 

County Hall, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2012 (CC1) and to 
receive information arising from them. 

  
 
 

 

 
Joanna Simons  
Chief Executive March 2012 
  
Contact Officer: Deborah Miller 

Tel: (01865) 815384; E-Mail:deborah.miller@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

In order to comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, notice is given that Item 3 will be 
recorded.  The purpose of recording proceedings is to provide an aide-memoire to assist 
the clerk of the meeting in the drafting of minutes. 
Members are asked to sign the attendance book which will be available in the 
corridor outside the Council Chamber.  A list of members present at the meeting 
will be compiled from this book. 
 
The civic party will process into the Council Chamber at 9.58 am. 
 



- 2 - 
 

 

2. Apologies for Absence  
 

3. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note  
 

 Members are reminded that they must declare their interests orally at the meeting 
and specify (a) the nature of the interest and (b) which items on the agenda are the 
relevant items. This applies also to items where members have interests by virtue of 
their membership of a district council in Oxfordshire.  

 

4. Appointments  
 

 To make any changes to the membership of the Cabinet, scrutiny and other 
committees on the nomination of political groups.  

 

5. Petitions and Public Address  
 

6. Oxfordshire County Council Corporate Plan 2012/13 - 2016/17 
(Pages 7 - 38) 
 

 The Council's Medium Term Corporate Plan 2012/2013-2016/17 (CC6) sets out the 
challenges facing the County Council , the rationale for our objectives, and identifies 
the priority and activities on which we will focus.  

The approach set out in last year’s directorate business strategies and the 
overarching Corporate Plan continue to provide the foundations for our strategy. 
The next twelve months will therefore be the second year of delivering the four year 
plan we set out last year.  

The Strategy & Partnerships Scrutiny Committee reviewed the draft Plan and 
submitted comments to the Cabinet, who approved the draft on 17 January 2012.  

A summary of the key elements of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) will be 
included once the Council has approved the budget, and the MTFP will form an 
annex to the plan. 

The Cabinet RECOMMENDS Council to approve the Corporate Plan subject to 
the inclusion of a summary of the Medium Term Financial Plan and any 
changes in the text approved by the Chief Executive after consultation with 
the Leader of the Council.  

 
 

7. Director of Public Health Annual Report (Pages 39 - 76) 
 

 Council is RECOMMENDED to receive the report and note the 
recommendations.   

 



- 3 - 
 

 

8. Pay Policy (Pages 77 - 98) 
 

 The Localism Act 2011 requires all councils to agree and publish a pay policy 
statement by the end of financial year 2011-12.  The pay policy statement must as a 
minimum include details of the Council’s policy on the remuneration of its chief 
officers and of its lowest paid employees. It must also give details of the relationship 
between the remuneration of its chief officers and the Council's other officers.  The 
Pay Policy Statement at (CC8) Annex 2 brings together current Oxfordshire County 
Council policies into one document. It fulfils the requirements set down by the 
relevant legislation and codes. The report also proposes that a Remuneration 
Committee be established to make recommendations to the Council on future pay 
policy statements. 
 
The Council is RECOMMENDED to approve: 
 
(a)  the current Pay Policy Statement at Annex 2 to this report. 
 
(b) approve the creation of the Remuneration Committee as set out in 

paragraph 13 of the report which will make recommendations to Council 
regarding future Pay Policy Statements.  

 

9. Local Authority Standards (Pages 99 - 102) 
 

 At its meeting in December 2011, the Standards Committee gave initial 
consideration to the standards implications of the Localism Act. At that time, the 
Committee was minded to recommend Council to retain a standards committee 
under the new regime. However, the Committee met on 5 March 2012 to consider 
the implications of the Act in more detail and is now making specific 
recommendations to full Council (CC9) about the arrangements for resolving local 
complaints against members. 
 
 The Standards Committee RECOMMEND Council that: 

 
(a) a Standards Committee is not appointed under the Localism Act 2011; 

(b) The Audit Committee be renamed as the Audit & Governance 
Committee and its terms of reference expanded to include overview of 
member standards; 

(c) a member-officer working group be appointed to enable consideration 
of standards complaints against members of the Council reporting to 
the Audit & Governance Committee; 

(d) The Monitoring Officer to submit for Council’s approval an appropriate 
procedure for the handling of complaints.   

 
 
 
 



- 4 - 
 

 

10. Equalities Policy and Objectives - Equality Policy 2012-2017 
(Pages 103 - 136) 
 

 Report by Head of Law & Governance (CC10). 
 
The Equality Policy 2012-2017 sets out how the Council is approaching its 
responsibilities for ensuring that all residents in Oxfordshire have fair access to 
services and equal life chances.  It also demonstrates how the Council is meeting 
the requirements placed on public bodies under the Equality Act 2010, including 
setting equality objectives for the next four years. 
 
A draft of the policy has been out for public consultation since January, and the final 
policy has been amended to reflect feedback from internal and external 
stakeholders. 
 
To fulfil our legislative requirements, the final policy will be published by 6 April 
2012, and progress in implementing it will be monitored and reported as part of the 
council's overall performance management arrangements. 
 
The Cabinet RECOMMENDS Council to receive the report. 

  
 

 

Pre-Meeting Briefing 
 
There will be a pre-meeting briefing at County Hall on Monday 19 March 2012 at 10.15      
am for the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Group Leaders and Deputy Group Leaders 



 

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES of the meeting held on Friday, 10 February 2012 commencing at 10.00 
am and finishing at 4.10 pm. 

 
Present: 
 

 

Councillor Patrick Greene – in the Chair  
  
Councillors:  

 
Don Seale 
Alyas Ahmed 
M. Altaf-Khan 
Alan Armitage 
Lynda Atkins 
Marilyn Badcock 
Mike Badcock 
Maurice Billington 
Norman Bolster 
Ann Bonner 
Liz Brighouse OBE 
Iain Brown 
Nick Carter 
Jim Couchman 
Tony Crabbe 
Roy Darke 
Arash Fatemian 
Anda Fitzgerald-
O'Connor 
Jean Fooks 
Anthony Gearing 
Michael Gibbard 
 

John Goddard 
Janet Godden 
Tim Hallchurch MBE 
Pete Handley 
Jenny Hannaby 
Tony Harbour 
David Harvey 
Steve Hayward 
Mrs J. Heathcoat 
Hilary Hibbert-Biles 
Ian Hudspeth 
Sarah Hutchinson 
Stewart Lilly 
A.M. Lovatt 
Sajjad Hussain Malik 
Kieron Mallon 
Charles Mathew 
Keith R. Mitchell CBE 
David Nimmo-Smith 
Neil Owen 
Zoé Patrick 
 

Susanna Pressel 
Anne Purse 
G.A. Reynolds 
David Robertson 
Rodney Rose 
John Sanders 
Larry Sanders 
Bill Service 
Chip Sherwood 
C.H. Shouler 
Roz Smith 
Val Smith 
Richard Stevens 
Lawrie Stratford 
John Tanner 
Alan Thompson 
Melinda Tilley 
David Turner 
Carol Viney 
Michael Waine 
David Wilmshurst 
 

 
The Council considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or 
referred to in the agenda for the meeting and decided as set out below.  Except 
insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the 
agenda and reports, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

 
128/12 MINUTES  

(Agenda Item 1) 
 
RESOLVED:  that the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2011 be 
approved and signed subject to the following amendment to Annex 1 of the 
Minutes – supplementary answer to question 6: 
 
“We had our own investigation into the supply and demand figures required 
and we came out with the figure of 1.26 million which we feel is a good 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



CC1 
 

average if you take into account the fact that the reduction in demand is 
due to the economic downturn” 
 
 

129/12 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
(Agenda Item 2) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Altaf-Khan, Chapman, 
Mrs Fulljames, Jelf, Lindsay-Gale, Skolar, Strangwood and N.Turner. 
 
RESOLVED:  to approve, for the purposes of Section 85 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the absence of Councillor Peter Jones from any 
meeting of the Authority from the date of this meeting for six months on the 
grounds of his serious ill health.” 
 
 

130/12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
(Agenda Item 3) 
 
RESOLVED:  that all members declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 
8, noting the specific exemption under the Code for all members from 
declaring this as a prejudicial interest, in order for the Council to make a 
decision with regards to the Budget. 
 

131/12 OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS  
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
The Chairman reported as follows: 
 
(i) The Chairman reported that, following consultation with the Group 

Leaders, it had been agreed that the BBC would be filming debate on 
the Budget. 

(ii) The Chairman sought agreement for the Order of Business to be 
changed as indicated in the Schedule of Business. 

(iii) A minute’s silence was held in memory of Councillor Roger Belson 
who had sadly passed away over the Christmas period.  The 
Chairman reported that a memorial service was to held on 
Wednesday 21 March 2012 at 3.00 pm at The Guards Chapel, 
Wellington Barracks, London.  Those members who were interested in 
attending were to contact Jenny Larkcom regarding transport. 

(iv) Councillors Mallon, Purse and Brighouse then shared memories and 
experiences with Council and paid tribute to Councillor Belson. 

(v) The Chairman reported that he had written and congratulated those 
on the New Years Honours list which had a connection with 
Oxfordshire list attached as Annex 1 to the decisions). 

(vi) The Council congratulated Tim Stimpson, Facilities Manager for the 
County Council on receiving the MBE in the New Year’s Honours List 
for services to Oxfordshire. 

 
 
 

Page 2



CC1 
 

132/12 APPOINTMENTS  
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
RESOLVED: to 
 
(a) appoint Councillor Patrick Greene to the vacancy on the Growth & 

Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee; 
(b) appoint Councillor Stewart Lilly to the vacancy on the Planning & 

Regulation Committee. 
 
 

133/12 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
The following address was received: 
 
Agenda Item 8 – Service & Resource Planning 2012/13 – 2016/17 
 
Ms Sushila Dhall addressed the Council outlining the implications of focusing 
future funding  for Mental Health around rehabilitation and recovery rather 
than support as this would mean hardship for Metal Health patients who 
were unlikely to get better. 
 
 

134/12 SERVICE & RESOURCE PLANNING 2012/13 - 2016/17  
(Agenda Item 8) 
 
The Council had before them the Report of the Assistant Chief Executive & 
Chief Finance Officer (CC8), a supplementary Report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive & Chief Finance Officer, the Report of the Cabinet (CC8(b)) 
together with the Commentary on the Cabinet’s Budget Proposals by the 
Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer as the Council’s Section 
151 Officer.  The Council also had before it budget proposals in the form of:  
Amendments by the Liberal Democrat Group to the Cabinet’s Revenue 
Budget, Amendments by the Labour Group to the Cabinet’s Revenue Budget 
and Amendments by the Green Group to the Cabinet’s Revenue Budget 
together with Commentary by the Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Finance 
Officer as the Council’s Section 151 Officer. 
 
Councillor Mitchell moved and Councillor Couchman seconded the Cabinet’s 
recommendations on Service and Resource Planning 2012/13 to 2016/17 
(CC8(b)).  In moving and seconding the motion, Councillor Mitchell and 
Councillor Couchman paid tribute to Sue Scane and her staff for all their 
work in preparing the Budget. 
 
Members of the Cabinet then gave an overview of the areas of the Budget 
falling under their responsibility. 
 
Councillor Patrick moved and Councillor Armitage seconded an amendment 
to the Cabinet’s budget as set out in the additional papers (CC8 Liberal 

Page 3



CC1 
 

Democrat Amendments).  Councillor Patrick paid tribute to the finance staff 
responsible for preparing the budget. 
 
Following debate, the amendment was lost by 49 votes to 9 with 2 
Abstentions. 
 
Councillor Brighouse moved and Councillor Stevens seconded an 
amendment to the Cabinet’s budget as set out in (CC8 Labour Group 
Amendments) and in the Addenda at Annex 1 to the Schedule of Business.  
Councillor Patrick paid tribute to members of the finance team. 
 
Following debate, the amendment was lost by 50 votes to 10 with 1 
Abstentions. 
 
Councillor L Sanders moved and Councillor Sherwood seconded an 
amendment to the Cabinet’s budget as set out in (CC8 Green Group 
Amendments). Councillor Sanders paid tribute to Sue Scane and her team. 
 
Following debate, the amendment was lost by 57 votes to 2 with 2 
Abstentions. 
 
The substantive motion was then put to the vote and carried by 41 votes to 
19. 
 

135/12 OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CORPORATE PLAN 2012/13 - 
2016/17  
(Agenda Item 9) 
 
The time being 4.10 pm the meeting was closed and the Chairman directed 
that the item would be considered at the next Council Meeting on the 20th 
March. 
 
 

136/12 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT  
(Agenda Item 7) 
 
The time being 4.10 pm the meeting was closed and  the Chairman directed 
that the item would be considered at the next Council Meeting on the 20th 
March. 

Page 4



CC1 
 

 
 

137/12 ANNEX 1 TO THE MINUTES  
(Agenda Item ) 
 
New Year Honours list 
 
The Chairman has written and congratulated the following people on 
receiving New Year Honours in 2012: 

Professor Diarmaid MacCulloch, of the Theology Faculty and St Cross 
College, was knighted (KB) for services to scholarship. 

David Flint, chief executive of Oxford Instruments, was appointed CBE for 
services to business and science.  

Professor Lionel Tarassenko was appointed CBE for services to engineering.  

Keith Budgen, the former regional director of HM Courts and Tribunals 
Service for the south east region was appointed CBE 

Professor Diana Woodhouse, the former pro vice-chancellor of research at 
Oxford Brookes University, was appointed OBE for services to legal 
scholarship and higher education. 

Malcolm Cochrane, from Shipton-under-Wychwood, was appointed MBE for 
his services to the community. 

James Hewitt was appointed MBE for services to financial inclusion in 
Oxfordshire and to the local community. 

Trevor Alan Cowlett for services to music in Oxford was appointed MBE. 

John Huddleston, from AEA Technology, was appointed MBE for services to 
the environment. 

Professor Robert Lloyd Walker was appointed MBE for services to social 
policy research.  

 
 
 

 in the Chair 
  
Date of signing   

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



     

Division(s): N/A 

 
COUNCIL – 10 FEBRUARY 2012 

 
CORPORATE PLAN 2012/13 – 2016/17 

 
Report by Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer 

 
Introduction 
 

1. The Council's proposed Medium Term Corporate Plan 2012/13-
2016/17 is one of the plans and strategies that forms the policy 
framework and requires full Council approval. The Strategy & 
Partnerships Scrutiny Committee submitted comments to the Cabinet, 
who approved the draft on 17 January 2012.  
 

2. The report by the Leader of the Council on the Service and Resource 
Planning item on this agenda incorporates comments on the Plan, 
given the close linkage between the two items. 

 

Background 
 

3. The 2012/13-2016/17 plan is a fairly light touch refresh of last year's 
plan, though it also seeks to reflect the significant changes that have 
been implemented over the past 12 months.  Whilst we will be 
continuing to deliver our front line services, within the smaller financial 
envelop, there are significant national policy changes which will affect 
the Council which will also be delivered.  
 

4. Our ambition is to see a Thriving Oxfordshire, with key priorities of 
World Class Economy, Healthy and Thriving Communities, and 
Enhancing the Environment underpinned by Efficient Public Services.  
The impact of business development on the economy and how it leads 
to strong communities is a thread throughout the plan. 
 

5. The Corporate Plan is split into three parts – the first summarises the 
Council's broad strategic direction; the second sets our Priorities for 
Action and the third shows how we will deliver against those priorities.  

 
6. Many of the priorities for action identified in the Corporate Plan are 

about achieving a tangible improvement in outcomes as outlined 
below. Targets will be set where appropriate. Progress on these issues 
will form the basis of the regular quarterly performance reports that are 
provided to the Council's Cabinet and Strategy and Partnerships 
Scrutiny Committee. Other priorities for action are harder to measure; 
they seek behavioural / cultural change within the council or identify a 
need to respond to shifts in national policy. A qualitative assessment of 
progress against these issues will be provided at the end of 2012/13. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



     

7. A summary of the key elements of the Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) will also be included and the MTFP will form an annex to the 
plan.   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

8. The Cabinet RECOMMENDS Council to approve the Corporate 
Plan 2012/13-2016/17 subject to the inclusion of consequential 
and editorial changes in the text as agreed by the Chief Executive 
after consultation with the Leader of the Council. 

 
 
SUE SCANE 
Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer 
 
 
Background Papers: Nil 
Contact Officer: Maggie Scott, Senior Policy Manager, 01865 816081 
  
 
January 2012 
 

Page 8



 

  Page 1   

 
Oxfordshire County 
Council Corporate Plan  
2012/13 – 2016/17 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



 

  Page 2   

Foreword from the Council Leader  
 
In this, my last report as Leader of the Council, I believe there is a fundamental 
and developing role for strategic authorities like Oxfordshire in what I will 
describe as Leadership of Place. 

The County Council is committed to growing our economy, improving the well-
being of our population, particularly breaking the pernicious cycle of deprivation 
that impacts on troubled families, while also maintaining the quality of our 
environment.  

To achieve this there is a crying need for a coherent approach across public 
agencies. Local government has the democratic mandate and legitimacy to 
provide that leadership. It does not give us the right to direct local partners, but it 
does give us the right to lead the debate about what our county needs, and to 
challenge and to hold to account other agencies that operate in Oxfordshire but 
do not have a clear local democratic line of accountability.  

This Leadership of Place also gives us the right to champion Oxfordshire’s 
needs with central government.  The last government learned the hard way that 
you cannot micro-manage a country.  It appears that the present government 
has some understanding of that principle but the Localism Act is a mixture of 
genuine devolution of power and some less welcome centralism. We should not 
be afraid to tell government when our needs are not being met. 

There is a second emerging strand that is of importance for our county.  A 
number of central government reforms are changing our role in service 
provision.  The best example is the development of Academies and Free 
Schools.  We have had little control over our schools for many years now but it 
is inevitable that most if not all will become independent of the county council 
before long.  What role will we retain then?  I suggest we need to be the 
champion of children and parents, ready to hold to account schools that do not 
strive for excellence in all and able to anticipate and deal with market failure. 
 We will have an interesting role in this new market place and there are bound to 
be unintended consequences for which we and only we will have the capacity 
and local knowledge to manage. 

Another area is in the health reforms where we welcome the return of public 
health to local authority control.  We also welcome the opportunity to work with 
health colleagues in planning and commissioning health services for 
Oxfordshire.  We hope this will bring the chance to integrate health and social 
care, reduce health inequalities and transform the health service to one that 
concentrates on maintaining good health as well as treating illness.  Given our 
good and positive relationship with the health system over the years, we have a 
strong starting position from which to make that journey. 

We have our share of troubled families in Oxfordshire.  Their primary 
characteristic is the engagement of many different agencies in providing support 
to them and a persistent inability to break a cycle of deprivation, lack of 
ambition, benefit dependency and worklessness.  We have been working for a 
while on a programme of Early Intervention and I like to think that the Prime 
Minister’s recent announcement of a national scheme to support troubled 
families has taken some inspiration from the work that I know he has seen here 
in Oxfordshire.   

In all of this, I firmly believe that local government faces a nexus in its 
relationship with central government.  We need to demonstrate, through our 

Page 10



 

  Page 3   

Leadership of Place and our ability to identify and champion the needs of our 
citizens, that local government is wholly a part of the solution for our broken 
economy and not a part of the problem.  This is the real challenge of this decade 
for local government and I really believe we can make a significant difference to 
people’s lives if we rise to the challenge.  In time, local government may even be 
able to shake off some more of the shackles that make English local 
government the most regulated and centrally controlled in the developed world. 

This leadership role must come from all councillors.  We are the natural leaders 
of our local communities.  We are the people to whom local residents should 
naturally turn when there is a problem, a systemic failure or a local injustice. We 
alone have the capacity to help our residents make that difficult transition from a 
society that has come to expect “the government” or “the council” to solve every 
problem to one where the local community asks the question “what can we do 
ourselves to resolve this issue?”   Together with our district council colleagues 
and town and parish councils, we have that local democratic mandate to speak 
for our communities, to stand up for their needs and to help them to help 
themselves.   
 

Keith R Mitchell CBE 
Leader of the Council

Page 11



 

  Page 4   

About Oxfordshire  
 
Oxfordshire is home to around 650,000 people. The population is increasing but 
it remains a predominantly rural area and is the least densely populated county 
in the South East of England.   
 
Oxfordshire is a place that people like to live and work in, with a high quality built 
and natural environment and thriving economy: 
• 87% of residents regard the county as a good place to live (Place Survey 

2008/09)  
• The population is healthier and more prosperous than most other areas 
• Our economy contributes £15.4 billion to the national economy and has 

considerable scope for further growth, boosted by the recent announcement 
of a 92 hectare enterprise zone in the Science Vale area in the south of the 
county 

• Unemployment is amongst the lowest in the country, with less than 2% of 
residents claiming job seekers allowance (December 2011) 

• Residents and businesses benefit from the county’s position at the heart of 
the UK rail and road transport network  

 
As well as these positives Oxfordshire faces a number of significant challenges: 

• More than 30% of the county’s workforce is currently employed in the public 
sector, making us particularly vulnerable to the impact of budget cuts 

• Housing availability and affordability remains a problem  
• There are pockets of significant deprivation, with 18 local areas in the county 

within the 20% most deprived in England 
• Educational attainment at GCSE level is below the regional and national 

averages and 6% of 16-18 year olds are not in employment, education or 
training. These factors contribute to the skills gap experienced by around 
one in five employers in Oxfordshire 

• Positive improvements in life expectancy mean the County has a growing 
older population; the number of residents aged over 85 is predicted to more 
than double by 2033, presenting challenges to service delivery 

 
More key facts about Oxfordshire available on the Oxfordshire Data Observatory 
website: www.oxfordshireobservatory.info/aboutoxfordshiredata  
 
 

Page 12



 

  Page 5   

Context 
 
In last year’s budget the Council identified the need to make savings of £119 
million between 2011/12 and 2015/16. In addition the coalition government set 
out a new policy direction with profound implications for the council and other 
public sector organisations. Last year’s Corporate Plan explained how we would 
respond to these changes.  
 
The past twelve months have been challenging. We have focused on protecting 
front line services and ongoing delivery of the Council’s core business whilst at 
the same time becoming significantly slimmer and more efficient, through radical 
transformation of all service areas. 
 
Notable changes in the past year include: 
• Savings worth £55m on course to be delivered 
• The Council is now very much leaner.  The restructuring that we started in 

2010/11 has continued in 2011/12. All services have now been, or are 
currently being, restructured. There has also been a reduction in the number 
of council Directorates from five to three (Economy and Environment; 
Children, Education and Families; Social and Community Services, 
supported by a significantly smaller Chief Executive’s Office)  

• The number of senior managers employed has reduced by over 40% in the 
period 1 April 2010 to 30 September 2011. In the same period overall 
staffing numbers (excluding schools) have reduced by 12.9% 

• A stronger focus on achieving and supporting economic growth, with the 
establishment of the business-led Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
and announcement of a Local Enterprise Zone in the south of the county, 
sitting alongside a refocused Oxfordshire Skills Board 

• We have established a new Early Intervention  and Prevention Service to 
work with troubled families to help identify solutions before they escalate 

• We have been part of the Department of Health early implementers 
programme and worked closely with health colleagues to establish a 
shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 

• We have established an Infrastructure Fund to enable forward funding of 
projects, unlocking further opportunities for investment in local infrastructure 

• We have focused on supporting the development of Oxfordshire's Big 
Society and increasing levels of community engagement, including 
establishing a Big Society fund to enable local communities to do more to 
help themselves 
 

The approach set out in last year’s directorate business strategies and the 
overarching Corporate Plan will continue to provide the foundations for our 
strategy. The next twelve months will therefore be the second year of delivering 
the four year plan we set out last year.  
 
Key issues to address in the next twelve months: 
• We will continue to protect front line staff, in particular in those core services 

that support and protect the most vulnerable residents in Oxfordshire 
• We will achieve further savings of £37m in 2012/13 
• We will implement national policy changes that affect the Council and our 

key partners. This includes:  

Page 13



 

  Page 6   

o Localism Act 2011 – a range of measures to support 
decentralisation including new community rights, reforms to 
planning processes and empowerment of local government and 
local communities 

o Open Public Services – sets out the government’s intention to 
increase choice, decentralise power, diversify public service 
provision and increase accountability and transparency 

o Local Government Resource Review – proposals for major 
changes to the way in which local authorities are funded, including 
some element of local retention of business rates (rather than the 
current system of formula grants based on population and need). 
This puts economic growth at the heart of securing quality public 
services in future  

o Schools – current government policy places increasing emphasis 
upon school autonomy, through Free Schools and Academies, and 
a more specific role for local authorities in supporting those most in 
need, thereby changing the relationship between the Council and 
local schools  

o Strategic National Planning framework – we will take a local 
leadership role to align funding streams and deliver priority 
outcomes for Oxfordshire 

o Health and Social Care Bill – from April 2012 all upper tier 
authorities will be required to lead a new statutory Health and 
Wellbeing Board to develop a local Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
and co-ordinate the commissioning of public health, clinical and 
social care. In addition public health functions will transfer to local 
authorities in 2013, with shadow funding allocations to be made in 
2012. A Social Care Reform White Paper is expected in Spring 
2012. This is likely to have significant implications for the way in 
which social care services are funded in future and respond to the 
recommendations of the Dilnot Review 

o Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 – establishes the role of 
a Police and Crime Commissioner for each Police Authority area 
and the subsequent abolition of Police Authorities. Police and 
Crime Commissioners will allocate local community safety funding 
which had previously been provided direct to the Council 

 
The remainder of this plan summarises our broad strategic direction within the 
context of the challenges set out above. 
 

Page 14



 

  Page 7   

Our Goal: A Thriving Oxfordshire 
 
We will continue to work towards the same strategic objectives as last year but 
are now setting these within the context of delivering an overall goal of a 
Thriving Oxfordshire. This means having fulfilled people, vibrant and active 
communities, and a great place; maximising economic growth whilst ensuring 
that the fruits of growth are enjoyed by all parts of our community and 
minimising any negative impact on our environment.  
 
To deliver a Thriving Oxfordshire the Council will work towards the following 
strategic objectives: 

 
Thriving Oxfordshire 

 
 

World Class 
Economy 

 

 
Healthy and Thriving Communities 

 
Enhancing the 
Environment  

 
Efficient Public Services  

 
 
These objectives fit into the ‘golden thread’ shown in Figure 1, below. This links 
all of our work from top level objectives through to service delivery and ensures 
that as a Council we take a coordinated approach to the challenges we face.  

Our strategic objectives continue to be consistent with Oxfordshire 2030, the 
county’s long term plan which was developed with partners in 2008. Despite 
very significant changes to the financial and policy environment that the Council 
and our local partners face, we remain committed to working together to deliver 
the longer term ambitions for Oxfordshire.   

 

Figure 1: Oxfordshire’s Golden Thread 

 

Oxfordshire 2030 
Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) 

Sets out long-term partnership vision and strategy for Oxfordshire 
www.oxfordshirepartnership.org.uk/Oxfordshire2030  

Golden thread 

Golden thread 

Medium Term Financial Plan 
Sets out how the council will allocate 

funding for the next 4 years  
[ADD LINK ONCE AVAILABLE] 

Other statutory plans 
Set the framework for delivery across the 

council 

Directorate Business Strategies 
Annual plans converting corporate priorities and spending programmes into operational 

business strategies for the Council’s services 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/businessstrategies   

Individual performance objectives 
For every member of staff 

Oxfordshire County Council Corporate Plan 
Sets out the council’s vision and priorities for the next 4 years reflecting council priorities, and 

the Sustainable Community Strategy 

Page 15



 

  Page 8   

World Class Economy 
Oxfordshire forms the hub of Britain’s knowledge economy with the largest 
concentration of research and development activity in Western Europe, driven 
by Science Vale UK, two universities and their many spin-off research centres 
and start-up businesses.  
 
We have one of the strongest economies in the South East and despite the 
national and global economic difficulties, continue to have one of the lowest 
rates of unemployment in the country. In order to maintain and build on this 
strong position we must nurture and invest in the local economy. 
 
Figure 2: Job Seeker Allowance Claimants 

 
Source:  Department for Work and Pensions, December 2011 (from Nomis) 
 
The on-going success of our economy is fundamental to achieving broader 
ambitions for Oxfordshire.  Without economic success we will lack the ability to 
compete in a global market and generate the wealth that will in turn enable 
investment to be made more widely in society.  

 
Economic growth has to be delivered by business, but the County Council has a 
vital role to play in providing strategic leadership and facilitating an environment 
that enables business to flourish. We are key partners on the Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership and are supporting the establishment of an Enterprise 
Zone at Science Vale UK. We also have a key role to play in our leadership of 
strategic planning and infrastructure provision across Oxfordshire.  
 
Oxfordshire has a high level of public sector employment. This includes two 
universities who play a critical role in driving enterprise and innovation, and 
makes them key members of the Local Enterprise Partnership. 
 
Infrastructure 
We want to ensure that infrastructure enables rather than limits our economic 
growth. To achieve this we are working with our district council colleagues to 
develop a strategic infrastructure framework for the county. This seeks to 
maximise and align national and local funding to a common agenda of what 
needs to be built and where.  
 
The county's population is expected to continue to grow rapidly, and although 
the gap between earnings and house prices has fallen slightly since the start of 
the recession housing affordability remains a problem in Oxfordshire. Ensuring 
an adequate supply of affordable housing remains a key factor in encouraging 

Page 16



 

  Page 9   

economic growth, so although housing development has slowed in the short 
term our ambition remains to see planned major developments around Banbury, 
Bicester, Didcot, Oxford and Wantage realised.  
 
Transport 
Enabling movement by car, lorry and public transport remains a key objective. 
We are fortunate to be strategically well located, just over an hour away from 
London and Birmingham, with good transport links via the motorway, road and 
rail networks.   
 
Oxford city already has some of the highest use of public transport in the 
country and we will continue to work closely with local bus companies to build 
upon this. Significant improvements are planned for the local rail network, 
including the opening of a second mainline route between Oxford and London 
via Bicester (including a new station at Water Eaton) by 2014 and the 
electrification of the Great Western route by 2017. The government have also 
given provisional approval for a new East-West rail line that will link Reading, 
Oxford and Aylesbury with Milton Keynes and Bedford.  
 
We are seeking to maintain, and where possible improve, the conditions of our 
road network. Further work is also underway with Government Agencies to 
deliver improved road links at pinch points across the county, to support growth. 
This includes Junction 9 of the M40 at Bicester, Cogges Link Road in Witney 
and improvements to the network around the Science Vale area.  
 
We have moved responsibility for road safety education into our Fire & Rescue 
Service, who are well placed to deliver targeted prevention activities to those 
people most at risk in our local communities and help keep the county on the 
move.  
 
Broadband 
Although some areas in Oxfordshire are already taking advantage of next 
generation broadband, other parts of the county, particularly in rural areas, still 
do not have an acceptable level of standard broadband service. We want to 
support economic growth and ensure that businesses and others who need it 
have access to the best possible broadband services, and are working closely 
with public and private sector organisations and with individual communities to 
develop the right solutions for Oxfordshire. 
 
Skills 
Despite the many positives outlined above the county does face a number of 
challenges, in particular the need to address the skills gap experienced by one 
in five employers in Oxfordshire and the numbers of young people who are not 
in education, employment or training. A significant factor in both issues is 
Oxfordshire’s relatively poor GCSE results. Our performance is more often in 
line with national averages rather than being well above as should be expected, 
given the overall affluence of the county. Disappointingly, our GCSE results fell 
below national averages in 2011. The Council’s Strategic Plan for Education 
sets out how OCC will support improvements in attainment and support schools 
to ensure that every school is judged to be at least good by Ofsted, and aspires 
to become outstanding. In 2012 there will be a targeted campaign to improve 
reading standards across the pupil population.   
 

Page 17



 

  Page 10   

Our Priorities for Action 
 
• Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) – we will continue to 

support the partnership and through it work with the private and academic 
sectors to create the conditions to realise Oxfordshire’s economic potential. 
In particular we will work with others to ensure delivery of the Local 
Enterprise Zone in the south of the county, and encourage growth in the 
other priority locations of Oxford city and Bicester 

• Infrastructure – we will work across the public sector locally and with central 
government agencies to prepare an infrastructure plan. Through this we will 
align investment priorities and decisions to achieve our shared ambitions for 
Oxfordshire and meet local needs. We will adopt a new approach to securing 
contributions to infrastructure from developers, and develop proposals that 
encourage innovative ways of using funds available to deliver necessary 
infrastructure in a timely way 

• Tackling transport priorities – we will work closely with our partners to 
ensure that our transport strategy supports the needs of the local economy 
and realises the opportunity to develop alternatives to car use where 
appropriate and suitable. We will seek to maintain and where possible 
improve, the conditions of our roads, and are also supporting communities 
through the Area Stewardship Fund to enable them to help us address local 
priorities. We will seek to secure funding and final commitment to East West 
Rail, as well as the addressing pinch points in the road network 

• Broadband – we are working with business network providers to develop 
and implement a strategy for the roll out of next generation broadband 
across the county, to improve access and support business growth 

• Skill levels – we are working with others to link adult skills provision to the 
needs of the local economy and reduce the number of young people not in 
education, employment or training (NEET). We have also expanded 
apprenticeship provision, and aim to continue this important route into the job 
market, particularly among public sector organisations and local businesses 

• Educational Attainment – national policy and funding structures are shifting 
and we will ensure that the council can respond effectively so that the needs 
of all pupils are met. We have worked with key partners across the county to 
agree a new Strategic Plan for Education and we will focus on the delivery of 
six strands: 

o Aspiration networks – funding allocated to clusters of schools to 
enable them to support each other in order to bring about whole 
system improvement  

o A concentrated approach to securing strong and dynamic leadership 
and governance 

o Promotion of Inspirational and Excellent Teaching in all subjects and 
across all phases 

o Early Intervention and a Good Start in Life – helping families to make 
sure children get a good start in life and are in school and ready to 
learn throughout their education 

o Targeted and Intensive Support for schools below the Floor Standard, 
those at risk of becoming so and those struggling to improve 

o A campaign that everyone can help with – Every Oxfordshire Child a 
Good Reader  

 
 

Page 18



 

  Page 11   

 

 
Healthy and Thriving Communities 
 
Most local residents think Oxfordshire is a good place to live. People are 
generally affluent and healthy, the sense of community is strong and they feel 
safe in their local areas.  
 
Health 
Oxfordshire residents enjoy above average life expectancy, although there are 
variations across the county. The council works closely with key partners to help 
deliver the Director of Public Health's priorities:  address the demographic 
challenge, break the cycle of deprivation, improve mental health services, tackle 
obesity and alcohol related harm, and fight killer diseases.  
 
Breaking the cycle of deprivation 
Overall Oxfordshire is an affluent county and levels of deprivation are low, but 
some small areas in Oxford City and Banbury fall within the 20% most deprived 
areas in the country. We will continue to work closely with our partners in these 
communities to address social failure and break the cycle of deprivation that can 
involve generation after generation of families with low skills and high 
unemployment, often associated with poor health, crime and anti-social 
behaviour.  
 
Figure 3: Deprivation in Oxfordshire  

 
Source: Communities and Local Government, March 2011 
 
Demographic change 
The proportion of older people in the population, and younger adults with 
disabilities, is increasing rapidly, particularly in rural areas. This presents 
opportunities, as older people are more likely to be actively involved in their 
communities, carrying with them a wealth of knowledge and experience. 
However it also increases demand for social and health care services. We will 

Page 19



 

  Page 12   

continue to work closely across the public sector and in our commissioning 
practices to meet this need effectively.  
 
Figure 4: Oxfordshire population by age group, 2008 to 2033 

Source:  Office for National Statistics, 2008-based sub-national population projections 

 
Support for the vulnerable - prevention and personalisation 
The council will continue to support and protect our most vulnerable residents by 
effectively targeting resources to those most in need, including young people, 
older people and those with disabilities. 
 
We will, as far as possible, continue to invest in prevention as a cost effective 
approach leading to better outcomes for people of all ages, by preventing their 
needs escalating to the point that they require more expensive and specialist 
service delivery.  
 
In the past year we have created a new integrated early intervention and 
prevention service, to work with troubled families that are facing exceptional 
social difficulties. This is an innovative approach that maintains high levels of 
universal support, whilst increasing the effectiveness of the way we work with 
those children, young people and families in greatest need by helping them to 
take greater ownership of their lives and identifying solutions before problems 
escalate. We have transformed separate services and staff focused on their own 
professional specialisms, into cross-trained and locality-focused teams. This 
means a single point of contact for children and family referrals, with one 
professional taking responsibility for an individual or family. 
 
We are strongly committed to Early Years' provision and want to ensure that all 
children are given a good start in life. We know that long term outcomes in terms 
of health and emotional resilience rely particularly on the period between birth 
and three years of age.  Research shows that if children start school being 
disadvantaged, that gap widens as they go through school.   
 
In addition, our Fire and Rescue Service continues to be on target - at the half-
way stage of its 10-year ‘365Alive’ campaign - to save lives, protect property 
and support the local economy. Our approach towards creating a safer 

2008 2018 2033
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Children Working Age Older people

nu
m
be
r 
(t
ho
us
an
ds
)

Page 20



 

  Page 13   

Oxfordshire will be to continue working with vulnerable people especially around 
crime and helping them to live independently at home and feel safe.  
 
Prevention is also key to our approach in adult services. We want to keep 
people well, helping them to live at home and avoid, reduce and delay costly 
admissions to care homes. We are working with our District Council colleagues, 
through our Spatial Planning and Infrastructure Partnership, to increase Extra 
Care Housing, which enables people to live independently with varying levels of 
care and support on site. This approach is enhanced further by the Fire and 
Rescue Service being an integrated service within the council and working with 
adult services, so that key professionals can highlight the safety needs of 
vulnerable people to each other in a timely and effective manner. 
 
We also want to enable the people whom we support to have more choice and 
control over the way they live their lives. A crucial way of delivering this is 
through ‘self-directed support’ which enables those who are eligible for social 
care support from the council to decide how they want to be supported through 
their own personal budget.  
 
Localism and Big Society 
The localism agenda aligns well with the importance that the County Council 
places on encouraging volunteering and enabling communities to address for 
themselves the issues that matter locally. The county has a strong voluntary 
sector with over 4,500 community and voluntary groups, an above average 
number of regular volunteers and an increasing number of communities 
preparing community-led plans.  
 
The Council's Big Society Fund, launched in 2011, has enabled communities to 
bid for start-up funding for community projects that would benefit their areas.  In 
2011/12 this pump-priming enabled all youth centres that were due to close to 
remain open, either under the control of the County Council or through transfer 
to a school or community body.  The Council is now keen to build on this 
approach and will use the opportunities presented by the Localism Act to further 
strengthen community ownership of issues that matter to them.  
 
We will continue to work with County Councillors as community leaders and 
social entrepreneurs. We are keen to promote community-led models of service 
delivery and alternative provision of services where viable. We will work with 
local members, support organisations and community groups to develop options 
and the Big Society Fund will help to provide start-up funding for new initiatives.  
 
Military community 
There is a significant military presence in Oxfordshire with over 11,000 
personnel based at six locations across the county including RAF Brize Norton 
the UK’s repatriation centre. In 2011 Oxfordshire County Council was the first 
council in the country to pledge support to the Armed Forces Community 
Covenant and we are fully committed to supporting local military residents and 
their families. We are currently working with the Ministry of Defence to support 
the transfer of personnel to RAF Brize Norton when RAF Lyneham closes in 
2012, this includes significant capital investment into the area involving at least 
1,000 new homes 
 
 

Page 21



 

  Page 14   

 
 
 
Our Priorities for Action 
 
• Implications of changes to the health service – we have already 

established a Health and Wellbeing Board for Oxfordshire, and will ensure 
that new commissioning arrangements are effective in meeting local need. 
We will also bring the public health service into the County Council  

• Improve health outcomes – we will support delivery of the Director of 
Public Health's priorities:  address the demographic challenge, break the 
cycle of deprivation, improve mental health services, tackle obesity and 
alcohol related harm, and fight killer diseases 

• Demographic change – we will continue to support the increasing number 
of older people and people with disabilities, to live in their own home rather 
than a care home. We will increase the availability of extra care housing and 
assistive technology to reduce the need for support staff, and continue to 
provide information and support to carers. We are  changing the way day 
services for older people are provided, maintaining services in major towns, 
but focusing on community initiatives and local decision-making about how 
best to support older people in their community 

• Breaking the Cycle of Deprivation – we will continue to work in partnership 
to improve the quality of life in the most deprived areas of the county by 
promoting better engagement in education, employment and training; 
supporting the vulnerable and those with multiple and enduring problems; 
promoting healthy lifestyles and reducing health inequalities; reducing and 
mitigating the effects of child poverty 

• Protection and safeguarding – we will continue to reduce the number of 
children, young people and adults that need to be taken into care or are in 
need of protection. We will ensure the multiagency approach to protecting 
and safeguarding our most vulnerable children and young people is 
maintained to its current high standard, and will work with our partners to 
raise public and professional awareness of the needs of vulnerable adults  

• Prevention – we will maintain our focus on preventing the need for more 
specialist services through early identification of problems and early 
intervention in adult and children’s services. We will also help reduce the 
number of fires, those killed and seriously injured on our roads and help 
prevent crime 

• Personalisation – we will focus on giving people choice in the way they lead 
their lives and how they secure the services they need to support them. 
From April 2012 we anticipate that 100% of adult social care service users 
will be using personal budgets  

• Localism Act – as further details emerge we will respond to the implications 
of the Act, which is intended to support decentralisation of power to the 
lowest level, including establishing new community rights, reforms to 
planning processes and empowerment of local government and local 
communities 

• Big Society – we will work with elected members, partners and voluntary 
organisations to encourage individuals and communities to take more 
responsibility. We will continue to provide a Big Society Fund that will 
support local communities and organisations who wish to identify local 
priorities and take action themselves about issues that matter to them 

Page 22



 

  Page 15   

 

Page 23



 

  Page 16   

Enhancing the Environment  
 

Oxfordshire is the most rural county in the South East, with a fabulous natural 
environment. This is an important factor in most residents' quality of life and 
often a key reason for people to visit as tourists or relocate here, having a very 
beneficial effect on our local economy. We need to manage the tension between 
our desire and need for economic growth and the need to enhance and protect 
our environment.  
 
We have a beautiful and accessible countryside, including four areas of 
outstanding natural beauty and many places which are nationally or 
internationally important for biodiversity. The county also has outstanding 
architecture, including the Blenheim Palace world heritage site near Woodstock 
and over 1,000 listed buildings.  
 
Figure 5: Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 
 
Flooding 
Since the flooding across the county in July 2007 a range of mitigation 
measures have been put in place, but with around 12% of the county lying within 
the floodplain there will always be a significant number of properties at risk of 
flooding in Oxfordshire.  
 
Energy  
Energy costs are high and forecast to continue to rise rapidly. We are 
embedding energy saving and carbon dioxide reduction into our business 
processes across the council. Reducing our energy consumption will also result 
in financial savings. We will continue to invest in energy efficiency measures in 
our buildings, including schools, and introduce measures to reduce our demand 
for energy.   
 
Waste Management 
On-going investment in our services has resulted in very high levels of waste 
recycling, with over 60% of household waste now recycled or composted. We 

Page 24



 

  Page 17   

will continue working with partners to build on the behavioural change achieved 
so far, thus further reducing the amount sent to landfill and minimising our 
financial liabilities.  
 
Figure 6: Recycling rates, 2003/04 to 2010/11 

 
Source:  Oxfordshire County Council Waste Management team; DEFRA 
 
 
Our Priorities for Action 
 
• Effective use of resources – we will make sure Oxfordshire’s natural 

resources are used as effectively as possible and minimise the impact of 
economic growth on the environment. We will ensure planning applications 
for mineral extraction reflect the needs of the local economy. We will work 
with partner organisations, volunteers, community groups and local 
communities to protect and enhance the natural environment, and maintain 
the rights of way network as an important part of the rural economy  

• Increase energy efficiency and reduce emissions – we will realise the 
financial benefits of reducing the council’s emissions, in the process reducing 
the impact of energy tax   

• Waste management – we will continue to work across the public sector to 
further increase rates of recycling and reduce the amount of household 
waste sent to landfill. We are investing in new household waste recycling 
centres near to the major urban areas, and are closing those that have 
reached the end of their permissions. We are investing in new disposal 
facilities to convert waste to energy, and will deliver on our plans for new / 
refurbished Household Waste Recycling Centres. We will also work with our 
partners to ensure our investment is complemented by other councils 
investing in improved kerbside collection schemes 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

  Page 18   

Efficient Public Services 
 
The Council has an excellent track record of delivering value for money and we 
were ‘ahead of the game’ in preparing for the difficult times we now find 
ourselves in. We delivered almost £100 million in year-on-year savings between 
2007 and 2011, and have achieved an additional £55m in the past year.  
 
The approach set out in last year’s Directorate business strategies and 
Corporate Plan will continue to provide the foundations for our strategy. The 
next twelve months, and focus of this year's plan, will therefore be the second 
year of delivering the four year plan we set out last year.  
 
This plan covers the period form 2012/13 to 2016/17. However local government 
faces a very significant change in how funding is allocated from 2013/14, when it 
is likely to be much more driven by local economic growth and some retention of 
business rates locally. There is also likely to be reductions in national 
government budgets in the next Spending Review period, as indicated in the 
November 2011 Autumn Budget Statement, which will inevitably have a knock 
on effect locally. This means that our financial plans beyond 2012/13 are 
indicative only and will need further refinement once there is greater clarity from 
government about the new arrangements. 
 
Delivering our Business Strategy  
Although the recent financial situation has presented many challenges and the 
need for some very tough decisions, it has also provided an opportunity to 
radically rethink the way we do business and to look again at how we provide 
value for money for local people.  
 
Aligned to last year's Corporate Plan we developed a Business Strategy to 
articulate the changes that were required to achieve our savings.  One year on 
we find ourselves in a significantly different place; we are a much leaner and 
more efficient organisation, focused on delivering core services to support the 
public, particularly those vulnerable residents with the greatest need. We have 
undergone significant restructuring, reduced the number of senior managers 
and stripped out management layers throughout the organisation. 
 
We now have very strong foundations to build upon. Our focus for the coming 
period will be to achieve a new way of working that will: 

 
• Maximise the benefits of new technology – we are already using new 

technology to help us to work more efficiently and improve the way we 
provide information, support and access to services. In the past year we 
have completely refreshed our website so that residents can access 
information and services online. 
 
We think there is scope to go considerably further, in particular using new 
technology to stream line the way we work, so that our staff will be able to 
spend more time with customers, clients, providers and partners. As this 
progresses we will be able to free up office space – helping us to save 
money  

• Rationalise our assets – the Council owns over 800 buildings, including 
nearly 300 schools. We know that there is scope to significantly reduce the 
number of non-school buildings. We will focus particularly on working 

Page 26



 

  Page 19   

closely with other public sector organisations to jointly consider our 
presence in key locations throughout the county. This should improve joined 
up service delivery across organisations and improve access for customers. 
In response to the Localism Act, the Council will also, where appropriate, be 
exploring opportunities to transfer assets to the community, or manage them 
differently with greater community involvement 

• Extend the scope of Oxfordshire Customer Services – we will continue 
to redesign our model for support services, building on the establishment of 
Oxfordshire Customer Services and a new customer contact centre last year 
 

Leadership and partnership working 
Increasingly the job of councils is not to do everything themselves but to enable 
the right things to happen – through influence, through contracts, through policy 
and through leadership. The County Council acts as the strategic leader for 
Oxfordshire and has an important agenda setting role, building on the priorities 
expressed in Oxfordshire 2030, our local Community Strategy, and in this plan. 
 
Local service delivery is now provided by a wide range of statutory, 
independent, private and voluntary sector organisations. We work closely with 
our partners in order to commission and oversee delivery of better outcomes 
and value for money for local people. This means working effectively with the 
police, health and other public agencies and at the local level with district, town 
and parish councils. 
 
In the past year we have reviewed our existing formal partnership arrangements 
to maximise the benefit we receive for the investment we make. We have 
retained those that are critical to addressing priorities that we all recognise can 
only be tackled through joint working. These include the Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership, Oxfordshire Skills Board, Oxfordshire Strategic Planning 
and Infrastructure Partnership, Oxfordshire Environment and Waste Partnership, 
Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board (including sub groups on Health 
Improvement, Adult Social Care, Children and Young People, and Public 
Involvement), Oxfordshire Stronger Communities Alliance (voluntary and 
community sector) and the Oxfordshire Safer Communities Partnership.  All 
partnerships are driven by the priorities set by the Oxfordshire Partnership, 
which continues to meet to provide a light-touch overarching sense of direction 
and ensure delivery of the priorities in Oxfordshire 2030, our community 
strategy. 
 
Equalities  
We are committed to making Oxfordshire a fair and equal place in which to live, 
work and visit. We will meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, and are 
publishing a new equalities policy and related performance information. We 
have identified four key issues that will guide our approach: 
• Understanding the needs of our customers 
• Providing accessible, local and personalised services 
• Supporting thriving and cohesive communities 
• Promoting a culture of fairness 
If we plan to make changes to a service we will continue to consult relevant 
people (residents, service users, providers, partners), and will undertake service 
and community impact assessments to ensure that vulnerable and other 
sections of our communities are not unfairly disadvantaged by any changes.  
 

Page 27



 

  Page 20   

Our Priorities for Action 
 
• Delivering our savings target – delivering our challenging but achievable 
programme to meet our savings target of £119m million by 2014/15 (this 
includes £55m on target to be delivered in 2011/12) 

• Business Strategy – we will continue to deliver our directorate and 
cross cutting business strategies. In particular, we will: 

o Improve our use of technology to support new ways of working and 
customer interactions 

o Rationalise our property and encourage the co-location of public 
sector services, and define our policies for disposing of assets to 
assist community groups in developing proposals for delivering local 
services themselves 

o Exploit internal and external opportunities to find savings by moving 
more functions into Oxfordshire Customer Services  

• Collaborative Working – identifying opportunities to work with others to 
deliver services more effectively and develop innovative approaches to 
common issues, whether through formal partnership arrangements or more 
informal collaborative arrangements. 

• Equalities – we will meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, including 
publishing a new equalities policy and related performance information

Page 28



 

  Page 21   

 
Delivery of this plan 
 
Principles 
In delivering the priorities set out in this plan the Council is committed to the 
following principles: 
 
• Low taxes – reducing year-on-year the annual increase in council tax to 

ease the burden on local people, including a freeze in 2011/12 and 2012/13  
• Real choice – ensuring residents receive the services they need, in ways 

that best suit the varying needs of different people and communities. This 
means more and more services will be delivered by providers other than 
Oxfordshire County Council and we will increasingly put power in the hands 
of individuals and communities to purchase the services they need or to run 
services themselves 

• Value for money – we will have an absolute focus on ensuring services are 
efficient and delivering value for money for local people 

 
Values 
 
The way that our staff behave is guided by six underpinning values: 
 
• Customer focus – putting the needs of our customers at the heart of 

everything we do and improving opportunities for local people to have their 
say and get involved with council decision-making 

• Honesty – being open and transparent about how we operate, prepared to 
admit where we need to do better and communicating the reasons if we are 
not able to meet the needs of local communities 

• One team – working collectively as a council and valuing and developing 
our staff to perform to the best of their abilities 

• Innovation – challenging the way that things have always been done, 
encouraging and embracing new approaches to meeting the needs of 
customers, making the delivery of services more efficient and effective 

• Can-do – seeing problems and issues as opportunities and looking for 
solutions, rather than viewing difficulties as obstacles to what we want to 
achieve 

• Efficient and effective – making the best use of our reduced financial 
resources by harnessing the skills and experience of our staff to help 
individuals and communities access or arrange the services they need, 
learning from our successes and constantly challenging ourselves to do 
better 

 
This year we have amended ‘Involvement’ to become ‘Innovation’ to reflect the 
need for staff to develop innovative solutions to service delivery and new ways 
of working in the tighter financial circumstances. 
 
We continue to use intelligence so that where possible we reflect people’s 
needs and preferences in the way they are able to access services and where 
appropriate, to identify where communities might be able to do things for 
themselves about issues that matter to them. Within the wider context of finding 
more efficient ways to deliver services, mapping patterns of usage has been 
critical over the past year, and has helped inform significant changes to our 

Page 29



 

  Page 22   

services for young people and our library services to focus on hubs in key areas 
of population in the county.  
 
Measuring progress 
Many of the priorities for action identified in this plan are about achieving a 
tangible improvement in outcomes. These are listed in Annex A along with 
details of measurement. Progress on these issues will form the basis of the 
regular quarterly performance reports that are provided to the Council's Cabinet. 
 
Other priorities for action are harder to measure; they seek behavioural / cultural 
change within the council or identify a need to respond to shifts in national 
policy. A qualitative assessment of progress against these issues will be 
provided at the end of 2012/13. 

Page 30



 

  Page 23   

Finance 

Day to day spending 
Our spending plans 
Our Medium Term Financial Plan 2012/13 to 2016/17 
http://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s14637/Annex%202.pdf sets out 
how resources are allocated in accordance with the council’s priorities. Our 
financial planning reflects: 

• the allocation of sufficient funding to resource our key strategic priorities; 
• the need to fund adequately our core service requirements; 
• our commitment to council tax payers; 
• the financial resources forthcoming from Government; and 
• our on-going commitment to achieve efficiency savings to ensure 

improved value for money and service provision. 
 

We plan to spend £982.5 million in 2012/13 on the services set out below. 

Children, 
Education & 
Families 
£561.8 
(including 
£412m that 
goes directly 
to schools)

Social & 
Community 
Services 
£258.3

Environment 
& Economy 
£102.6

Chief 
Executive's 
Office £10.2

Costs of 
Financing 
Capital & 

Movements in 
Reserves 
£49.6

How we Spend your Money (£982.5m)

 
Our funding 
To deliver our spending plans, we receive money from a number of sources as 
shown in the graph below. 
 
Funding from the Government totals 60%; other income from fees, charges and 
interest earned accounts for 10%. The amount to be raised through Council Tax 
in 2012/13 of £288.5m equates to 30% of our total funding. 
 

Page 31



 

  Page 24   

 
 
 
 

Capital 

The Council’s Capital Strategy sets out the County Council’s capital investment 
plans and explains how the Council intends to maximise the value of its limited 
capital resources to support the achievement of a Thriving Oxfordshire and the 
priorities set out in this plan.  

 
This Capital Strategy, despite the challenging economic and financial 
environment, emphasises the significant contribution that the capital programme 
can make in delivering corporate priorities and in bringing benefits for wider 
communities. It seeks to ensure that resources are used in the most efficient 
way and they support the Council’s objectives most effectively. It sets out a 
robust, relevant and sustainable financial policy and strategy that aim to get 
most out of the scarce capital resources over the next five to ten years. 
 
http://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s14588/Annex%2010.pdf 
 
The council intends to spend £415.6m (excluding money spent directly by 
schools) on capital investments in Oxfordshire between 2011/12 to 2016/17. 
The projects included in the capital programme are wide-ranging, covering all 
areas of the council’s activity (for example on roads, libraries, fire stations), and 
all areas of the county. 
 

 

Page 32



 

  Page 25   

Annex A: Measuring progress 
 
Many of the priorities for action identified in the corporate plan are about 
achieving a tangible improvement in outcomes as outlined below. Targets will be 
set where appropriate. Progress on these issues will form the basis of the 
regular quarterly performance reports that are provided to the Council's Cabinet 
and Strategy and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee. Other priorities for action 
are harder to measure; they seek behavioural / cultural change within the 
council or identify a need to respond to shifts in national policy. A qualitative 
assessment of progress against these issues will be provided at the end of 
2012/13. 
 

Priority 
outcome 

Priorities for 
action 

Our measures of success are 

World Class 
Economy 

Local Enterprise 
Partnership 

• The skills needs assessment is aligned to meet 
LEP and business sector needs 

• Increased number of investment enquires 
turning into investment opportunities 

• The infrastructure plan reflects the LEP and 
business sector needs 

 
Year-end assessment  
Progress on how our contribution has enabled the 
partnership to provide visible leadership and act as 
a catalyst for growth  

 Infrastructure • Deliver infrastructure framework - Districts 
charging schedules reflect OCC priorities and 
needs 

• Capital programme priorities reflect the 
infrastructure framework priorities for growth 

 
Year-end assessment  
The OCC 2012/13 infrastructure priorities are 
reflected through the district charging schedules  

 Tackling 
transport 
priorities 

• Deliver priority transport schemes  
o Cogges Link Road 
o Thornhill Park & Ride extension (and 

new hospital bus services) 
o Hinksey Hill 
o Frideswide Square 

• Number of schemes delivered and percentage 
of funding spent through the Area Stewardship 
Fund 

• Delivery of the highway maintenance 
programme as detailed in the Transport Asset 
Management Plan 

  
Year-end assessment  
• Improvement in traffic flow around major pinch 

points 
• Secure funding and investment for East-West 

rail 

Page 33



 

  Page 26   

Priority 
outcome 

Priorities for 
action 

Our measures of success are 

 Broadband • Establish the digital strategy for Oxfordshire  
• Identify and contract with a Strategic Provider 

to improve broadband connectivity to priority 
areas 

 
Year-end assessment  
• Plan in place for OCC £14M investment 
• Private sector matched funding secured 

 
 Skills Levels • Improve percentage participation of young 

people aged 16-19 in education or training 
• Increase the number of all age Apprenticeship 

starts in the county  
• Reduce the percentage of Young People Not in 

education Employment or Training 
 

 Educational 
Attainment 

• Improved educational attainment at, 
o Key Stage 1) 
o Key Stage 2)  
o Key Stage 4)  

• Improved number of schools classified as good 
or better by 10% 

 
Year-end assessment  
Progress in implementation of the Education 
Strategy 
 

Healthy and 
Thriving  
Communities 

Implications of 
changes to the 
health service 

Year-end assessment  
• Public Health move into OCC 
• Progress of new Health and Well-being board 

and new commissioning arrangements 
 

Improve health 
outcomes 

Year-end assessment  
Measures as defined in the director of public 
health annual report 
 

Demographic 
change 

Year-end assessment  
• Changes to how day services are provided 
• Provision of extra care housing 
 

Breaking the 
cycle of 
deprivation 

Year-end assessment  
Progress as reported in the director of public 
health annual report 
 

Protection and 
safeguarding 

Adult Safeguarding 
• Increased proportion of people who use 

services who report they feel safe each year 
(4A) 

• Improved performance against the basket of 
priority safeguarding indicators  

Page 34



 

  Page 27   

Priority 
outcome 

Priorities for 
action 

Our measures of success are 

 
Children’s Safeguarding – improved 
performance against the basket of priority 
safeguarding indicators (these include Child 
protection processes, Improved outcomes for 
looked after children, Number of children in need) 

 
Attendances at emergencies* by a fire engine sent 
from the nearest fire station to be made within 
target response times 
(*not all incidents we attend are considered as 
emergencies) 
 

Prevention • 365 more people alive because of a reduction 
in deaths caused by accidental dwelling fires 
and road traffic collisions  

 
Adults 
• Reduce the number of permanent admissions 

to residential and nursing care homes, per 
1,000 population (2A) 

• Delay and reduce the need for care and 
support through a basket of priority indicators 

 
Children (Early Intervention Service)  
• Improve outcomes for vulnerable children and 
young people and families with additional and 
complex needs (reported through the basket of 
priority indicators) 

 
Personalisation • Increase the proportion of people of who use 

services who have control over their daily life 
(1B) 

• Improve overall satisfaction of people who use 
services with their care and support (1C)  

• Improve performance on the basket of 
indicators to measure the personalisation of 
care 

 
Road Safety • Reduce the number of people killed or 

seriously injured on the roads 
 

Localism Act Year-end assessment  
Our response to implications of the Localism Act 
 

Big Society  • Number of Community projects supported by 
the Big Society Fund 

Environment  Waste • Decrease the amount of waste sent to landfill 

Page 35



 

  Page 28   

Priority 
outcome 

Priorities for 
action 

Our measures of success are 

management • Increase the amount of waste recycled and 
composting  

 
Year-end assessment  
• Progress on waste incinerator and household 

waste centres programme 
 

Increase energy 
efficiency and 
reduce emissions  

• Reduce corporate energy consumption level 
• Secure increased quantity of renewable energy 

supply 
 
Year-end assessment  
• Progress update on reduction in the council’s 

carbon footprint 
 

Protecting the 
environment and 
Effective 
management of 
natural resources 
 

• Minerals & waste strategy development reflects 
the needs of the county (progress against 
basket of process indicators) 

• Increase the number of volunteer days to 
support the rights of way network 

 
Year-end assessment  
• Outcome of the inspectors report to 

agree adoption and implementation of the 
M&W strategy (April 13) 

 
Efficient 
Public 
Services 

Delivering our 
savings target 

• Achievement of budget savings agreed by 
Council Feb 2012 

 
Business 
Strategy 
• Improve our 

use of 
technology 

• Rationalise 
our property 
and 
encourage 
the co-
location of 
public sector 
services 

• moving more 
functions into 
Oxfordshire 
Customer 
Services 

 
• 100% of office based staff will be able to work 

more flexibly through the use of more efficient 
communication tools  

• Reduce the cost of the property portfolio by 
25% whilst using our property to deliver the 
Council’s broader objectives and support 
service delivery 

• Percentage of main contact channels managed 
by the customer service centre 

• Customers are satisfied or very satisfied with 
overall service for the customer services centre 

Collaborative 
working 

Year-end assessment  
Progress in working with others to deliver services 
more effectively 

Page 36



 

  Page 29   

Priority 
outcome 

Priorities for 
action 

Our measures of success are 

 
Equalities  Year-end assessment  

Meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 
 

 

 

Page 37



 

  Page 30   

 
Further information 
This Corporate Plan provides a high level summary of the strategic issues facing 
the council and the organisational responses planned for the medium term. It 
does not provide details of the ongoing service commitment across more than 
100 activities for which the county council is responsible. For more information 
see the following documents and links that complement this Corporate Plan:   

1. Information about Oxfordshire County Council 
 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/aboutyourcouncil  
 

2. Summary of Supporting Strategies, including Directorate Business Strategies 
 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/improvingourperformance  
 

3. Medium Term Financial Plan 
 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/links/public/financialplans  
 

4. ‘This is Oxfordshire’, key facts about Oxfordshire 
 

www.oxfordshireobservatory.info/aboutoxfordshiredata  

 

  
 

Page 38



�
�
�
�
�

�
����������	�


��
������
���

	�����	���������

�

�����
���
����

��

� �
�
�
�������	
��	���
����

��
�������	�����	��������

���
��
���������������������

�
�

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



�
���������	�
��

���� �� �
�����
������

����������	�
��
������
���	�����	���������
�����
����������


��������	�������������

�����������������������
��

���

���������������
���

�
�����	������	����

�� �

����
�!��

"�����
�
�������
������������������	��	�����������
��
��������#����

#�
���
������
����	���
����#�		����$��

�� �

����
�!�

�����
��

��
����#�������
���
����
�
����
��
����
���

�
�����	������	��������	�
��

��%�

�&����������
�

������������'���
��
��������
����

�����$�!�

�����������������
����������������	�����	�������������������������������� �����
�����������!�� �"�����������#�����������$��������%������
������������&�

�� '����������������

������������	�����	��������(�
�� )�������������������������������������������������������������*�����

	���������
��������(�
�� )����	�����������������������������������������������*�����
�������%�

+

��������������������(�

"��������

�
������
�
����#������
���
����
�
����
��
�������	�
��

�����������#�����������
�����
����
������$�(�������������
������#�$
��
���������������
����	��$���
�
����
�������
��������������		����	�������

�

$�������
����
������
$
��$�����������	�����$�!�

�����	��������
	���
��
���)�*������+�
���$������	�������

��������������
�
��	�����������
,��������	�����$�

	������������		������$�������#������	�����
�������
���
����!�-���
��
�	�
����
��
�����$�
�����	�����$��������$����������
���
������
������	
��	�$
��
�����!�
"��������
�%��

���������������	�������������
����

��
��	
��	���
�	���
����$�	
��	�
����$�!������������������	
��	��
�����	�������
����������
�������
����
$��$��
��

��
	�
$����+��
�����#������
���

������������������������

���
���
�����������
�
���

�!�

��

�$�
����		����������$�����	������	������.�
���$��
��.��
�	
��	�$
��
����������
���
��
������������
/
�
�����������+!�

-����������������
����
������$�%��������������������������#����
�������������
��	���
��
#�
����

�	�������������������$��
�	��$
����		���

����������
�������!�

������
����������$�%���������$�	�����

�
������
���'�����
�������#�
��
	���

�	���%�

����#��

$
������������
����	��
	�������
�����	��#��
��
�
����

���������
�����	����!�

����������	�
��

��������
���

��
������������'�!�

"������������������������
��

��������������	����
��
����
��������

�������)
����!��"���
�

�����
������������������ �	����	���
����	������������#����	�������-�		����$��
�
�����
�������������
�

�����!�"��������
��

����	���
���	�������%��
���������
����������#����
��$��$(����
�������������
��������%��
���
�$����
������
�����	���!��

"��
����
����/
����������

�����

����	�%�������!�

�
!�0
�������1�-�		����
��
���

�
�����	������	����

�� �

����
��
�
�����
�����!�

���������������������������������������� ����
������������	�
�������������
�����
����	��������������������������

Page 40



�
���������	�
��

���� 2� �
�����
������

,��������
�
,������� -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- .�

,�������/�+�����������������,��

����---------------------------------------------------------------- 0�

,�������1�+�2���#��������,��
���	������*�����------------------------------------------------------- 3�

,�������.�+�4����
����
��&��*���������,������

�����*��� ---------------------------------- 15�

,�������0�+������������������	�������� ----------------------------------------------------------------- 1.�

,�������6�+��
����
&�)���7��8����
�����(----------------------------------------------------------- 19�

,�������:�+�;��������<�

�����������---------------------------------------------------------------------- .1�

�

Page 41



�
���������	�
��

���� 3� �
�����
������

,�������/�+�����������������,��

����-�

'������������
�����
���
����
�
���
���

�
�����	������	��������	�
��

����������$�	�$���������
���		��$����
�����
���
�������������$

#��$������
������

�

��
��
��
	��
���
�	��
���� �

����
�!�"��������	�����$������	
�$�	���������$

�����	����
�����
�����$�������	��
��������)
����%�������
������	����
��������������		��$��
��
�����$���$���
�������
�
���������������
��
	��
���
�	��������������
������$��$�� �������
�����������
���
�
�����	�����

�����!�

)����������������������������� ������������������������������
������������,��

����(�

�� ���������
�
��
	��
���
�	������ �

����
���
���������
�$

#����� ������!��
�� ����$

#���������������
�
����
�	���$���4�5�����

�$�	�����	����#��������

6�$	�������
�$�%��
����������������������
���������
��������
���������
�������
	������������
������������	����
�������������
��������
�	
�������������	���������
����������� !����	���������������	���"���

����������������������������
������

"�#�
���	���$	
�����������������	����
����������������������������
���%��

�� ���������������
��
	��
���
�	����������
��	���
���	�
��
���������
����
����%�
#�������������������
���
�����������

���������	�����
���������
���
��
�$
!�

�� �����
���
����
��$��

�
	��
���
�	�����
��������
'��	��#�����$�%�
����$����
�����
	�������
������
����
��	���!����������
����

��
������	�����
�������
���	���
�!�
����������
#�������$�
����!�

�� �	��
���
�	��
�$��	�������������� ��������	� ��	��
��$��
����
���������	��
�

��������
����������	��������
�����������������������������������������
������	
����
��
����

����	
�$�����
����	�!�����#�$���
���
��
����
���������

�7��
����
�����������������!�

�� ������
�����$������
�
����
�	���
����$�$��������
��$��

��	��
	���
����������

�	�����������������

���
	�����
�����
���	�!�1����
����������
�	���
��
�	��
	��������	���!�-���
��������������
���������
�����%�
�	�����������
�
	�����
�!�+���

���
�����	����
�
���
���
�����������
���#

'�#�������'���
�
	�����
��$��
����	�������������������!�

�� ���������		��$����
���������������#�
	��
��
�
��
�����!������
����������#��
�
��������������
������
�
����	�����
������������
������������
���
������������
���	��
����	��
	���������
��������	�
��
��

�!�

�� ���
���
��#������
����
������
���

�	���

�
	��
���
�	������		���
���
��������+�
�����
���	���
���������!�������	��'�
��������
������
��#�

�������
���
�
�������$���
�!���

�� ��������
���
�������

������	��
	���
��	���
��	����$����
�
�	��
���������
�
�������$��������

��
���
�!�

�� ���
�������$

#��$������
�
����
�	��#��������������������)
�����#�
�
�7��
��
��������
���#����
$��$��
��������!�

Page 42



�
���������	�
��

���� �� �
�����
������

<�������-�
�����
		
#��$����
�����		�����#�
	����

�!��8�$�
������
#�����������
�
����
�	���$���
4�5�
����$����
���������
�!��
������������
����� ��
�������
����������
�����#������
� �

����
�%�#����-���������$�����$
����������
�������������)������
���	
#�����
���!��
���������
����������������
��
�		�
����
��$

#������/������
�����������
��	����
�$�!�
�

;������/�+�
��=����������
������+�>��
���$���	�����������������������+����������������������
���%���	����155?���������������?6������������*���

�
�

;������1�+�������������	����
�����������%������%�����������	����
�������������������
��%����
��������������-�

�������
�����,������������
������*�����@�����,�������>���������������������	�

���
�����$�155.+50

�

���

�%���

�%���

�%���

�%���

2%���

2%���

3%���

3%���

�%���

�		�9�
��� �&3 �&�� �:&33 3�&:3 :�&;3 ;�&43 4�5

6 �������
��<=>

�
�

��������������
������
���
���
���	���
����������������� �
���
����
��
��?
��	�
����

�������$���!��8

�� ���	�%��������
�$���$��
������
�
������
��$�����
���
���
�������@������4:������������
�$���$��
������
�
�����
���$�����
�����'�$�����43!�
)
���
���#��������
�
���$���
��
�:�%�����
�
���$���
��
�4�����2!���������

��
	�'�	���
�
�7��
������#���
�����'�$������3��������

��	�'�	���
�
�7��
������
���
���

Page 43



�
���������	�
��

���� :� �
�����
������

�	�������!������
�
��
��
�A�����3��������

��	�'�	���
����������
�����'�$��������
�������

��	�'�	���
����������
���
��!�������������
������

�

��
��
��
	��
���
�	��
��������
��	���
��$

#�%������
����
��
�����	��������
���	���
���
��������#�#����
��
�
��$�����$��#�		����
����!�����
�	���
	���
������
�#

'��
$����
����
��%���
����	�
	��
#����������+!�

'��A����������������,��

����A����

���
��������	�����	��������(�
�

�����������	���� !� "#�
�

!$�������$�������������������������������	������%�����������$���������������	��$���
������#����%��������$�������$����������������������������������	������$���������
������������������	������	���%����		���%���#�
�

����
�������

���������������
���$��	��
�
��		���������!������������
�����	������
�

�������$���
�!��������
�(�
�

�!� �
�������$���������#��
���
����	�������������	���������%���������$����
��
���������'�������������������������!�

�!� 1��������$������������
����������
�������������$����!$!���

�$����
	��
�������
���

$
����������� ��
�������������

�����!�

2!� �����$������$	������
����
������
�

����������$
�	����

���� �

����
�.�����	���
����

��
���������	����������$���������)
���������

��
	���	�$����<� �
���������
�	��
�
���
��������
�������� �	�������
$���>!�

3!� 8�����$��
	���
���#������
�������	��������
���	���
�������
�$�������#�
����
���$	����
����!�

�!� -

'��$���������$	
���#�����������	�������		����$��!�
:!� )
�����$�����

���.�	
#.�
����
�������

���
������
����

�$���
�������&���&

��
������
�����
�
�����	�����
�!�
;!� 9�	�����$�.���
����.���
�������

������
��
���
�����
���������������������

��/

����#����.������	���.���
�������

���
���#����
�
�
��
�����
�������
�
������
���$�������������	������
��������	������	������#����$
������
�!�

4!� 9�	�����$���
������#������
��.�	
��
��
��
��.�#��	����	���
��$��
��
�%���$��
7��	������
�����!�

A!� )
������
���$���
����������$���$��������������
���������
��
���
���%�����
��������������������	���
��
��� �	�����
���	��!�

��!�?

'��$�����		�$���	�����#��
���
�B686BB�?+��
��������

��
�����
��
������
.������.��
���
���
�����
������$���
���#������
�����������
�!������������
��
�
�
���
��������������
���
�
�����������	�����
��%���������	������		�������
��

���

�	�!�����������	����

�� +�	��
���

�	������������	����
��C6�

��
�,��!�
�� ,��
���

�	���
��
���	�����!�
�� B���

�	���

���
��������������	������
��
���	�����!�
�� B���

�	���

��
����
���	������
���
���
�<����
����	�
�#


�����

� �

����
�>!�
�� B���

�	���������	�����
����

��
���	���
�!�

<�9�	

'��$����
���

�	��������#
&��$����#

�%���������������
���	����	�����
�	���	�
�
���	������
������
���������
���

�	��#��
��7��	��������
����#�����$>!�

��!�-

'��$������
���
�����#�����
�������

����
��
����
�!�
��!�)�
��$��

�� �

����
�.����
�
����������

���$��
	�����
�!�

Page 44



�
���������	�
��

���� ;� �
�����
������

�2!�-

'��$�#����
	��
���
�	���
���������
���
�����
�����
�
#��������#��
���
�#��
�������

���
��
��
!��

�3!�8
������$�
����$��7��	�������&
�&	������
�!�
��!�)
�����$����	���������#������
���������������
�#�
������
�
#��
��
�
�����
�

��	��������	���!�
�:!�"���������$���������$������
��
�����
��
���
�

$�������
���������'��D��
��/����

������+��������	���
���	���
�!��"������	�'���
����

�%��
����$%�������
������

��������
����������
����$�������
��%��
���
����	!�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;���������
��������(�
"�������
�(�
�� ������
��������
#�#�		&
��
$�������������$�
���
�������

�����!��
�� � �

����
�����������$

���

$
�������
��
$�����$���������		��$����
	��
�!�
�� ��
���
�����#

'��$������

�$�������
�������
�����������������������	���	��

�
��
�����
�!��-�����������
��

��������
���
��$������������
���
���

�$��������#�
���	�������-�		����$�9
�
��!�

�� �������

������
��$

����
���

�
�
���
�
�������	�
������
��
$�������������
��
�����������#�	�
������
��������
��
�
����������
��������	���	���������������������
��
�
�.��
��'�!������#

'��������
������
���
���
��$������!�

�� �
�������������
����������������
�����$���
������<�!$!�������#��
#�	���
�����$�
�

$
����>���������������
�����
������<�!$!�.�	��/���.>��
��������
���
�

��#�		!�

�� ������
��
����
�	��#�����������������	�
����

���$�������	�������������������$

���
#����

�����
���'��������

#�
�!�������������
��������������!�

�

�
#���
(�
�

�� -��������
���������������

����
����
�	����		��$���#������
����
��
������#���
6�$	���.�����	��������
���	���
������������������!��������.��	�
��B��

�.�
��$�	�$����%��������������	���
���

������	���	������.�
��&������&�
���&
�&��	���
�.���+�
�������#�������
���	���
���������#��������$���&'������������&������$�����
��
���
	����

���
�!������������
#������	�����
�
���
�$$	����
�����$��������
��
��
��
�	�����������
$���

���
�����	����
��
���������
�����	��

��
�
���
��

����
�!��

�� ����������
���
������	�/
����#

'��

�
	��
���
�	����������		������
������
�
�.�$���$�
+��������		�.���
���$�%��������������

�#��'�
������
���	�����$��������������
��
�
��
����
���	����
��
����#

'��

#�
�!�������������
����
��������!�

�� -��������	�
������
���������������$
���������
��
���
��������
���
�	�������

�
� �

����
���

�������
��
��
	��
���
�	���

��		����	�������

�

$�������
��!�-���
���
�����#��������
��
�������
�����
���������
���
�����'��
������
���

$
���!������
������������/

��
�

�����

�������#����	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!���

�� -������������
���
�'������
�$�����	�������������)
��������#����.����
����,���
�	�
�
�����	.���
�������

�������/

��������.+�����	��������+���
&������	���.���
�������

�
������#!�"�������$
�����

���
����������
����
��		��
��
#�����
�����	��
��
�
�
�


����%�������������
���
��#
&��$����#

�!�9�������#������
�	�������������
�
����
�����	����
����
���%�#��������
�	

'���
���		�����
���

�	�
������

��
���
�
���	������
���
���
��		�
��#������
������� �����
*���
���!��-��������
�����
��
����
�$�����	��������#������$��7��	������
���������

����	���!��

Page 45



�
���������	�
��

���� 4� �
�����
������

����������������
/-�����������
����������	����������
�������)�

������2�����
9��1�
��������� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	�������	�������
�������������$

������������		������$�����
���'���

#�
���
������	�#

'������#�		���'��
����������
���		�
��������������!��+��������		���������$

�����
�	�(�

�� 9��	���������	���
���	���
�������	�����	��
������
���$�,

���
��
������������
#

'��$��
$����
�#������+��

����
��
����%�
���
���
������

����
������
�
	����
������

%����	���
��
������������������
�
�!�

�� �$
����	��
�
���
��������
��������

�������
$�����

�����%����2��������3�
#�����������
$����
��������

���
���		�

$���E���
�����������$	����
����
�!�

�� +����	��
�	
��	��
�/���

�����

������
���
��������
��������
�

������
��
$���!����
�

�������$��������������
�	������
���

�������
��

�������	��	��
��

�$���������	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!�

�� 6���
��������	�����
���

�������
��


�����


���
�

�����!�
�� ����#

'��

$
�����
�	�����	���������
������
���$�
���
������	���
������

#�����#�		(�
�� �
�����������������
	��
���
�	����

�$����
�����$�����������E���
��

�

$
����<�!$!���
�����$��

$
��������������9
#�	���
�����$����	���
����'�����������	��/���>!�

�� ���
��������������
�
����
�
��
���
�����	����������

�!�
�� ���
���
�������������
����������������
��������#���
��������������

�


	��
���
�	�!�
�� ���
���
�����������
����
�������		�
���

�	�
�����#�		����	

'������

�����������		����������
����'��!�
�� ����
�������	��$����
���
�����	�������
��������E���#��	��7��	�������'����

��$������������$�
����

���	������
�����
��
����
���
��
������!�
�� ��
��$�����������
���	��
���

��$������
��

	�
��������	���&�
&������	����


���

�	���

�
	��
���
�	���
������7��	���������	�������$�������
��!�
�� ��
#������
��������
��
������������
��
�����	�

����������
���������
��


������������
���
���$��
��������	
�$&��
����
�����������E��!�
�� ����
��$

�����&
�&	������
��������$��7��	������
���

���
�	��#����

��������!�
�

1-�����������
����������	���������	���������,
�����
�,�������������@�����
9��1�
��������� �

����
�.��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

�����
�	�������		����$�$���
���/
�����	�����$���

�$���������	�������-�		����$�9
�
���

����

���$�������
��
��

	��
���
�	������ �

����
�%�������
�	���	�����$���
�	�
����#�
��������
����
������
��	�&
���

�	�%�,��
���

�	�������
���	������
��
���	�����
���

�	���

�� �

����
�.��
�
��	���
�!�
�

.-� ����	����������
��
���'�*�
*������
9��0����������������	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
��������������	���
"��
	�������9
�
�������		����$�$���#����
	��
���
�	����

�������)
�����������������
�
����
���
�����
������
����#����
���	�����
������	�����$��

����!�
�

0-� ������������������

����
9��+�������
������� �

����
�.��0
�������	������
���#�����+�
������)
��������
��
�	����
�����E���������	�������-�		����$�9
�
�.���

��$��������

���
��
��
	��
�
��
�	��������
�	��� ������
������	���
���
�����E�����
��
�����	���������
������������
�������
��
��������
�����
��!�

Page 46



�
���������	�
��

���� A� �
�����
������

,�������1�+�2���#��������,��
���	������*������

'������������
�
���
��������	�
��

�����������������������

��
�����
����$��������

���
���		�


$�������
���
��.9
��'��$�����)��	��
�����
�����
�.!��
-�����
�#��������������F�-��������������������)
��������
���
����
�	�����	�����		�
�����
�
��#�
���#��
���
���	�����������$�������


�
�	�������������
���������
�
#���

��$���
���
���
�$���
���
�!��
���
���
��

����������
#��������������
����
�
���
�����
���
�	�������
���
��9����
������� �

������	�
$�
���
'����
#��!�
�

����������$�����������$
���������

$�������
�������������
������
����������
��$�����$��
����
�&��������
��
����
���������
���!�����
��
�		�
�/������������
�����
�
	���	&���������
�����

�������)
�����#��
���
����	�!�
�

����7�����
���
����%�A�����������

���������$������*��%����
*�����A-�
�

�����������
�����������
����#�
������7�����
�!�
�

!$���&������	����	�%�����������������������'��(��������	������������	��$��
���	������	�����$������������	����	���������������	����	�$����$��������������
����#�
'�����������	����%������������������	������	������������������	�)����%���������
�$����	
�������$������������$��	�������������������������������������*��$��������
�������������	#�

)����������������������������� ��������������������������2���#��������
���
���	������*�����(�
���������
����#����������	��	�������0
����+�
���$��������������������������$���
�����
��	'��$��

���!��G����������

���

������������
�����
���
����������
#�����(�

'���������/�+�,��
��
�*�����
����)
����.��)��	���
��
���+�
���$����
#����������� �

����
�����
���
����%::��
���	�
���	����$�����
��
��%�#���������	�
�����H�
���		����	�
�����������
����!�<�
��
������
�����������	����$�������
����
	��#����:�H�	����������������
�$���
����
	�����
���>!���
����� ��
������
���
��
�������
��/������
���	��'�
���
���%���*����
���	�������������

�
�
��$���
�	��&����
��$���
�
����
���������$������	
��	�#

'��
������������������
�
		
#��I�
��
��J!�"�*��#���*������
�
�	���%��
��#���*������
�
����'����
���K!�
�

8
�
�
���
����������	�
���	����$�����
��
���	�������
�
��
#�����������)��������
���������
	�������
�
�	��
���!�<��%2����������)���%�9����
������	�
$�
���
'����
#�������2%23�����

�
�	��
���>!���������	
#��
���
����
���������
��	����
�$�%�������
����
������#����
��
���
�������
�������		������
�����	���
��
��������

�!���

�� �
������������	����!1.B"��	����
����������	����,����!6?55����
����"�����

�*���������*����-��

�� ����%����������	���$��������2��������������������������������������
%�����16B����>��
����	���
�*�
���	����
����*����$�����������2�������
�������$�2������C�������

�$�2
��#�����D���$�,��	��$�,������

$�,�%
���
4����$�'		
���;��
��$�D���
�����$�D�����

��$� ����	��
��2���#$��������

�C�
'		
��$����������,�
������-�

���������������������������������������� ����
��"�����������%��������
�$��������������1������#����������������	��
������
��$��
���		��
����
	�����
����

Page 47



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

������������

���
#���	��
	�������
����#��
��
�
��������
���������
�����
��������
�
�
��'��������	��
�����
�����
�!�

'���������1�+�8�����
���
�� ������>��������$�>��
�������������������
������

�������������	��������

�
��
��
�		�	�������������

�
�
��
��$���
�	�!�9���$����
�������
�%����	
�����������
�����$���	����
��

������
��$���
�	��#���������'�		��
�����������
������
���
���������	��
�����
�����
�!�����
��
�		������
����

�������
)
������������

�������������A��
		
#��$��
�����������
�%��������	
��
�	

'�#������
�����
�������
#��#��
��������/

��

�	����	��!�9����
�%��
���		������������$���
�
����
��� �

����������
�����������$��
���
�����$��
���
��$���
�	��#�
��
���
�����
�������
�%����	
������

��
�����$�������	��#��
���������)
����!��B������������
��
����9����
���
������
�	���	�����#��
��
������
�����		����
�����$!���
�

�!AH��
��$���
�	������ �

����
���$����:&�4�#�
���	�������������66���������&��!��
�����#�����$��
����������+
����6�������
�$��
���!3H��

������������
�
������	
#�
�
���������6�$	�������
�$�%�#�����#���
��

�������;!2H������������
������!�
�

;������.�+�
�����������	�8�����
���
�� ������>��
������$�>���������������������


�����������	�����������
������������
������$��������������������������15/5+/$����
���
����!�����
���������	������������	������
E������"

�

�

3

:

4

��

��

�3

9�
��
�

�

9�
��
���

@G
��	
��$
�
�

-
���
��
@6
��
��
��
@-



��
�

�'

)�

��

�

�@
9�

�


�
@)
���
���
$��




�
�

��
��

�

��
��
�@-

��	
��$
�
�

��
��$
�

�@9

�

���
���
	�

��
�	�
�@+


�
���
$�)


�
�

�@
-



��

��

@-
�		
��$
�


�

-
��
��
$�
@8
�

��$
�

�@,




��

��
��
��$
�
�

@-
��
��	
��

)

#	
��
@"��
	��
�<"
+"
+>

�


��
��
 �


�
@)
��
�


@9

�
	��

� 
�


��
+

���
�6
��
�


���
���

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�	
��
��
�
��

0��&��

+��&��

���&��

1�
&��

�

'���������.�+�F����
�����������2���	���,
�������-�
9���$����
�$�	�
�#

'���	������������	����������	�����
����

�������
�	����������������
�
���	����
��
��'��������	��
�����
�����
�!������
����
����
�	���	�����$�0
��+��'�
��
�		
#�����<0+�>����6�$	����������������	����$��	
#	���������������'������
�	����A%�
�����������
������	���		���
�����
��$�����&�������������		���
����
�&
������
��	���	�!��
���������
�
����
�	���	�����$������	
������������������� �

����
������	�
$�	��
��



�������
��	��
�������

�$������
������
�%����%�����'��		�%������	#����
��������
#�		���	
#�����6�$	�������
�$�!��
�

��%�*��$�������������	��������������*���������������	�����
���
�������
������#�����

�%�����!���"�%���������%�

����*��>��
�����*������$�
�������

������������	�����,��������2������-�
�

Page 48



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

8

�� ���	�%��!AH�
����
�	��
��#

'��$��$�����9	��'��
��?�����
���	�����$�0
��
+��'�
���		
#����%�3!:H�����

�����	��9


'�����3!4H����9����
��B���
��%�
�
���
���#�������� �

����
��
����
���!4H��������6�$	����
����
��2!;H�<��$�
���
�

��������

�-

'����������
��%���
�	�����>!�

'���������0�+�>���������
������������
;������0�+�@,�>������������

����������	
�	�
����	��������	�	��	�	�	�����	����
����	���������	��	 
������

��

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

��

��
��
��
��
��

��
�
�
��

��
��
��
�

�

��
���
���
�
�
�
�
��
��

 �
���
���
��
��
��
��
���
� !

""

��
�#

$

��
��

%�
��

�
��
��
��&

!�
��
���

%�
���
���
'�
��

��
� �
(
(
��
��&

��
��
���
��&
���
)))

*��
���
�+
� �
,�
��

#�
��!
�-
.��
��
�� 
�(
��
���
��
���
�

-.
��
��
�'�
��
!�/
��
�

0!
�(
��
�&
��
�
�
��
��

&
��
��
��
��1
��

�
��
��
��2
��
3�

&

��
��
��/
��
�!
�(
��&

��
��
��
�4

 
������

��
��
��

��
��

���


���5

����

��������	�
���
�������������������������
������
�����������

�
�

"����������������
�
���
��$���
�	����������$����	�������,)+6��#����$
�����
���L&)�
���	����$�6�$	��������1���������
���������	�
����		��
����
������)
��������������A!�
����
�	��� �����
��#�������"��	��@)
#	���	
��	�������� �

��#�����#�		������
������� ��
���
*�������	�
��

�!�������������������		��#�������		����	�����������
#�������		���		�
�$����������
��	��
����!���
�

����������
����
#�%����
���
�����		����
'������
���������#���������
�����
����
������
�
����!�������������
���������

���� �

�@)���

@9
�	����
���

��������#�������
��$�������
�������	����#������+
����6����� �

���
���#������
��
������#�
���
��
9	��'��
��?���%�B
�����		�����"��	��%�?���	��

�������

�����	��9


'!���
�

���
���
���	�
��
���
�������$����7��	���������������������
���������������$

��!�
�������
����
#�������$�
����#�������
#�������
���	����

��	��'%������������� ���
����������	�
���#�
����$��������	���


�
����������
�#������
����
��
��!�

Page 49



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

;������6�+�@,�>���������������>���������������

!	�
�
��	���������	�	����	����	����"����	��	������	���#��

��

��

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

5��

&!
�� 6
.�� ��
�� ����4  !
����

������	$��#��

��

! ���


���5

����

��������	�
���
��� ������������������������������������������

�

'���������6�+���������
���������
"����
���
������.���	��
�����
�����
�.%������$���
�$����������
��������		��$��������
��������&�����
���
�����		����7��	��������

�������)
����%�������������������������
���%����������*����
��*����������������������,������*��	�

���������
���*�������

����6������-��������������/

��������!�
�

���
�		������ �

����
������
��4��
������
��
�����������
�����$%��

��	�����	����#����

��������6�$	���!�� �

����
�����������;���.����.�
������

��		�?
��	�����

�������������
)
���
��������
���?
��	�����

������#����	
#�
�
�����������
�������		�
�����

���������
	��������
���#������#��
����
�����
�����
�!�
�

8

�� �

����
�������$���
�$������
��������������	�����
�	�����������
��
���
���	�
����������$�������


�	�������������

����	�
��%��
��$���
�	����������	���!������
�
���
���������	�������
#���������	�������������?���������%�����%����
�������
��
������������M��
���
����
���������������
���#�
���#�����

�������:��
�
������
�����
����
���
��%��������	����$�����&�;����
�)������������������

�
�
���
�%���������	�
�������

�����������'���
������������
��#�������$������
������
�

�	��(�����4���

�����
���
����
���
���#�������	�������
������4��������
����

��
����!������4���

�����
���
������	������#�
������� �

�%������9����
��<������$����>�
��������������-��������������
�!������#�
���#����������$�����
������
�(�

�� ,
�����
������)���	��<������$����>%�9����
��
�� �

�����	��9


'%�� �

�!�
�� +�!�1�
�.�%�� �

�!�
�� "��	���8��	��%�� �

�!�
�� 9�
�
������+�����		��� �

�!�
�� 9	��'��
��?���%�� �

�!�
�� ����
����
'%�+
����� �

����
�!�
�� -������)���
�	%�-����� �

����
�!�

Page 50



�
���������	�
��

���� �2� �
�����
������

'���������:�+�,������
���
�		��
����
���������		�����
�����
��� �

����
���
���������
���		���

�$�
�������&��!��
�����
��	������
�
���
�����
��

�����������)
�������		����3H��������&���#������
	����
�
�������		��$������H%�)
�����	�����$�����A!3H�������
$	�
������2H!���
���������
����
�����
�����$�������������

�������)
����!�����$
������������
�
��
�
�����
���
����� �

��)���%���
�$���
����
��������
��������������		��$����
�

�

��
����	����$��
�
������������������
���
���
���
�������
����!�����	���

��
�

���������
���

���
���	��������������������
��#��	������������
���
���������
$	�
��
�����
���������
	������
���

��������
��!���������
��
��	
��	��
������$�
���
��$�	�$�����
����
�����#������
����$��
��������������
��	����
�$��������	�������	
#!��
�

;������:�+�D���
�,�����	�������15/5G15//����%�����		����������/$555��������������
�����-��
������%��������������������������������
��*����������
���������������
��

� �H;����
,'�8�

���,� )��,� ��D>� ,�>�)>DD� >��
����
��>��@>�

9�
$	�
�� 3-9� ;!:� �!�� 3!3� �!3� A!:�

)
�����	�����$�� /6-0� A!;� A!�� ;!A� ��!;� ��!;�

�
�$�
�������� :-:� �!�� �!�� 2!�� 2!�� 3!��
8
��������
�

$�
�� 6-1� 0-1� �!�� �!�� 0-9� �!;�

����������$������
�����	��� ;!;� �!�� 2!3� 2!�� 3!�� 4!��

����
�
�������� /-9� �!:� �!�� �!3� �!A� �!��
����
�������

�������� 03-9� �3!�� ��!4� ��!�� �4!�� �A!2�

B
���
�� /-9� �!�� �!�� �!�� �!3� �!3�

+� ��	�
�������� /-6� �!;� �!:� �!;� �!A� �!��
N�
	������$������
������
�
�� 1.-5� A!�� A!;� A!�� �3!4� �3!4�

���������	��������
����������������
��������
		����������
	�����

�������6�$	��������-�	������#������������������

'���������9�+�'������	�4�
���
�������*������!'4�"�
����"��� �
��1�	���	�����
�����
��������
��������������
�
���������

��<������������
���
������
�����
����������$����	�
������� ��������
��>%���
�����
��
��
���
��$��
��
��
�
���%��
���	������
����$�������%����
������$	�����
�����
����

���

���������		�
�
���<��		���?
#�
�+���
���������
����D�?+��>����6�$	���!�������		
#��������
���
�
����
��'���
�	�������
�
�����
���
����

���$��
�����
�	���	�
�����
�����
�!��

Page 51



�
���������	�
��

���� �3� �
�����
������

�
;������9�+�4������%����'������	�4�
���
�������*������15/5�������

������!D���"�

�
�

Page 52



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

���������"1����

����
���
����������$���
�	�� �

����
����%��

��
��%�������	�����
�	�����
�	���!��2�3�
���
��3�3����		��
�����
����������
����H�
���
������	������	�����
#������6�$	���!���
#���
%�
���	
��
�� �������
�%�����������	������
��
������������$��
�
��������
����		��
������
�����!��

�����	��9


'�����������		��
���
��� �

��#��������
�����
������
����%������� ���;����		��
����#������
���
������
������		���		�#������
� �

��)���%�9����
������
������		��
���
������$�
�!�

'���������?�+�>��
�������������������	������
������*������
�������
����	
#���
#��������
�������

��������
��������������������
���������

��
������
����A!����
8

������������
������������	����������
	������
#��������
��������������H��
���
�
���		�����
�����#�
�����������
�$���������
	������
#��������
����������H��
���
���	�����#�
��!�
�������
����
#���	��
	������(�

�� ������
���������
���		�����
�����#�
����
����$��
���

��������
�
����������
���	������
����<�!�!�������������
������$�������
��$�
��$���
����$��
>!�

�� ����������
����	�
	������
������������
����
��
���������
��������&���
��	��

��
���������<�!$!��


��
�����
����������<)��>�������

'�����������
>!��

�

;������?�+�,���������4����
������������������*��������		
�����%�����

������
��������������������
����������	�������������*�������
����������*���E�����
��
������������	���������+�1556+3���������������

�

��

���

���

���

���

)
�
�

�	
��



��
��

��
��

�

)
�
�

+
�


'

�

�
		�
)
��

��

�
�

?�
�$

��
��

��



9

�
��

���
��

��



B
��

��

�
�


�
��
��
��

�
��

��

�

��

)
�
�
�
�

�
�$
��

���
��
��

��
��

1
��

��
	�C

��
��

��

�


�
	

�
�

�


��
��
��
��

,
��

��

�

��
�

�

��
��
��

6
 �
�

��

	��
��

��
�

"�
��
��
�

��

�C
��


�
��
���
��
��
��

��

�
��
�

�

,������	������

�
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
��
��

1
������
�����7�����	��$

��

?��������
�����7�����	��$

��

�

'���������3�+�2������;�������D�*�
��
9
����������$�$��������	�
������������������
�����	���!��������
�����$��
���
���
��
�
����������$���

���� �

����
�������$��<;AH>��
���
���#��������
��	�	���	��<;3H>%�
����������$

��
���	�!���
#���
%����
���
�����7��	��������

���� �

����
��#�����
���		�
�
���
����

���$��
��
�������������
����	�
��!��"�����A%��
����
��� �

������9����
��
#�
���������������������$���$��������	��	
#�
��
����������$�
��������������
����
��
� �

����
�!�������������������

����
�����#���������%�#

'��$�
���
��$���
�	�
�
����������
���$������
��	���
���#���������


��������'�!�������
��������#�
��
9	��'��
��?�������	���)���
��&�� �

�%��
����
����$�
�����	���)���
���&�� �

�%�
-���
����+�
$�
��&�9����
�%�����

���8��
�&�9����
�%�-����9�
�+�
$�
��D�9����
��

Page 53



�
���������	�
��

���� �:� �
�����
������

���������
���
�����	���)���
��&�9����
�!��������
�����#�������$�����
�����

��
�
���
�������

���$��
��
�������������������

������
������	���	���
��
�������������$�
��
��$�������
���#��'��
��	�����
�

8�$�
��A���
#����������� ������%��
����������$����
��������������$
�����!�������#
�
�
��	�������
#��
����������$�
������

�����#�
	���
������

�����	�����#
����
�!������
�
��
���#
�	�������
#��
����������$�
������

������
������������ �

������9����
��
��
���$������
����#��������	
#����
����!���������
#������%�#��	��������
��������
�$��
���������������%������ �
������

��
���
�����������
������
������
�����������

����

�������

��������
�
�������
���3���
�����$���
����!������������$

��
���	�!�
�
;������3�+�2�����	����������������%��������������?�%��#�$�	���1553G/5�����15/5G//�

2�����	����������������%��������������?�%��#�

2�!��H

3�!��H

��!��H

:�!��H

;�!��H

4�!��H

A�!��H

�"�������
� �8�����$�����
���
��9�
���N�����<�������> �:&4#��'�

����������	�����������������������	���	��

B
��
	�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	
��
�
��
�

� �

����
�����A@��

� �

����
������@��

9
����������$���������������

���

$
����
���A@��

9
����������$���������������

���

$
����
����@��

�

'���������/5�+������������,��
�����
9���$�
������������	��

��������
�
����	���
���������'��

����

�$�
���	���%���������

�������������������

��
���
��<����������
�3%������������
�������
���>!�"�������������
�
#��	

'����
�������
�����������	�
�����������
������
���
������)
������������
'�
��

�
#��
��
�
����

������
�����������
��
��'��������	��
�����
�����
�!�
"��� �

����
��#�������
��
���������
���		��������

	���	�
�������#
��$��(�
������
��
���
�<�

�����$��3��
��>��������
�:�<�

�����$������
���>!�
8�$�
��������������
���
��	���	��
��
����������#������������
�����#������� �

����
��
����#������������
��	����
�$�!�

���������������������������������������� ����
�����������	
��

�����	�
���

�����

��
��������
��
���������
��	
��������	���
	��	
���
������
����	��

��
�
����
��
��
�����
��
�
������
��
��
��
�����	����������	
	��	
��
��������
���

	�
��������
���������	
��

�����	�
��
�
��	��
�	
��

�����

��
�
������ �

�����	
��
!��������

���
�

��
	��
�"����
��
���
�����	
��
��	���
�!�#�$��

%��
&'�

�����	���
��(


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
$)
��
���������	
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+,
�	���
,
���
�
���
��
$)-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+/
�	���
*
���
�
���
��
$)


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
,/
��
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+)
�	���
+$
���
�
���
��
,/-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+$
�	���
0
���
�
���
��
,/


���
�����
��
	��
���	
������
������	���������
�������
��
���������	
��

�����	�
��
�	
��
	��
����
���
��	�
�����
��

���
���
����
��
�
��	��
�

Page 54



�
���������	�
��

���� �;� �
�����
������

"��
������
�����
%��		�����
������
����	
#���������
��	����
�$�!�����)������������
��$�����
����%��
		
#������)��
#�		�����-����� �

����
�!�<������
����$����$�
���

�
���4@A����-����� �

����
������	�
�����
����	��������
���%������
��������
��

���$�
�



>!�
9�����
�:��
#���
����������
������$��%�#����� �

��)������$��������	����$��
����������
����
��	����
�$��#�����	�
����������<�	�
�����H>����	�
���
�����#��������
���
�
����
������
��

���	��	
#�
��������������
��	����
�$��$

������

���������3&��H�

�������
'!�
�

;������/5�+��������������������
������������������8����155:����1553�!���������8����"-��
>��
���$���	�����������������������%��������	���������

3!�

�!�

:!�

;!�

4!�

A!�

��!�

��!�

��!�

�2!�

���:@�; ���;@�4 ���4@�A ���A@��

8���



��
��
�
��
�
�

6�$	��� � �

����
� )��
# �		 � �

��)��� +
����� �

����
� N�	��
��-������

�� -����� �

����
�
<��

6�$	���

� �

��)���

-��)

)��
#�		

� �

����
�

+��)

N�	��-������

��

�
�

;������//�+�����������������8����:����
�����155:����1553�!���������8����"-��>��
���$�
��	�����������������������%��������	���������

��!�

��!�

�3!�

�:!�

�4!�

��!�

��!�

���:@�; ���;@�4 ���4@�A ���A@��

8���



��
��
�
��
�
�

6�$	��� � �

����
� )��
# �		 � �

��)��� +
����� �

����
� N�	��
��-������

�� -����� �

����
�

<��

� �

��)���

6�$	���

� �

����
�

)��
#�		

N�	��-������

��

-��)

+��)

�

Page 55



�
���������	�
��

���� �4� �
�����
������

'��2���#��������,��
���	������*���������

���
��������	�����	��������(�

+	&������	��������#�
�

���������������7�
������
������������������
���	
7����	�(&��
2���#�����������
���	������*����������$����=���
���+����������
����

�����
	��������	��������-�
�

���������
����*���

$������������������
��������
�������������������
���������������

����������������������������
�����-�
�

-�����>�
��
$��������������		��$��
��
����������3����
������#�����>���$����
�
��'���������
�������������������$
����������

#�
�%������������	��
���������

���#�		������
�
���������������
��
�����������������������#���
���
������������

�	��!�
�

�������������		�
��
#��	���$	���������������
����
���		������������$�����
���
��
� �

��)��������9����
�������
���7����	�%���������#��
�������
�����

�����
�������
	��!��+�����#�������
��
$������������������������/

��

�	�����������)
����%�
�

�����$�#

'�������$��!�"���������	������������$
������

����
����
��
���#������
�!�
�

-��������
�$������������
���	���#����#���
����
�(�
�� ��#��������		�����������������������������	������������������

�$����
����

�
��������������
��
�� ��+����������������������	����������*��������������������
�$�������	�$��	��

����������
����
�����
������
�������
��
�����
�����$���$������&�	
��%���

��
��
�������������!�+����&�	
����������������
���	#������
��
��
������������������
#��������������
������
��
����
�%���������������	���������
��������#����#

�!�

�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������
��*�����;����
�����
��������(�
2���#�����������
���	������*�����������%�������������������=����
��#����D���
�
�������������� �����
���������	��������-�������������/

������������������		�


$�������
�����
�	����'���
������

�����!������	�
�����������
������?
��	��
���
�$
�������
�#�
��$
����
��������
�������
��#��������
��������������
�������	�����!�
"��

�������#�������������������#�#����
��#

'��$��������
��$�
���
�������

��
$����
�%������
����	�
(�

�� ��������	������
�����
���

/����#�����������
$�������	���
������������������	����
#�
��������������
���

�� -

'��
���
$������

	��#�����


��������
��	������������
�� B������
�����������$���
������
����������I�
���
�K��
����
�� 8�#�
��
��$���
�	�������#�
	���
�����6������
�%�6��	
�����������
�����$�

<�66�>�
�� 0
��)	����	��'��$�#����	
��	����	
��
���
�
���
�
��

����������
�� ���
�����������%�����
������������
	�����
��$�
��

����������

��
��$���
�	�!�
�� 9�������������������	��	���

��)���E�����������9�
���������

�����,��

�
�����������9����
�����#�		����� �

��
�� 8�
���
�?
��	��
����$
�������
�#�
��������$�����$����������	��	���

��'�		��

����	
�������������

���$����	
����	���!�
�

�
#���
�����#����#

����
�������
��������!��������������
���������
��
������
������������$�����������	��
	���%�����

$�������
��	�����$�!��

Page 56



�
���������	�
��

���� �A� �
�����
������

�����
����
�����$����		��$������� �

����
���
���
(�
�� 6���
�������������#�� �

����
��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

��������		��

����

�����
��9
��'��$�����)��	��
�����
�����
��������
	�����������������
�
	
��	������
����
��#�		�����	��������
��
����
���������
�����������)
�����#����
����������
����!�

�� 6���
�������.9
��'��$�����)��	��
�����
�����
�.��
���������
��������
�������	��
��/

��	��'�
���
	������

����		�

$�������
������� �

����
�������
���
�����
��
����
����
��
����#�������
���#��!��������
�	�����

�

��������
���	��������
��
������)��	���
��
���+�
���$�!��"��#�		��������	��

��������	�������
-�		����$�9
�
���
���
���������
�����������/

��
�

�����������#�		��	�
��������	�
�

�����)
��������+��������
���
�������������?
��	�6���
�
������
���
������
�
�	�������
���
����	�
!�

����������������
/-�������������
��������	����������
�������)�

������������
9��1�
���������������	�������-�		&9���$�9
�
����
�	���������
�����9
��'��$�����
)��	��
�����
�����
���������/

��
�

�����

��������	�������

��������)
����!�
��)��	�
�������O
��$���
�	�.��9
�
����
�	��������������������
��
�����������#

'�

������)��	�
��.���
����
��������
����������
�	��
��

��
�$�	�
	��
�������'���
��

���
��������
�������'�����
�

��������
$��������$�����
���
#��

$
�����
�����
������
�
�!��������
�	�����	����������$����������	
��	��
�/���

�����

�����%����2�����
���3!��������	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	��
�7��
�����

��������	�����
�������
�	����#��
���

$
��������
��
����
$��!��
�

1-�������������
��������	�����	���������,
�����
�,�������������@�����
9��1�
��������� �

����
�.��� �

����
��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

�����
�	�������
��		����$���&�����
���
��
��

$
������
��#

'�����$�����
��
��'��������	��
��
���
�����
������ �

����
������
��������������
���������	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!��
�

.-�������������
��������	�������,�����������	����
���������������D���
�
>����������
�����������
9��0�������������)
��������+��������
���
���������?
��	�6���
�
������
���
�����
��
�	�������������������
�����������
������������#�		�
��
�����
��	�������
���
�����
9
��'��$�����)��	��
�����
�����
�!�
�

Page 57



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

,�������.�+�4����
����
��&��*���������,������

�����*����
�

'������������������������
������������*��������������������
��

���������
���������������
�%�

���������>������*����*�������
����	�������������
��	��������-�
8
�
����
���$
������	����	���#�����������	����.)����
�		�������.�&����������
�	
�$�
�����
����!���������		��$��#�		�����
�����������������

���������
��$����
�$�������	��	�����%�
�������		����������������
��
������
��#

'������#�����

�$����
�	��.���
�
��	�
��
����������!�
�������	�������	
#���
#��#���������
��	���
������
�#�!�

)����������������������������� ����������������!�� �"�����������
4����
����
��(�
1����
��$�������������$������	����	�������#�		����$�����������	�!�-��F�9�������
�����	����	��������������
��	� �����$�&��������
��
��	� ������
���������#������
�	���
�
���	���
������������������������
���
�������!��"�����*����������������	�'����������!�
�

�����$����������%�����0+�����������
�������	�	�$���
���������/����&�
8

�� ���	�%�#��'�
#�����(�

�� 1� ����� ������������
����
����������
����
��
�������	����

��
�&�������
�����������
���������

����2�%������
�	������ �

����
���������
��������<AH�

�����	��>!�"�����*���
����	���
�����#�����
������	���	����
����$�

���		��$%�����#��
���'�
#�������

����
�	����������
����

���
���
#�
�������$��
���������

�
�������
��
���
�����
��!�

�� ?���	��
����/

������	��		�������	�'������E
��
�����
��

�������,����
��
����	�������
���
��
����$!�

�� � �

����
�.������������$�
�����
#������
������
��
��$�)
�����	���	�����	����
#��������
��	����
�$�������
���#


���$���#�
���
���!�

�� B�����
���������������6��
$������������������

���	���
������	�&��
�������
���
��
�
�����������		���������	��
��
�����	����3����
�!�

�� ����
��	��������
#����
	����$����������
�	��#���������	����	����

�	�����
��
���
���$�	�������$�������!����������
��	�.�����������
�1����	�"		�������
����
����.���
#������(�

�� ������
�����$��
����
�	���$
����$������P1����	��		������������		�����	�'��
����
���
*����
�������

��;�H�����AA3���
�;;H��������!�

�� ������
�����$�������$������#
�	������
��

���	����	'��$��
����
�����

�
����	�������
���
�������
������	����	���

����

��::H�������A��
�;�H�
�������!�

�� ������
�����$�������$������#
�	�����	����
��

���	����	'��$��
�����
�
���	
��
���
�������
������	����	�����		��
�32H%��
���
����
���H����
����!�

Page 58



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

)����>*�����������������	����*���������*�����(�
�����
����������
�$�	
��	��

�����
��	���������(�
�� ����������
����

�����
������#�������	���
�$�����
�	�����'����
�#

'�����

��������������������	����$����������
��
$�����%�������������
�������
���
#�
����$���
��$������!�

�� 1����	����	�����
������
������
���$������������

���!��+�
�������
��
��������������
��
��������������

�������	!���

�� 1���������
���
�������
������	�����

��
��
���
�����
���&��!$!��

��
�
����		��$����$���
�	��
��������������

������������
�.��	'��$����
�����.!�

�� �����
������
���$�
�������������
�����������������

�������	����#��������
����
��	������������
���$�!�

�� )�
�
���

���
�	��#���������	����	����

�	�����
������������$��

����#�	�
���
���
��������,�&
���

�����
�
���
��'�!�

�� 0
����������
	������
�����
����
�������

����	�
�����������	����#�		���	���
���
��
�����
	
$���	��

�	������
	������#�		���'���
���������

����������	�!�

'����������

���
��������	�����	��������(�
����
���
�-�������������������	��
%���������������
��������		��	�������	��$��

����
��

�!������� ��
����
�����		��$������	����(�

�� 1���������$�#����#����������������#������$������$�
��
�
���!�
�� Q����$	��$�����#���#�������

���+���
������#����������.�����������
���	���

������.!�������
�����
��� ���������
���
�����

�������
���
�������������#

'��
������

��������	��		����JJ������	��		������
#���
����������

���
��	� �������

�����������$����'�$��������������	���
����!��"�������
���
������
#������#�		�
#

'���

��	�!�

�� �����
����
�/
�������		������	����	�����
�������
��	���
�$
���������
��
������
����
��	�.�
����	���-���
���1����	����	��.�����������!��

�� ,��)
������
��
��#�		������'��$�����
�����
����+��
������
���$���		��
��
�
������ �����
�

��
!�-��#�		�������
�'�����
����������
����
����
��$������
����$�!�

�� ����	
�$���
���������
������
������
��#�		���	��
���

�$���
����
������
��
��
�����
	
$���	��
�����
���&���������������7��	����������������
����
���
���	�
����������$��� ��
��������$��
�	���	��
�������	
����������
���
���
�����!�

�� ����
�����	���
������� �

�����	�����+�8
������
���
���������
#�� �������
���
������������	����	����
�����

�������
�����
��	����������

�����$������	�
���	�����
�����!������������
��������������������	��
%��������#�		�������

������
�
'�����
������
���

!��

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;���������
��������(�
,

���

$
�����������������(�

�� 1����	����	�������
#���
�	��
�������$������������/

��
���
��&��������
�	
�$�
�
�������)����
�		����
����!�

�� ���
���������������

�����
����
��
	��
���
�	������
�������������
�����!�
�� �����
����
��
����	�
$���

	������$����

������	����	�����
������#�		���	���
�

.$	��.��
$����
�������+�����?
��	�����

����������
������
���$���
�����!�
�� 1

��������������������$������
���
�
���

���
�	��#���������	����	���

�

�	���!�

Page 59



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

2F��
�� -���������
�$$	����
���������

��������
���
��������
����

������	����	���&�

�������������������

���	������$�#
���	���#�����������
��	�	���	!�

����������������
/-�����������
���������	������������
9��0���������� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
����������
��	��
�
�$
������
���$���������	�����

������	����	������� �

����
�!�"����
�	������
��������		�

���������&$

�����
���	����$�����
���
���
��
������
������$
�������
�������

����	�
��%�
���	�������
	��
���
�	�!�
�

1-� ���������*��%�
��
���2�������
9��0���������� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
�����������
�

	������$�����

������	����	����
��
����#��������
��#

'��$����������	���
�
���	�����������	����	����
������
���$!�
�

.-� ����	��������������������
9��0���������� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
�������
������$��	�
���
��������
��������
�/���

�����
���$
�����

������	����	�����
������
���� �

����
�!�
�

0-�������������������
��
���������
9��0����������������	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
��������������	���
"��
	�������9
�
�������		����$�$���#���������	����	�����
��������
��������
�
������
���������
����
���
������

#�
������
����#���

����		�����
������	�����$��

����!�
�

6-�����������
��������	�����	���������,
�����
�,�������������@�����
9��0��������%�� �

����
��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

�����
�	��������$
�����
�
��'��������
���
����

�������
�������
������
���$�
����+������	����	�����
��������
�
�

���%������������
�	������
��$��������

�$���	����$�����		�

	�������
���$�����
���
��
���� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!�
�

Page 60



�
���������	�
��

���� �2� �
�����
������

,�������0�+������������������	���������
�
���
��������	�
��

�����$�	�$������������

������
����	���$�������������
��
��������
���
�
��
�����!�������������

������������(�

�� �����������
���������
������������������

�

��
���������	�����-����
���
�����!�
�� �����
���������������	������������	��

����������
����
���
����'��
������	���
�	���!�
�� ��������
�������	������������

������������
�!�
�� ������������	�����
���$���	

���
����
������	
�$���
���
�����
�����������

������������
����������������

'�����������
�#�����	�����
��
�����
��������
�����
���������
����
�����	��������
���	���
��#�����#������
�����

�!�

�� ����
��'�
��$�����$�����������������
�;�������$
����
����
�����#
������������
�
��������$
����
����
��������!�

�� ����
��'�
������	
���$�����������������
����������$
����
��

���
�	��#�
��
��
��
��
�����<9
���1����"��� �
��
�3��>!�

�� �������������=����		�
���*����������
������
���
��������+����� �

����
��
�	
��!�

�� ��H�
���		������
����������
�$��
�&��
'�
���
��	��'����
�
������!�
�� �����������
�������
��	������'��$�������������	����$���
��
!�

�

���������������/5B��	������%������$����������
		
#��$���������%����������
���
��
��

���
�����
����

��	�#��$�������$

�(��

�� ����H���		����������
�����
��
�		!�
�� ��2�H�
������
������������
�	������
���������!�
�� ��3�H�
������
�����
������&
�	�������������

�������
�<�!$!��
#�	�

�����
>!�
�� ��A�H����
�����������������
���
����$���!���
�� ����$���������
������
������	

���
����
���������
	����

	�	���	�!�

)����������������������������� ���������������������������������(�
����'����������

������0+����
�(�
8

����	��(�

�� ?���	��
��
����������
��
��:���
��$
����		�����
�����$�����
��		�%�����	���	�����
� �

����
���
���
��7������
���$������
���
��
��<��H��

�� 
���
���
���#����
�3�H�����
��		�>!�

�� ����
��	�
������

����	��
��������
��������
��
��������

�����&�H���
����
%�����
�����
���
��������$�
����

�� 
����
#����	�$�����		�&���
�$���
����#�	�
����
�����
��	������������
�	�����/������.�	��.����
�
����
�
!�

���������������������������������������� ����
�����������	
��

�����	�
���

�����

��
��������
��
���������
��	
��������	���
	��	
���
������
����	��

��
�
����
��
��
�����
��
�
������
��
��
��
�����	����������	
	��	
��
��������
���

	�
��������
���������	
��

�����	�
��
�
��	��
�	
��

�����

��
�
������ �

�����	
��
!��������

���
�

��
	��
�"����
��
���
�����	
��
��	���
�!�#�$��

%��
&'�

�����	���
��(


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
$)
��
���������	
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+,
�	���
,
���
�
���
��
$)-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+/
�	���
*
���
�
���
��
$)


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
,/
��
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+)
�	���
+$
���
�
���
��
,/-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+$
�	���
0
���
�
���
��
,/


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
./
��
�����
��
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
$+
�	���
+
���
�
���
��
./-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	

.
��������
+*
�	���
1
���
�
���
��
,/


���
�����
��
	��
���	
������
������	���������
�������
��
���������	
��

�����	�
��
�	
��
	��
����
���
��	�
�����
��

���
���
����
��
�
��	��
�

Page 61



�
���������	�
��

���� �3� �
�����
������

8

�)��	�
��(�
�� ��
�$����	�
��%�	���	��
��
��������
���

���$������

����4H�
��
������
�����
�

���	�
��%�
����$��
���H�
�����
�:����	�
��!��������
#������������$��

������
��	

����������'��$��

�	���	��� �
�����$
����		�����
������#��$������
�
�����
%�
#�������
�:�	���	������$��	�
����
��	��
������
��	���	�!��������������

�$��
���
����
����
�����$�	���	��
��
�����������
��$����	��!�

�� ����
�	�����	��.$

�.��
��������
�$�����'����������	��
������
��
���
���	�
���
�����
��&�)�����
��������	
������
�#���������
���
���������������
�������
	���	���
����$��������	����$��
��������)�����
���
���#��������
����
������)
����!��

�
#���
%����������%�������*���		�������#��
�� �����
�������	���	��
�����	��

��
�����������������
�������������
�������
��		��

�������� �

����
�����
���������
��<���:&����>!���������$

����#�����
�
�����
����
���	������
����$�������������
�������!�

�� �	�
%�� �

����
�.�����	�
����
������	
#�
�	���	��
��
����������������
�����
��	�
�
����
��
��%�#����� 
��
������
�����
�	���	���

�����H�	
#�
����������
��		��
<4H��
���
���#����AH>��������
�:�	���	���

����3H�	
#�
�<��H��
���
���
#�����AH>!�

�� � 
��������'����
���
��
��

���

��
�����������
��� �
�����	���	��������	��!��"��
�
�����
����������	���������������������������������������*������������
>��
���������������������
����������*��
���
�����*�������
�����
���������
������>��
������
	��
���������
!�+����������������
�����$��
����
�	�����
� �

����
����
���������$����
�$�	�
���������������#��'�����
��������
�
�����
�
�
��:H%����������������>��
���%�#����������
�����
����3���
�	����
���������$�

�$�	�
	���
���
����������	�������
!�,���������<,���� �

����
��������>����
���

�������

/��������� �

����
������������
��
��������
���������
����������$

��
� ���	��
��?
��	�,
��
����������������+�#

'��$������
���
����!�8

�
� ���	�%�������0����
�����A�
��
��2%������
�	���������'�����
�����,��
�������������������������������%��

����-�	'��$�����B
����
����

�������
�
���������������������
����
���������
#�������43H�
����
������
	�����
��
	�����$����

���������	������	�������
���	�!�

�

�
����������

���������������
�������#����
��������
��������
���
#������#�
���
���!�
8�$�
�������
#����#

�������������
�
��

����������#�����#�����������������
������
I8

���$���B��

�K�#�����	

'�����������	����
�������	���	������$�������

��6�$	����
����-

	�����	����
$�������
���
������
���
��#

�������������
�
����������	���	��
��

���6�

��!���
�

Page 62



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

;������/1�+�
���������������������������������������

�
��������B�����������������������������AA2�&���2�
+
�
��(�&���������������

�����	���+�
����6�$	���%��������������������������
���	�����-����

�6�

��

�

�

��

��

��

��

2�

2�

3�

3�

�A
A2

�A
A3

�A
A�

�A
A:

�A
A;

�A
A4

�A
AA

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
2�

8���

B
��
	�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
		
��
��
�

�
��������	���	��
�����������<6�

��>

�
��������	���	��
����������<6�$	���>

'����������

���
��������	�����	��������(�
�

����	�������������������������������������������
�	����
�����

�����	�������
����
�������	���	��������-�)������������%�

������,�����$�������	������������
���#
�����������
��-�
�

����
��'��
��
��������
��
���
��!��������������
��	
���$�#��$����
����
���	��
%��������%�

������#�
	�������
����������		�$
��$���!�-��F�9������%�
������#�
	�%����-����
��
�
������������������%�/�������	����$����.���
�$�.�	���%������������
��
����
���
�������������
����
�������������

��	�#��$��!�
�

���
������
����
��

���������������

�� �

����
�%������
����
�$���
�/���������'��$�
�
�
�

��
�����������	�
��

��

������
��!��"��#���
��
���
����������

����
���
�����'�����
I
����$�����K�#�������
�������	���
����

���
��
��������������$���

����������������
��$��	���	��
���������	�������	����#�����#�		�
���	�!��"���������
�����������#���
��������
�
���'	��
��������������
���
����%�#�����������
���
��	����$�����		�

	�!��
�

���
�������$����
�����
���

�����
����)
����	���
�	��'��������

���
��,��
�
������
��
�%�

��������
����

���	����
�����	������	��������%����	��������

������
���

	���
��
�������������$����$������
������!��"�������
����	�
	�����

������
���'����
�
��	�&�
&$
�������

�����
��
���
��
��������
�	�����
���$�
��������������
����	����&�
������

����#��������
������

��������
���
���������	�������
����������

�$�
���	���!�
�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;���������
��������(�
�

$
�����$������
��
��������
������������$���
�		��$

�!�������		���

���

�$�
�
��
���
�����#

'��$�����������������%�����
�������#�����'�����
�
��	��������
�

����
����������	�������-�		����$���
���
����%����
��������#�		�������������#����������#�
���	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!������������
����������	��������
�����������

�$��	�������
� �

����
��$
��$��

#�
�!�

Page 63



�
���������	�
��

���� �:� �
�����
������

&���'����
"�������

�����������	���
������
��
�	���	��	���	��
�����	��
������������������	����������
�������$���
�	��
��	���
�!�"��#����
���������
�	���	�����

����
����$����������	��	��
��

�$��$���
�	��
��������������������
������
��
������	���������������	��������	������������
�

���	�����
���
�
���
�����

���	�!�-��#�		�������
��
��������
���������
��	�
��������������
��&
�����
�����������

 ���
������
���

$
���!���
�
+��������	�#

'�
��
���������������
��$

��/
����#

'��$����#����

$�������
��!�
;�

�%����������=�����+�������������	����
�������������������������*�������
����
����$�������=������#�	�����������������������$���+*���������+������������������
������������%��#�%������������

����=��������	��������-�"��#�		������
����	�
	��
���

������
��
����������
����)
����	�%�,��)
������
��
�%�)
�����)
����	%����

	��
����������#����	������	���������������
��������
�����)
�����)
����	!��������#����	���
����-�		����$�9
�
��#�		�����������
��	�

	���
��	�������
����$������#

'��

#�
��!�

����������������
/-�����������
��������	����������
�������)�

������2����������������
���
'����*������2�����
9��1�
�������%�� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
������������������
�����	���
"��

�������9
�
����
�	����
���������$����$������
��������������/

��
�

���%���
�	��
����	
��	���
$�����

�� �

����
��������
�	��
�$�	�
	���
���

��

$
�����$������������
��
$���!������
��
��������

����%��		�?
��	�����

�����%�,��)
������
��
������
���	��#������
��
��
���������
���
���������$����$������
����������������

�����
�

�

�����
�

���!�
�

1-���E���������	�������+*������,���������������
9��0��������%�������#����	������	����������
�	���$
��������


����������
��	�&�
&
$
������
���$���
��
�����������
����
������%�
������	��
���		�

$�������
������
� �

����
�!��������
�	�����	����#

'��$��
$����
�#�����		�?
��	�����

����������,��
)
������
��
�!���������
�	�������
���������������	�������-�		����$�9
�
��
�

.-� ���������������������
�����������)��#�����	������������
�����������2�����
9��0��������%�����+�

�����
���
�����9
�
��#��������������$����������
&

��������
����I,
�������K��

/����<������		
#����
����#�����
&

������
��
���������	����������
���������������#��������
����)
����	���������	���+�
�����>���
�	������
�����������
������������������������	��$
��$����
���������
�!�

Page 64



�
���������	�
��

���� �;� �
�����
������

,�������6�+��
����
&�)���7��8����
�����(�
?�������
.�������	�B��

�������	������������
��'��$��

�������	�
�
	�#�����������
��
��/

��
���
���

���������
��
�����	������� �

����
���

������
		
#��$�����
���
��(�
�

/-� �
����
������������������������������
����05�������
"��6�$	���%����
�$�����	���	�
�
	��
�������
������
��������3�H��������A;�!��
����$
������	
#���
#������
�������
���������
�������
�!�

�

;������/.�+��
����
�,������������������F<�

D�������	�������
����
��������
��������������F<$�/3?:�+�1559

�

�

3

:

4

��

��

�3

4:&
4;

4;&
44

44&
4A

4A&
A�

A�&
A�

A�&
A�

A�&
A2

A2&
A3

A3&
A�

A�&
A:

A:&
A;

A;&
A4

A4&
AA

AA&
��

��&
��

��
��&
��

��
��&
�2

��
�2&
�3

��
�3&
��

��
��&
�:

��
�:&
�;

��
�;&
�4

����


��
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�



9��

-���
+��
���
)���

�
��	��	�
�
	

�
+
�
��(��"���������
���	�
�
	�+�������8���������I�
��'��$����,
����9
�����K�###!���!

$!�'��
�

1-� 4�������
��������������������������#����
�*�
������
������������
��'��
�����E�
�
���	���	��

.-� �
����
��������������������������
����������������#�����������
��'��$�
�������$���
��'��$����
���
����������$

��!��)
�������
����
�$��
��$�
#
����������������
�����$�
����	�!��

0-� �
����
$�%������������$����������������������
	�������!�"��������
��
�!�
�� "��6�$	����������:%��:%�2:���
�	��������

���	�
�
	&
�	�����������!��
�� ���������
�
����������

���	�
�
	&
�	�����	���
��������������	�
���

�
��	����������	����������!��
�� �	�
�
	�������������
��
������	���
%��
#�	%��
����%���

��%��
���%�	�
�� �

����
��
���$��M�����������
���
�


���%�
���������
��	���������������
����������
���		�'����!�

�� �	�
�
	����
���
����	���

��

����A��%�������������
���������
����
�
�
�����	�����
��		����
����
%�������������
����$�<������
�����
��;�H��������:�
���
�����#��������@�2��������4@�A>!�

6-� �
����
���������������������������������
���*��
��
��
����
��	��
���
���	�
�
	�������		��(��������
���	�
�
	��
���:;H�	����������;���������
�A4;!�

Page 65



�
���������	�
��

���� �4� �
�����
������

:-� �������
�������	�����	��
����
������*���������
��������
�������������
��
�$�%�����������
����������.����.�	���	�
���
��'��$��
��
�
��$���#�����������	��!���	��
�$����
��������$��
��3�����
�%��
��'��$������		�
��
����
���	�
�
	�����
����������
��'�
�����
����������������

'�!��8

���
���
#�
��
��'���
��������	
#�	���	%������

���
�������
�3�����
��#�
��
��'�����
��
���%��	�
�
	���������������
��'�
�����
����������������

'�!��8

���
���
������
�$�%��
��'��$�������
����
���	�
�
	����
����������
��'�
�������
%����
������
������
	����!����

���6�$	���%��

����
���
�����	��������
��������	�
�
	�.�
������*%��	�
�
	�
��������2���
�	���
������������!�
9-� �
����
�������������	���
�����������
����%��#��
?-� �
����
�	��
�����������
�����*�������������$����������
����
�
��
�
��
#��%�

�������		���������������$����#��'�����
3-� �
����
��������� 	����+
�������*��������� ������
�
��������	���������$��

��������	���
����
�������� ����
!�
/5-��������
������������	����
����
���
���������������	���������������������
?
��	��������������
#�������
����
����������
�	������
��	�
�
	����� �

����
�!���
����$
������	
#���
#���
#��
�����	��������
��������
��	�
�
	�
�	�����
�
�����
����
��
����$������	�����������
����
�����#

��������	�������
!��

�

;������/0�+��������
���������������������������
����
�

%
���	&
"���	
�	'
������	��"����
��	��	()�
�������	������
�����	�
	���
�
�	
*������	�
�����
��	+���	����,-	.//��/0	�
	./1/�11

�

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

	7���


7���

57���

��7���

����8�� ����8�	 ���	8�
 ���
8�5 ���58�� ����8��

&

"

��
�

6���

1�(���

2�����0����

�

���9�':'�;:<=>������������������%����!�*����(��
���+�*�����
�����7�#%'�-.�����!
���6������� �

���������������������������������������� ����
���������	��	���
����'������
����
�������	����
�����
�������
���
��������
���������
���
��
�����	�<�!�!����������>�������
��
�����
�#�
		��

���
���		�����
������	���
��	�
�
	!�����$
��������

�

��
��
���	�
�
	�
�	������������
����
�� �

����
��
�
�����	���������&�����
�	������
������
		
#��$����	����
�����
��M�

�� 9
����������
%�)���
����%����
��
�������

�	���%�Q���������������������%�Q
���
���
�����������
���
�

�

Page 66



�
���������	�
��

���� �A� �
�����
������

)����������������������������� ���������������������������
����
(�
?�������
.��
��

������
���������������		�(�
���
���
���#
�������
������
���'�!�
�>������
��������� �

����
����



���������
��	��
�����#�		�&��
�		���������
����
�������	���	��
���
��'��$��
��$
����		��
����$������������
�������
��
� ������$��

�������

�����

���
�
���
����
�����
���	��������
���
���		����	��%�
���������������
���!�
�>��	��
�$�������
�������$
��$���%�
������#�
	�%�� �

����
�.��	���	���
�������
������
����6�$	�������
�$�!�
'�������$�%�������*������������
���������
�%�����*���������������A����*�����
%����-�

'����������

���
��������	�����	��������(�
������
����#& ()*�������
�

�����

�� �

����
����������
��	��
	���
�������

�$��
�
������
��&��������������
������$���
�	��
���		��$����
��
��'�������	�!��
�

,�%����%�������
���������������I���
������������������������
��
�����K%������		�����
��������
����
��������
�����������#�
	������
������
������
����
�����������$�!�"�����
��$�	����	�'�	����������������

�����	�������������	�������

�������������'��$����������
#����
���������

E�%�
�	� ���	�������$�	�#����������	��
��#���������	���
��
����
�
��'��$!�
���#����������
	�����
��
�����	����#�
������������$���
�$�
���$���
'��$���������&
��	��	�$��	���
�%��������	����
���
�������
���
����
����
�����.�
������
�.������$��
#��������
�����
��	�
�
	!�"�����������

��
�����
��'���������������%���	�'����
'��$%�
�	�
�
	�����
������
�����������������	���
�%������������	�
�����	��������������
�
���	���������J!�9�������%�������
���$
��
�#�����
'��$JJ!�
�

�����	���������#�������#
&��$�����
���$�(�
�>��
�#����#�������
�������#���������	�������������#���������

���
��'��$��
�� �����
��

�$���������
��
���		��$��$

���!�
�>�"����������������
��������
����	������'��$��	����
��
����������
�����

�$��.��
��
����������
�.����

�����!�
�

-���
��$

�������
������������
������ �

����
������#����
�	������

���
��#����

�
��	��&	�$�����
��������������������#

'��$�#����?
��	�����

�����%�������+�����

���
���
���
�!�+
���
������$

��#

'��
��������
#��������������� �������
�!�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;���������
��������(�
?�������
.��
��
��������
��#������	�
�
����		��
���
��$�����
�
���
������������
��
��
���$���

�� �

����
�!�������������������������#�		!�����#���
���$���������	��������
����������$�����
���������#�		&

$���������
���$��$

���#

'��$���

��������


$�������
��!�

Page 67



�
���������	�
��

���� 2�� �
�����
������

�

��
���
��2��
�

�����
����$����$�� ���	���
��$

���

$
���(�
�

�!� )
���������������
�� N�
	�����
����
�����������
���������
���		�����
�
�������������
#������
���

�
������
!��?��������$�
����

�0�	��D�+�����������
#������
�����
���2H����
���������
�
����
	�����
������
���
���#���������������
����
�����	����
���
!�������������
��	�
���:A���#�
��
�����/���������
���2��
����!������)����
����������$$����
������
�%�#������3���#�
���
	�����
��������������������
�
��
	�������
!��������
����������	
�$���
���
�����

���		��$��
����
�������

���
����)
����!��"��������
�%�
���
��$���
$�������������
������
�����	��
��	��
��
�	������C6�#�
��
����/�
�����������
������
��
��'��$���
�	��������
#��
��;�H�
������
�����
�����������������!���������������
���
����
���
���#�
�
������	
���������������C6�����
�	��������������
�
����$�������
��4�
#�����	�
�
	�
�	������
�����
��!�

�!� ���	���
�� )
��
���������$����	����������������

�������

�,�������
���
�

�
������
��
���
���	��#����
���
��$��������

�
���

�	��

���	���
�
������
�	�
�
	�
�	�������
�!��������
������������
�����������	������
��7�����
����
�
$�����������
���	�
�
	�����'����������������
������
��
�����
���
���	������
����

�����

���$	�!�

2!� )��	�
�������O
��$���
�	��
�� ?���
���	���������
		
#&���������������

��������

	���

���	����
��

����	��	���

�������
���
����������������
���	�
�
	��������
�������

�
��������
��#�����
��$���
�	�!��-

'�����	�
�����
#����
���	���
��$���
�
��
#�
�����
�������������������$��	�
�
	!�

�����������������
/-� ����������
���������	������������
9��1�
������������� �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�������������� �

����
��
�
�$������	�
�
	�����
���������
�	���
���
�������	�
�
	��
������
��������
��
����������
��
�������
�

�����!�-������������
���#

'%�������	��&�$��������

����
��
�����	�
�
	�+�
���$��,

���������������������������
������		������	
���!���
�

1-� �����������
�������������
�������	�%��+�����%����
9��1�
�������%������ �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�������������� �

����
��
���	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	�������
��������$
����������������� �

����
��
)
��������+��������
���
�����#�		���'����	����

	��
��������$�
���
��������
����

�
�	�
�
	�������������$��

$
���!�������

$
������
�	�����
��

�����
������ �

����
��
���	�������-�		����$�9
�
�������������	���"��

�������9
�
�!�
�

.-� 
��*�����������>���������
9��0����������������

��������.���.�
�����	��������$�����
�	�����#���	�������
��

�$�
���� �

����
�����	

����
������
�������������%��
���	����
�	���
�����
������
������
�
��	����	�����
���
���
��'��$��	�
�
	!�������������������
���	����
�	����'��
����
�
#�����

������
����!������������$�����
�	������	�����������

��	$�����
��

�$������� �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�����#

'��$�#����� �

����
�.��
���	������	�������!�
�

Page 68



�
���������	�
��

���� 2�� �
�����
������

0-� �����4������������
9��0���������#

'������ �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�������
�	���
��	����
#

'�#��������� �

����
��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

����
����������������������
�
����	
������
���
�
���
�������������

�$���
���
����
������
���
�������$�%��
��/����
��
$����$���
���#�
��
���
��'��$������
���	�	���	�������	�
�����$������Q�"��
��
�����$��

	��
���	�����
�
�������
����������
���

����	���	�
���
��'��$�����
#�����
����
�����
���
���
�����
���
���!�
�

6-� 4�*����������

��A��������A�	������������������������%��������*�������
9��0��������%������ �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�������
�	������
�������
��������	�
����������
�������
��������������
�����������	�
�
	�
�	�������
�%�<�

�
� ���	�%���

�$����$������������������>%������
��������
��
����
#�
����
������
�����
�		������#

'!��+���������	������
�	������
�#������
��������������
����������	������

���		���
������������
���

$
�����!�6 ���	���
�����������

�������
�(��

�� �

�
���$�����#

'�
��+�
��������

��#�
��

�����������

������
���������
�	���������'�����$�������$����������
�
�������!�

�� 8�����$���#�#����
��
������$�����
&�$����	��!�
�� 6��

���$�	�������$��
�����
��!�

�

Page 69



�
���������	�
��

���� 2�� �
�����
������

,�������:�+�;��������<�

������������
)
��������	������������������������/

��������
���������	���
�����
��	���
�!����
�
��������	�������������
���#�������
������

����
�
���
���
�
����

�$��������
%�
#���
%��

��

���
�
���
���
�
���
�����!��
�*�������
����	���������$�������	�������=���#�

�����	�������������������*�������
������
�������������	��������!���
#���
%����������������
����������
������������
�
��������������
���������
���
����$

����
���		������������

����
�%���
	��
������������
�������#��������
���������	���	�����%������#�����$�����$

���

��
��$����!���
�

�����������
�
��

���
�������
������

��������������
������
��!�

/-�����
���,���������������'�	��������!�,�'�"�
"������
�����������������
��$��	�'��1������		���B���������#�	���
�����
��+
��
��
<1B+�>������
�������
���������
��<������!>�
������������

�����������
�����'���������
�����%��
�������
�����	��������������
�������!���
#���
������
��
���������
�������
������*�������
���������

�$���
�����
��	���
����������

����������)
����!��
�

�"�4������

�������������������
���������������!4���"��
1B+������������
�����
�����
��
�	��
�������'��!��"�����$��������
�����
������	

��
��
����<�!$!���

�$������������

����
���

���

����#
����>���������������	

��
�
��
���$�<�����
������>!��"����������������	���
��
���������
�	��#�
��
���	
�������
��
��#�		��
�#���
��������
�	

'��

������������
�������������
�������
���������������
���
�
���
���
�
������
�
������
�!�����
������
�����1B+�������
�������
������������
�
#�#�
���
�������������������&2!���������������������*�������*������	���
���
������������	��������!�+���������������������
����

�����������
�%����

����
�	���	�����%����

�����	�����	��

����
��%��
�����������$����������
��������
����
��
���		����!�
�

;������/6�+�4���������������	���������

�*��	�����	��	()�
�������

�

��

��

��


�

���

���

���

����8� ����8� ����8� ����8� ����8	 ���	8
 ���
85 ���58�� ����8��

2���

�
��

�

�	�

"

��
�	

�

	�
��

��
	�
��

�

�	
��
�	�

��
��
��

��
�	
��
	(

)�

�

��
��
��

-.�����!
���? 0����(�������������(��
���
���% �*

�

Page 70



�
���������	�
��

���� 22� �
�����
������

�"�(���������������������!(#����"�
�
�������
���������
������������
������������������	���
�����
�����

�
���#��������
�
������		��	���&��
�������$��������		����������	��
	����������
�!������������
����
�
��
�	��	�������
�	���	������
�����
�	�*������������������
��
�	��������

���
�����
���������
��������������
��������	�����
�������
����������$���#�����
���	����������
������������
����

�����$��		����!�
�

���
����������

����
�������
������
��
��������������
�����
���	���$�������������

������
��������������������;@�4!���
�

;������/:�+�,
������������		���
��'�	�������������	���������

���������	
������
���� 3������
�		�����	��	()�
�������	.//4�11

�

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

5��

���	8
 ���
85 ���58�� ����8��

2���

�
��

�

�	�

"

��
�	

�

	�
��

��
	�
��

�

�	
��
�	�

��
��
��

��
�	
��
	(

)�

�

��
��
��

�
�

-

'��
���������������� �

����
�����	�����
�
����
�
�����������

�
�����������
����
���%�����������	����
��������$�����

�������������
����
	���
��
������������������
�����	���	������
����������

�����!�

1-���������
�����!�2"������	���������
�9�����������
��	��������
������������,����	�����
���
����

�����#���������	��
������������	��$������#�����������
�����
������
���
���
���
�������
������	����$�����
�
����������
�
���������!��"���������
���
�����%������������9��������
�������������	����
�������$�������	��$���
���������� �����������������������	�����
���
�����!�
�

"��� �

����
�%����������
�
��������
���9���������#���:��<�4�#����	��$�������������
22�#����
���
��9>!���������		����
�������������
�������������
�	������
�
�
������������
����������$��9�����
�&QG��

���
��	���
��
����
�������������
�����
��������	������	��!��

Page 71



�
���������	�
��

���� 23� �
�����
������

�
;������/9�+��������
�������������������������	���������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
���
����������3����
������
�����
����#�������
���

��$%��������������
�
�������%�
����
����������$��������� �

��)��������)��
#�		�����
����)
����	!�������
�����
���
�$��
�����

���#�����������
��������	��	
#�
����������QG�
���!�����������������
�����*�����-�
�

;������/?�+��2�������������������D���
����������$���	��������$�15/5�
�

?
��	�����

���� )����� �
��	���
��
B������
����%����
�
��	���
��

)��
#�		� �3� �2A%���� ��!��
� �

�� 2�� �3A%2��� ��!3�
+
����� �

����
�� 3� �2�%:��� ��2!��
N�	��
��-������

��� :� ��4%;��� ���!��
-����� �

����
�� �� ���%���� ��3!A�
QG� � � �2!A�
+
�
��(�6���������9�+�
���		�����+������ �
�
���
�����(��������N�		������	����

�����
��Q����

�

����)�����1�����	�������
���������	
��	���
����������
$���
��
��

���$��		��9�������
�����
��	����$����������	��
�����������4�H�
�������!��� �

����
�*�����������	�
�
��������
����������
������
�A3!�H�������A�<��
��������������N�		������
�$�>�
�
���
���#����43!�H�������;�����4A!2H�������4!����$���
��	���
��
������
�����
���

������������

�
��$

���
��

	!���������
���������������9���
��������

��������
�����$
����
���$
���
�����������	������	���$����

�������
���
�����������
��9!��

.-�����������������
��*�����
�����'������������
�"� ,��
��������������������
"���������
����������
����
��&����������������	����	������	�������
�����
�!��?���	��
��
����������
���

����	��

��������������� �

����
���
��������
����

��%�#��������'��
�
#���
�$���������$�����	���	����������
���
�!������#

'�#��������������
�&$
��$�
�

����������
		����
������
��

��'�����$%����
	���$�$���
�	��
������%��
��������
�����)�������%����
���	���$�����

�����	�
�������$���		�����������!���
�

������#�)��	�����	���"��

����
��+������#�����#����P	���*��������8��
��
����������
������
	���	����������	��

	��

�'�����$����

����
������
��������7��	������$�!������
���		������
�
�����	�
���#�
��
���
�����������������
#�����
		
#���������������		��
����
���
�������������
�!�

8����  �������	�
,�����

���������/55$555�
����
������

155:� �2� 4!3�
1559� ;:� ����
155?� �:� 4!4�

1553� ��� 4!:�

15/5� :�� A!��

Page 72



�
���������	�
��

���� 2�� �
�����
������

�"� 4���
���4�������������

��*�������!44�"��
Q���'��
�����������������
������
��������:H�
��
�����	�������
������ �

����
�.��
	���	���
������������������B�$�
�!��������

������
��������������
	���������
�����
��$�
����	���������� ���	�(�
'���������������	�*�����������������%��
����������������
��?$555��������	�
����
����������������*�����������	��������-���	������$������������
��05�
����
��%��
����		������*�
���������������
�������$�?��������
������������
�*�������	�/�����������������%��
�����-���
�������
����	
#���
#������$

����������#��������������� �

����
��
��
�		����
���������$�
�
����	�
����$����������	��%������%�
���		�%��������
���������������
�
	�
!��-��#�		�������
�����
������������
#���
���������	����7��
��
*����������
���
���!�
�

;������/3�+�,��
������'�������������

,��
������'�����������������6

;�H

;�H

4�H

4�H

A�H

A�H

���H

R2
��
;@
�4

R3
��
;@
�4

R�
��
4@
�A

R�
��
4@
�A

R2
��
4@
�A

R3
��
4@
�A

R�
��
A@
��

R�
��
A@
��
�

R2
��
A@
��
�

R3
��
A@
��

R�
��
�@
��
�

R�
��
�@
��

R2
��
�@
��

R3
��
�@
��

R�
��
�@
��

����

B
��

��
��

�
��
�
�
�

�
���
�

������
��%�������%����		�	�
���
������@"������������
	�
�N����������
��

1���	��%�1���������B���		�����
��

�
�

�"� ������
���

����������*�������!�
�"&����*����������*���
��������
�����

�	���#��������������		
�����
���<��N>����������������$
�
���
���������
����	�
�����
�!�"������
��
��
����������	�������H�
���� ��		�����������������#
����$������
����
����
�����������
�	������	��
�$��
�	����������	�
������#
�������������$
�
���
�
����	
����
����	������
!���
���
������
��
���������

�������
�������	����������$�	���������������������������	��	�������
�

�������$��������N��������:������4%������������
���#��������#���������������

��
�;�H�
���		���
����	������
�!���
��*�����������%�

���*������
�*����	����
����������055�%����������������������F<�%����0�
�*�����*���������������
��	��������-��
�

-���
����

���	�����������$�����2
���
�

��
��$�
	��#������N����������
��D�������#�
��
���������������

	����
�4���
��$�����@���D���������'���

�����#�
	���
�
���
��2�
��/����
������� ��������
�������	�����A�H����������$��$

��!����������������

$
����%�

���
��$���N��
��		�$�
	������
������$��
���4����
�%��

'��	������
��$��������������
���
����A@��!��
�

�������%�*�����������������	�����������	��%��������������*��������	�������-�

Page 73



�
���������	�
��

���� 2:� �
�����
������

0-�������

����������������	��������
�"� �'��C��'����
�"N��
���������
����
���
�������
������

������
��������	������������������QG!�"��
�������������
�����
�������#������
�
����

������%���$���
����
���
��������������
�%�
������$����������

��	���!��
�

"������������������#
���%���
��$�������$��%����������7��
����������QG�

���

�������
����������

��
���

�����
��������		���

�$��.����
��� .�������7���!�
�

"�����A%����
��#�
����3���#����$�
����
���"N�����������N�		���#�����������AH�

������
���

�����4!������������$

��
���	�!�������������#����$�
����3��#�
����#�
�"N����$�
�������� �

����
�!������� �

����
����$�
����
��������
���		!��-���
�������
�
�#

'������
���
������
�$��������
������
�������$����

��!�
�

;������15�+� �������	���%��'��������������������������	��������$�1555+1553�

&
"���	
�	'35	��6	�����
���-	
()�
�������-	.///�.//7

�

��

��

��


�

���

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���	 ���
 ���5

�
�

�"� �����
����
���
"��������

������
��
���

��� ��		���
���������������������
���		���
�#������

�
���
����������������%������������/

����
��#������
���
�������	����

�$����'��$�������
P������� *��
������
��!����������������

������
����
����
���������������+� ��		��
�
��������������������
��	����������������������
���������������
���	�������
�
���
�
��	�����
���������������
��	�������	���
�	���!�
�
"��������
�����$��
�����������		�������/

��� ��		���
���������������������		���
��$�����
	�������
!��)�	�����������$�����	�#�
���
�����������
����
��
���	��
�$�����
��
�������������
���������)�	�������������
��
��
������4��������A��

������$��
����
������;!���

Page 74



�
���������	�
��

���� 2;� �
�����
������

;������1/�+����������������

����������������	��������	�����	�������������������1550+15/5�

�

'��;��������<�

���������������

���
��������	�����	��������(�
"��

������
���		���������$

������#

'�#�����������	����

�����
���$����������
������		�������/

�'�		�
��������
�������������
��������	���J!!!�

��
#!�
�

��%�*��$��������������������������E���#
�������*������������������������*�������
%���������*���
������������������������������%������������������$��
��
�����������*�
��������������������������������������
�������*��������������
��������#�-�
�

G�		�
��
��������	������������
��#�		�����$������� �

����
������
������������
&
�
��������
���!��)
���������$�	��������
�7��
���������
���	�����$������#�		�$�������
�����������������
�'�����������������
���������!�
�

������������
���	
�	������	���	���������������������������������������
�
�����	
������
 !�����������
�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������
��*�����;����
�����
��������(�
�

�		�����
��
��������
����

�������
���
������������	�
��

����������������!�
+�
�����%���
���		�������������$������
���������������������������	�����

���$�

��
�����	����3����
�!�

����������������
/-�4��������*���
����������������������������������������
������
���

�
�����	������	�����������	
��	����	����

�����
���$����������#

'�
�	
��	����
��$������

���
���$�����
��	�
�

$�������
��
�����	������	�����
�������
�
�����������
���		�����
���
��������	�������������
��$�����@��@�2�������'��
���

�
������������
��
��

	��������������������������#����
$��$�'�		�
���������!�
�

1-�����������������������������	����������
��
���
������
���

�
�����	������	�����
�	��
��

��
��'�		�
��������
��������������
���
�����������������7����������	�
��

��!�
�

Page 75



�
���������	�
��

���� 24� �
�����
������

�����������������������	�'�	�������������������������������������
0
����+�
���$����������������������
��
�����&�3�
���	������	���+�
���		����������
�
��
���	����

�����
���$�����"������
����������������
� �

����
��+���
�)
������������
���
�������	�
�
	�+�
���$��,

������'���
���������

���

�
� �

����
��
����)��	���
��
���������������������

�� �

����
��
� �

����
��)��	�
�������O
��$���
�	����	����������

��
� �

����
���)����
�

�����������
,��)
��

����"��

����
�����'��D�1�
��������
?��
����/
�
��	��
������

��,
�������
�������
� �

����
������
��
��������������
��
������������
���
�������
�

�������
���#

'�

��#��%
����������
����� �
������� 
�	���� 
�� ���� ����� ���� ��	���� 
�� �
		��$���� #�
��� �
��
�����
�� ���
��'�
#	��$���#����$
�����	�����'�!�
�
��$�	��9�'�
��
1�
'�9

���
�	��
��9�
�
���
+�
���9
��
��
���	�)����
0�	�������
��$��
)	�
���
�#�		�
������6���
��$��
�
����8��������
+��'����������	���
���������
��
9��'��������
�
������������
0
���0��'�
���
���	��0��'�
��
��#�0
�����
1�
��G������
G����G��$�
�������?��)
����
0���?����
��
+���?�$
�
�
�	�1�)�
����

N�	�1�����$�
��
+
����1�		��
G�����1�����		��
)����
����1
����

���
B
�����*)
��

�
0���������
+�������B����
����
+����B
�#���
+���+������
0
�����+��
����
���	�+�����
N�	�+�����
1��
��+��		����
,��	�+�
�'�

��
,���+#���	��
1�
������$#�		�
1�����#�������
���
��'����	

��
8���		���
���		�
���
����
�N
��6�����

���
�	���-�����
0��'���-�	��
������

�
�

Page 76



Division(s): N/A 
 
 

COUNCIL – 20 MARCH 2012 
 

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 
 

Report by Head of Human Resources 
 

Introduction and context 
 
1. The Localism Act 2011 requires that all councils agree and publish a pay 

policy statement by the end of financial year 2011-12. The Act lays down 
requirements on the content of the statement. This requirement is 
supplemented by detailed guidance from the Department for Communities 
and Local Government entitled ‘Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: 
Guidance under Section 40 of the Localism Act’.  

 
2. In addition, the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data 

Transparency requires that Councils publish prescribed information on senior 
pay, jobs and organisational structures. The definition of senior pay under the 
Code is wider than the top management team and includes senior managers 
earning more than £58,200 per annum. Some of this information is already 
published each year in the Council’s Statement of Accounts. Full details of the 
pay of individual managers, as required by the Act, will also be published in 
accordance with requirements. 

 
3. The Council has for many years managed its pay by adopting balanced terms 

and conditions of employment and by exercising a range of effective 
managerial rules and processes which have allowed services to operate 
efficiently within the budgetary constraints which apply. Bench-marking 
information is available at Annex 1. The Council welcomes this fresh 
opportunity to be open and accountable about the management of pay and 
seeks to publish a Pay Policy Statement which embraces the spirit and the 
letter of the new legislation and guidance. 

 
4. In summary the pay policy statement must as a minimum include details of 

the Council’s policy on:  
• The remuneration of its Chief Officers; 
• The remuneration of its lowest paid employees;  
• The relationship between the remuneration of its chief Officers and 

other Officers. 
 
 

Current Pay Policy Statement 
 
5. The Pay Policy Statement at Annex 2 brings together current Oxfordshire 

County Council arrangements and policies into one document. It fulfils the 

Agenda Item 8

Page 77



requirements set down by the relevant legislation, codes etc. This Pay Policy 
Statement will be reviewed by the Council annually. 

 
6. The Chief Executive and Directors are currently paid on spot point salaries 

under a two-yearly review of pay related to average pay in the south east and 
neighbouring County Councils. Other senior managers are paid on four point 
grades using appropriate job evaluation systems. Cost of living reviews are 
negotiated annually by the relevant national joint councils. Bonuses and 
performance related pay are not paid. Changes to grades of senior officers 
are currently approved by Democracy and Organisation Committee Gradings 
Sub-Committee.  

 
7. The Chief Executive and Director’s pay was last increased in 2007. Pay was 

reviewed locally in accordance with the policy in 2009 but a decision was 
taken by Senior Officers not to accept any increase due to the budgetary 
situation. Pay was not reviewed in 2011 as the council had adopted a freeze 
for other staff. The last cost of living pay rise was made at 1 April 2008 so, in  
2012-13 it will be four years since the Chief Executive, Directors and related 
officers have received a cost of living pay rise. Local Government (Green 
Book) staff have not received a cost of living pay rise for three years.  

 
8. Following local negotiations and consultations with Trade Unions, Oxfordshire 

has implemented a further freeze on incremental rises for those earning over 
£21,000 pa together with a general reduction in redundancy compensation 
rates and a reduction in car allowances to 35 pence per mile, which is below 
the Inland Revenue ‘All Car’ mileage rate.    

 
9. However, additional to these measures, in order to meet its required financial 

savings, the Council has reduced its overall staffing numbers since 1 April 
2010 by over 19%. Senior manager numbers have been reduced by over 40% 
in the same period - these reductions involved removal of layers of 
management and increased spans of control in some areas.  

 
10. Although Oxfordshire is subject to the difficult national economic situation it 

remains a relatively prosperous employment market and the Council must 
remain competitive in the levels of pay and terms and conditions of 
employment it offers in order to recruit and retain good quality staff. 

 
11. Benchmarking data on pay and severance is attached at Annex 1.  This 

shows that Oxfordshire’s current levels of pay are below the benchmark level 
for the south east region.  Oxfordshire’s severance arrangements are shown 
to be in line with other Councils and relatively modest in terms of redundancy 
payment calculator. 

 
 

Future Pay Policies and Accountability 
 
12. The pay policy statement must be reviewed and re-published every year.  

Information published in accordance with the Data Transparency Code will be 
updated regularly. 

Page 78



 
13. In order to undertake this review it is proposed to introduce a Remuneration 

Committee which will be a stand-alone committee reporting directly to full 
Council with a composition which reflects the political balance of the Council.  
The committee will have the benefit of independent pay advice.  This 
Remuneration Committee will make recommendations to Council regarding 
next year’s Statement. 

 
14. Relevant trade unions will be consulted fully on changes to the Pay Policy 

Statement. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
15. The Council is RECOMMENDED to approve: 
 

(a)  the current Pay Policy Statement at Annex 2 to this report. 
 

(b) approve the creation of the Remuneration Committee as set out in 
paragraph 13 of the report which will make recommendations to 
Council regarding future Pay Policy Statements. 

 
 
STEVE MUNN 
Head of Human Resources 
 
Contact Officer:  Sue Corrigan (01865) 810280 
 
Background Papers:  
‘Openness and Accountability in local pay: Guidance under section 40 of the 
Localism Act’, Department for Communities and Local Government; 
‘The Code of Recommended Practice for local Authorities on Data Transparency’. 
 
March 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

1 
 

Annex 1 
Benchmark Information 
 
Senior Pay 
Post Oxfordshire County 

Council Salary  
£ 

Median for County 
Councils  

£ 

Median for South East 
 
£ 

 
Chief Executive 

 
182,431 

 
189,158 

 
210,000 

Director for Children, 
Education & Families 

 
137,500 

 
134,000 

 
161,555 

Director for Environment 
& Economy 

 
128,194 

 
128,194 

 
140,000 

Director for Social & 
Community Services 

 
128,194 

 
131,608 

 
150,858 

 
Deputy Directors  
 

 
88,037–97,180 

 
118,000* 

 
105,543* 

 
Source: Senior Executive Pay in Local Government 2011 published by IDS 
Note:  Only figures where a representative number of authorities are included have been used. 
          *Based on figures published for Deputy Directors in Social and Community Services.  
 
Early Retirement and Redundancy Compensation 
How redundancy pay is calculated 
 
 
Method of calculation 

 
Oxfordshire County Council 

 
% of authorities 

Using actual salary Yes 94% 
Using statutory maximum 
figure 

No 2% 

Other No 5% 

P
age 81



 
 
 

2 
 

Lump sum compensation for redundancy 
 
 
Method of calculation 

 
Oxfordshire County Council 

 
% of authorities 

X 1.5 1.5 24% 
X 2  32% 
X 2.5  4% 
X 3  2% 
Using other formula  38% 
   
 
Augmented membership under the Local Government Pension Scheme for redundancy 
 
 
Method of calculation 

 
Oxfordshire County Council 

 
% of authorities 

No No 88% 
Yes in some cases  9% 
Yes in all cases  4% 
 
Augmented membership under the Local Government Pension Scheme for efficiency of the service retirements 
 
 
Method of calculation 

 
Oxfordshire County Council 

 
% of authorities 

No No 88% 
Yes in some cases  10% 
Yes in all cases  2% 
 
 
Source: Local Government Group Report of the Early Retirement and Redundancy Compensation Survey 2011 
 
Footnote:  Figures are for non-schools staff 

P
age 82



 
 
 

3 
 

Annex 2 
 

   Oxfordshire County Council 
Pay Policy Statement 

 
Preamble. 
 

1. This Pay Policy Statement fulfils Oxfordshire County Council’s legal 
obligations under The Localism Act 2011. It has been updated to incorporate 
current guidance. The Council will also publish details of its senior pay, salary 
and organisational structure information as required by the Code of 
Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency.  

 
2. This Statement will be published on the Council’s public website and will be 

available in other formats upon request. 
 

3. Procedural and approval requirements set down in the Council’s Constitution 
will be applied as required.  
 

4. This Policy Statement does not cover school employees. 
 
Reward Policy. 
 

5. Oxfordshire County Council aims to develop and implement reward systems 
and structures which meet the following requirements: 

 
• Allow the Council to recruit and retain high calibre employees in order to 

provide high quality services.  
• Maintain levels of pay which are in line with the Council’s financial policies 

and provide value for money. 
• Are open, transparent and accountable. 
• Are fair and consistent. 
 
6. High levels of performance are expected from employees and where 

standards are not satisfactory prompt managerial action will be taken to 
improve performance. This may include with-holding incremental rises or 
disciplinary/capability action in accordance with agreed procedures. 

 
Pay Design. 
 

7. The Chief Executive, Chief Officers1, Deputy Chief Officers and related staff 
will be employed under the relevant Joint National Council terms and 
conditions. Where the Council varies these terms and conditions locally this 
will be subject to approval by the Remuneration Committee. 

 
8. The pay of the Chief Executive, Chief Officers, Deputy Chief Officers and 

related staff will be subject to review every two years. Information relating to 

 
1 For the purposes of this Statement the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Fire Officers are treated 
as Chief Officers. 

Page 83



 
 
 

4 
 

the pay of similar posts in relevant other local authorities will be taken into 
account to ensure that pay is sufficient to recruit and retain key senior staff but 
is not excessive in comparison with other local authorities. Bonuses and 
performance related pay will not be paid. 
 

9. Grading of Deputy Chief Officers and related staff, other than in Fire and 
Rescue, will be subject to an appropriate job evaluation process.  
 

10.  Where the Chief Executive or other officer receives election fees these will be 
shown separately to salary.  These fees are set annually by the Council’s 
Democracy & Organisation Committee.  In addition, a comprehensive review 
of election fees is undertaken by the Democracy & Organisation Committee 
every four years in readiness for the County quadrennial elections. 

 
11. Grading structures and changes to salaries and remuneration for the Chief 

Executive, Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers will be considered by the 
new Remuneration Committee.  Salary packages for a new post in excess of 
£100,000 p.a. will be subject to formal approval by full Council. 
 

12. In accordance with publication requirements, a table showing information on 
the current pay of the Chief Executive, Chief Officers, Deputy Chief Officers 
and other officers, individual contractors and interims earning over £58,200 
pa, will be published on the web site by 31 March 2012.  Chief Officer Pay is 
already available.  All allowances and other payments will be shown. Bonuses 
and performance related pay are not currently paid. Expenses are based on 
nationally agreed levels except car mileage which is currently 35 pence per 
mile. 
 

13. The schemes of terms and conditions of employment and grading structures 
which apply to all groups of employees other than the Chief Executive, Chief 
Officers and Deputy Chief Officers are identified in Appendix 1. 
 

14. The highest paid officer in the Council currently receives £182,431p.a. 
including all elements of pay other than election fees.  The current lowest full 
time salary paid by the Council is £12,312 per annum2. The Council’s median 
annual salary is £27,052 per annum.  This multiplies 6.74 times into the 
annual salary of the highest paid.   
 

15. Changes to the grades of all groups of employees other than Chief Executive 
and Chief Officers will be subject to Job Evaluation Schemes in accordance 
with the Constitution and national terms and conditions as applicable. Market 
supplements may be paid in circumstances where they are required to attract 
or retain appropriate staff where a case has been agreed by the Grading 
Moderation Panel which is responsible for the local determination of job 
grades. 
 

 
2 The lowest paid salary is based on the bottom point of the ‘Green Book’ scales which is the lowest 
normal pay point – currently payable to some cleaning staff.  It does not include apprentices due to 
their trainee status or staff who have transferred in to the Council under TUPE protected rates.  
 

Page 84



 
 
 

5 
 

16. Grading structures for all groups of employees will be implemented in line with 
agreed published pay scales and agreed relevant national and local terms 
and conditions of employment listed in Appendix 1. 
 

17. Annual pay awards will be implemented in line with national negotiations for 
all employee groups except adult tutors and apprentices, for whom local 
arrangements will apply. 
 

Severance Payments 
 

18. Severance payments for all employees will comply with the Council’s 
Retirement Policy in respect of pension.  The Oxfordshire County Council 
Redundancy Scheme, which is currently one and a half times statutory 
entitlement based on actual pay, will apply where redundancy payments are 
due.  

 
19. Where other severance payments are appropriate such payments will be 

approved by the Head of Human Resources, Solicitor to the Council and the 
Chief Financial Officer, and will be the subject of a Compromise Agreement 
for the purpose of compromising any compensation for which the council may 
otherwise be legally liable.  
 

20. All employees who have received a redundancy payment in relation to the 
termination of their contracts of employment will be subject to the provisions 
of the Redundancy Modification Order and will be subject to Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations or other pension scheme 
regulations where applicable.  Information on severance payments paid is 
available at Appendix 1. 
 

21. The current employer’s pension contribution rates are set down in Appendix 2.  
 

22. Severance payments are published as required by ‘The Code of 
Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency’.   
 

23. The Council’s Retirement Policy Statement sets down its policy on payment of 
pensions. This policy Statement is reproduced as Appendix 3 of the Pay 
Policy Statement.  

 
 
Review of the Policy. 
 

24. This policy Statement will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee who 
will make recommendations for the approval of full Council annually. 

 
Steve Munn 
Head of Human Resources 
March 2012

Page 85



 
 
 

6 
 

                                                                          Appendix 1 
 
Terms and Conditions of Employment and Grading Structures.  
 
Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Executives  
Effective from 1 April 2008 
 
Pay Scale/Salary:  £182,431 pa  
 
Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers 
Effective from 1 April 2008 
Grade Pay Scale 
Director Children, Education & 
Families 

£137,500 

Director £128,194 
Assistant Chief Executive £106,282 
Monitoring Officer Grade A (see 

below) 
 
HAY Grades  
Effective from 1 April 2008 
Grade Pay Scale 
Grade A £88,037-£91,082-£94,131-£97,180 
Grade B £75,461-£78,890-£82,317-£85,750 
Grade C £62,881-£66,692-£70,500-£74,317 
Grade D £55,542-£56,439-£57,354-£58,286-£60,598 
 
National Joint Council for Local Government Services (Green book) 
Effective 1 April 2009 

Grade G1 G2 G3 G4 

SCP - £ 05 - £12,312 
06 - £12,749 

07 - £12,787 
08 - £13,189 

09 - £13,589 
10 - £13,874 
11 - £14,733 

11 - £14,733 
12 - £15,039 
13 - £15,444 

Grade G5 G6 G7 G8 

SCP - £ 

14 - £15,725 
15 - £16,054 
16 - £16,440 
17 - £16,830 

18 - £17,161 
19 - £17,802 
20 - £18,453 
21 - £19,126 

22 - £19,621 
23 - £20,198 
24 - £20,858 
25 - £21,519 

26 - £22,221 
27 - £22,958 
28 - £23,708 
29 - £24,646 

Grade G9 G10 G11 G12 

SCP - £ 

29 - £24,646 
30 - £25,472 
31 - £26,276 
32 - £27,052 

33 - £27,849 
34 - £28,636 
35 - £29,236 
36 - £30,011 

37 - £30,851 
38 - £31,754 
39 - £32,800 
40 - £33,661 

41 - £34,549 
42 - £35,430 
43 - £36,313 
44 - £37,206 

Page 86



 
 
 

7 
 

Grade G13 G14 G15 G16 

SCP - £ 

45 - £38,042 
46 - £38,961 
47 - £39,855 
48 - £40,741 

49 - £41,616 
50 - £42,505 
51 - £43,396 
52 - £44,296 

53 - £45,205 
54 - £46,111 
55 - £47,013 
56 - £47,916 

57 - £48,836 
58 - £49,738 
59 - £50,647 
60 - £51,556 

Grade G17 G18   

SCP - £ 

61 - £52,462 
62 - £53,374 
63 - £54,280 
64 - £55,189 

65 - £56,097 
66 - £57,003 
67 - £57,928 
68 - £58,869 

  

 
National Joint Council for Chief and Assistant Chief Fire Officers (Gold Book) 
Effective 1 January 2009 
 
Grade Pay Scale 
Chief Fire Officer £120,645 
Deputy Chief Fire Officer £97,722 
Assistant Chief Fire Officer £88,071 
 
National Joint Council for Fire Brigades (Grey Book) 
Effective 1 July 2009 
 
Firefighting Roles 
 
 Basic annual  

£ 
Basic hourly rate 

£ 
Overtime rate  

£ 
Firefighter    
Trainee 21,157 9.66 14.49 
Development 22,038 10.06 15.09 
Competent 28,199 12.88 19.32 
    
Crew Manager    
Development 29,971 13.69 20.54 
Competent 31,263 14.28 21.42 
    
Watch Manager    
Development 31,940 14.58 21.87 
Competent A 32,827 14.99 22.49 
Competent B 34,961 15.96 23.94 
    
Station Manager    
Development 36,365 16.60 24.90 
Competent A 37,456 17.10 25.65 
Competent B 40,109 18.31 27.47 
    

Page 87



 
 
 

8 
 

Group Manager 41,881 19.12 Not applicable 
Development 50,642 19.70 Not applicable 
Competent A 53,934 21.20 Not applicable 
Competent B    
    
Area Manager    
Development 49,167 22.45 Not applicable 
Competent A 50,642 23.12 Not applicable 
Competent B 53,934 24.63 Not applicable 
 
Protected Pay Point Basic annual  

£ 
Basic hourly rate 

£ 
Overtime rate  

£ 
Station Officer/Watch 
Manager B: Protected 
Pay Point L 

36,752 16.78 25.17 

 
 
Retained Duty System 
 
 (1) 

£ per  
annum 

(2) 
£ per  
annum 

(3) 
£ per  
annum 

(4) 
£ per  

occasion 
Firefighter     
Trainee 2,116 1,058 9.66 3.70 
Development 2,204 1,103 10.06 3.70 
Competent 2,821 1,410 12.88 3.70 
     
Crew Manager     
Development 2,998 1,499 13.69 3.70 
Competent 3,127 1,563 14.28 3.70 

 
     
Watch Manager     
Development 3,193 1,598 14.58 3.70 
Competent A 3,284 1,642 14.99 3.70 
Competent B 3,496 1,749 15.96 3.70 
     
Station 
Manager 

    

Development 3,637 1,818 16.60 3.70 
Competent A 3,745 1,872 17.10 3.70 
Competent B 4,012 2,005 18.31 3.70 
     
Group Manager     
Development 4,189 2,094 19.12 3.70 
Competent A 4,313 2,158 19.70 3.70 
Competent B 4,643 2,322 21.20 3.70 
 
 

    

Page 88



 
 
 

9 
 

Area Manager     
Development 4,917 2,459 22.45 3.70 
Competent A 5,065 2,532 23.12 3.70 
Competent B 5,394 2,697 24.63 3.70 
 
Column 1 shows the full annual retainer 
Column 2 shows the retainer for employees on the day crewing duty system 
Column 3 shows the hourly rate for work undertaken 
Column 4 shows the disturbance payment per call-out 
 
 
Control Specific Roles  
 Basic annual  

£ 
Basic hourly rate 

£ 
Overtime rate  

£ 
Firefighter    
Trainee 20,099 9.18 13.77 
Development 20,935 9.56 14.34 
Competent 26,790 12.23 18.35 
    
Crew Manager    
Development 28,472 13.00 19.50 
Competent 29,700 13.56 20.34 
    
Watch Manager    
Development 30,345 13.86 20.79 
Competent A 31,187 14.24 21.36 
Competent B 33,211 15.16 22.74 
    
Station Manager    
Development 34,547 15.77 23.66 
Competent A 35,583 16.25 24.38 
Competent B 38,104 17.40 26.10 
    
Group Manager    
Development 39,788 18.17 Not applicable 
Competent A 40,980 18.71 Not applicable 
Competent B 44,108 20.14 Not applicable 
 
Protected Pay 
Point 

Basic annual  
£ 

Basic hourly rate 
£ 

Overtime rate  
£ 

Fire Control Officer: 
Protected Pay 
Point L 

34,879 15.93 23.90 

Principal Fire 
Control Office: 
Protected Pay 
Point P 

44,420 20.28 Not applicable 

 
 

Page 89



 
 
 

10 
 

Non-operational staff 
 
 £ 

per annum 
Fire Control Operator equivalent  
During first six months 18,019 
After six months and during 2nd year 18,817 
During 3rd year 19,712 
During 4th year 20,681 
During 5th year 22,524 
  
Leading Fire Control Operator equivalent 24,121 
  
Senior Fire Control Operator equivalent  
During 1st year in rank 24,741 
During 2nd year in rank 25,678 
 
Junior Firefighters  
 £ 

per annum 
Aged 16 9,787 
Aged 17 10,518 
Aged 18 21,157 
 
Soulbury Committee (Blue Book) 
Effective 1 September 2009 
 
Educational Psychologists – Scale A 
 
Spine Point Salary  
1 £33,934 
2 £35,656 
3 £37,378 
4 £39,100 
5 £40,822 
6 £42,544 
7 £44,165 
8 £45,786 
9 £47,305* 
10 £48,825* 
11 £50,243* 
 
Notes: Salary scales to consist of six consecutive points, based on the duties and 
responsibilities attaching to posts and the need to recruit, retain and motivate staff. 
* Extension to scale to accommodate structured professional assessment points. 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



 
 
 

11 
 

Senior & Principal Educational Psychologists – Scale B 
 
Spine Point Salary  
1 £42,544 
2 £44,165 
3 £45,786* 
4 £47,305 
5 £48,825 
6 £50,243 
7 £50,825 
8 £51,912 
9 £52,989 
10 £54,085 
11 £55,159 
12 £56,255 
13 £57,370 
14 £58,477** 
15 £59,575** 
16 £60,693** 
17 £61,848** 
18 £62,942** 
 Notes: Salary scales to consist of not more than four consecutive points, based on 
the duties and responsibilities attaching to posts and the need to recruit, retain and 
motivate staff.  * Normal minimum point for the Principle Educational Psychologist 
undertaking the full range of duties at this level.  ** Extension to range to 
accommodate discretionary scale points and structured professional assessments.  
 
Trainee Educational Psychologists  
 
Spine point Salary  
1 £21,801 
2 £23,397 
3 £24,991 
4 £26,587 
5 £28,182 
6 £29,777 
 
Assistant  Educational Psychologists 
 
Spine point Salary  
1 £26,799 
2 £27,893 
3 £28,988 
4 £30,076 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



 
 
 

12 
 

Adult Education 
Effective 1 September 2009 

Grade  Spinal Point  Salary) 
ADGR1 20 19,663.00 
ADGR2 21 20,616.33 
ADGR2 22 21,579.33 
ADGR3 23 22,542.00 
ADGR3 25 23,753.00 
ADGR3 27 25,002.00 
ADGR3 29 26,269.33 
ADGR4 30 27,992.33 
ADGR4 31 29,048.67 
ADGR4 32 30,089.67 
ADGR4 33 31,134.00 
 
Teachers (Burgundy Book) 
Effective 1 September 2010 
Main Pay Scale TPA Code Per Annum Per Day 
TMS1 WOO £21,588 £110.71 
TMS2 WOO £23,295 £119.46 
TMS3 WOO £25,168 £129.07 
TMS4 WOO £27,104 £138.99 
TMS5 WOO £29,240 £149.95 
TMS6 WOO £31,552 £161.81 

Upper Pay Scale 
 
TPA Code 

 
Per Annum 

 
Per Day 

UPS1 POO £34,181 £175.29 
UPS2 POO £35,447 £181.78 
UPS3 POO £36,756 £188.49 
Instructors Pay Scale TPA Code Per Annum Per Day 
UNQ1 UQ04 £15,817 £81.11 
UNQ2 UQ04 £17,657 £90.55 
UNQ3 UQ04 £19,497 £99.98 
UNQ4 UQ04 £21,336 £109.42 
UNQ5 UQ04 £23,177 £118.86 
UNQ6 UQ04 £25,016 £128.29 
 
Teaching and Learning Responsibility allowances  
TLR2 minimum £2,535 TLR2 maximum £6,197 
TLR1 minimum £7,323 TLR1 maximum £12,393 
 
The School / Service sets the actual pay points within these ranges but there must be 
gaps between pay points of over £1500.  Most schools use the standard OCC rates 
for allowances which are as follows:  TLR2 (1) 2535, TLR2 (2) 4225, TLR2 (3a) 5914 
or TLR2 (3b) 6197, TLR1 (1) 7323, TLR1 (2) 9012, TLR1 (3) 10702, TLR1 (4) 12393. 
 
 

Page 92



 
 
 

13 
 

SEN Allowance 1 £2,001   SEN Allowance 2 £3,954 
Excellent Teacher Pay 
Scale   £39,697 to £52,090 

Leadership Pay Spine Per Annum Leadership Pay Spine Per Annum 

L1* £37,461 L23 £64,367 
L2* £38,400 L24 £65,963 
L3* £39,358 L25 £67,602 
L4* £40,339 L26 £69,275 
L5* £41,343 L27 £70,991 
L6* £42,379 L28 £72,752 
L7* £43,521 L29 £74,554 
L8* £44,525 L30 £76,409 
L9* £45,637 L31 £78,298 
L10* £46,808 L32 £80,244 
L11* £48,024 L33 £82,238 
L12* £49,130 L34 £84,271 
L13* £50,359 L35 £86,365 
L14* £51,614 L36 £88,504 
L15* £52,900 L37 £90,704 
L16* £54,305 L38 £92,948 
L17* £55,553 L39 £95,213 
L18* £56,950 L40 £97,590 
L19 £58,362 L41 £100,028 
L20 £59,809 L42 £102,534 
L21 £61,288 L43 £105,097 
L22 £62,811 L43 £105,097 

* Means that this is also the pay point for an advanced skills teacher 
 
National Joint Council for Workshops for the Blind 
Effective 1 April 2009 
 
Probationary Grade:  £12,312 pa 
Substantive Grade:    £12,410 pa 
 
Apprentices 
Effective  
 
 Intermediate (GCCSE 

Grades D-G) 
Advance Apprentice 
(GCCSE Grades A*-C) 

Age 16-18 19+ 21+ Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 
Up to 6 months £7,003 £7,003 £7,003 £12,312 £12,787 £13,589 
6-12 months £7,500 £7,500 £7,500 Progression through grade 
After 12 months £9,466 £9,466 £11,410 Determined via job evaluation 

 
 
    

Page 93



 
 
 

14 
 

Appendix 2 
 
Pension Contribution Rates 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
From 1st April 2011 contribution rates are calculated on the bands indicated 
below based on whole time equivalent salary and pensionable allowances in 
accordance with the following table: 
 
Band Range (based on 

pensionable earnings)  
Contribution 

Rate - 
Employee 

Contribution 
Rate - 

Employer 
1 £0 - £12,900.99 pa  5.5% 19.3% 
2 £12,901.00 - £15,100.99 5.8% 19.3% 
3 £15,101.00 - £19,400.99 5.9% 19.3% 
4 £19,401.00 - £32,400.99 6.5% 19.3% 
5 £32,401.00 - £43,300.99 6.8% 19.3% 
6 £43,301.00 - £81,100.99 7.2% 19.3% 
7 £81,100.00 and above 7.5% 19.3% 

 
 
Fire Brigades Pension Scheme 
 
Band Range  Contribution 

Rate - 
Employee 

Contribution 
Rate - 

Employer 
1 All Fire Brigade Pension 

Scheme members apart 
from retained  

11.0% 21.3% 

2 Retained and whole-time 
after April 2006. 

8.5% 11.0% 

 
 
Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
 
Band Applicable to Contribution 

Rate - 
Employee 

Contribution 
Rate - 

Employer 
Single 
band 

All Teachers’ Pension 
Scheme members 

6.4% 14.1% 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



 
 
 

15 
 

 
 
 

Appendix 3 
Retirement Policy Statement 
 
Preamble 
 
Employees are no longer subject to a general retirement date (effective from 1st 
October 2011). Employment will therefore continue until it is ended by either the 
employee giving notice or action by the employer for a specified reason such as 
redundancy or dismissal for conduct or capability reasons.  
 
The Council acknowledges the importance for employees who are planning to retire 
to achieve a balance between work and other interests. Managers are encouraged to 
seriously consider requests for flexible working arrangements which are desired as a 
variation to the existing contract of employment. However, managers reserve the right 
to refuse requests where there are sound business reasons which require that the job 
under consideration can only be carried out effectively on its present basis. 
 
Principles 
 

1. This policy 
2.  applies from 1 October 2011 to all employees who are members of The 

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) or are eligible to join.  A 
separate version of this policy applies to teachers. Uniformed Fire-fighters 
are covered by a separate policy.  

 
3. An employee who has chosen not to contribute to the Local Government 

Pension Scheme will receive no pension benefits from the Fund under this 
scheme upon retirement. Redundancy compensation will be paid where 
appropriate as set out in Paragraph 15 below. 

 
4. An employee who is aged 60 or older may choose to retire by giving the 

appropriate notice.  Those employees who have a sufficient period of 
membership in the pension scheme may choose to receive immediate 
payment of pension, in accordance with Pension regulations.  Pension 
received may be reduced in some circumstances so employees are 
advised to contact Pension Services for information about any pension 
entitlement and the arrangements for payment options. 

 
5. An employee who is aged between 55 and 75 may request “flexible 

retirement” under the LGPS Pension Regulations. This involves continuing 
to work and either reducing his/her hours of work or accepting a lower paid 
job within the Council while receiving an immediate payment of pension 
benefits. These benefits may be reduced or unreduced depending on 
entitlement. This flexible retirement arrangement will only be available 
where all of the following apply: 

 
• Agreement is obtained from Pensions Benefits Sub-Committee, 

Page 95



 
 
 

16 
 

see Paragraph 11 below. Each case will be considered on its 
merits, although an application is unlikely to succeed where there 
are costs to the Council and the benefits to the service are not 
explicit.  

• There is a mutual agreement between the employee and 
management that the change in hours or grade can be 
accommodated and the arrangement is expected to continue for 
a period on no less than one year. 

• The changes to employment result in a reduction in income of 25 
per cent or more of the normal pay of the current contracted 
employment, either by a reduction in hours or a reduction in 
grade or a combination of both. 

 
6. Retirement with an immediate payment of pension before the age of 65 

years may also arise for the reasons set down in paragraphs 10 and 11 
below and is subject to the conditions stated.  

 
7. An ex-employee who has retired and is receiving a Local Government 

Pension will not normally be re-employed by the County Council unless 
he/she has been selected by a full recruitment process. However, retired 
employees may register for short-term casual work without further process. 
All re-employed pensioners and employees who commence employment 
are required to advise the Authority who pays his/her pension of any new 
employment as his/her pension may be reduced in accordance with 
Pension Scheme Regulations and Compensation Regulations.      

 
8. The Council will not at any time augment the pension or membership of 

employees.  
 

9. Employees are advised to seek guidance about the financial implications of 
continuing to work and starting to draw a LGPS or personal pension.  

 
Special Retirements 
 
10. In the case of the retirements referred to in paragraphs 10 and 11 below re-

deployment to other appropriate employment will be considered and offered 
as an alternative to retirement where appropriate and available. 

 
III Health Retirements 
 
11. An employee who has been certified by an independent Occupational 

Health Advisor as being permanently incapable of discharging his/her 
duties or other comparable duties due to ill health or infirmity of body or 
mind may retire at any age, with immediate payment of a pension in 
accordance with Pension regulations where sufficient pension contributions 
have been made. 

 
Other Retirements requiring the Approval of the Democracy & Organisation 
Committee’s Pensions Benefits Sub-Committee 
 

Page 96



 
 
 

17 
 

12. Early retirement may be granted for employees aged 55 years and over in 
the circumstances set out in a) and (c) below, taking into consideration the 
full cost of the retirement and the best interest of the Council. 

 
(a) Redundancy, after the Council’s Redundancy Procedure has been 

followed.   
In this case employees will receive immediate payment of their 
pension entitlement and redundancy compensation will be paid 
where appropriate in accordance with the Oxfordshire County 
Council Redundancy Payments Scheme (effective 1 April 2011) 
which is one and a half times the statutory calculation based on 
actual pay. 

 
(b) Where an employee has continuing health problems and it is in the 

interests of the efficiency of the Council’s operations. 
In this case immediate payment of pension will be granted to an 
employee who does not satisfy the Local Government Pension 
Scheme criteria for retirement on the grounds of ill health, but who is 
suffering from a substantial medical or psychiatric condition and 
whose retirement is recommended by the Council’s Occupational 
Health physician because he/she is likely to be significantly less 
efficient for the foreseeable future due to health reasons.  

 
(c) Where an employee has requested flexible retirement and satisfies 

the criteria in Paragraph 4 above.  
 

13. The Council will not normally agree to early payment of benefits or early 
retirement on other grounds, including requests from current employees 
aged 55 to 59 or deferred benefits from ex-employees where there is a cost 
to the Council. This does not prevent an employee aged 55 to 59 years 
who wishes to, from leaving the employment of the authority and accessing 
their pension early or from making a written request to the Sub-Committee. 
However, such applications will not normally be supported by management 
and are unlikely to succeed due to the associated costs. Furthermore, 
benefits will be reduced in any cases which might be agreed unless 
compassionate grounds apply.  

 
14. The Council reserves its power to agree early retirement in exceptional 

cases as part of a Compromise Agreement. 
 

 
 

 
Redundancy with no Entitlement to Immediate Payment of Pension Benefits 
 
15. Where a redundant employee has contributed to the LGPS but has no 

entitlement to immediate payment of pension, he/she will receive 
redundancy compensation, where appropriate, in accordance with the 
Oxfordshire County Council Redundancy Payments Scheme (effective from 
1 April 2011) which is one and a half times the statutory calculation based 

Page 97



 
 
 

18 
 

on actual pay and is not subject to age restrictions. 
 
 
 
Disputes Procedure 

 
16. Where a member of the LGPS has a dispute regarding his/her pension 

he/she may refer this as appropriate through the County’s agreed Raising 
Concerns at Work Procedure or through the procedures Independent 
Resolving Disagreements Procedure (IRDP) laid down in the Pension 
Regulations to the Nominated Person. 

 
Revision of this Policy 

 
17. This policy will be reviewed within three years of its implementation or 

earlier if deemed necessary. 
 

 
 
Head of Human Resources  
 
August 2011 

Page 98



Division(s): N/A 
 
 

COUNCIL – 20 MARCH 2012 
 

LOCAL AUTHORITY STANDARDS 
 

Report by Head of Law and Governance 
 
 

Introduction 
 

1. At its meeting in December 2011, the Standards Committee gave initial 
consideration to the standards implications of the Localism Act. At that time, 
the Committee was minded to recommend Council to retain a standards 
committee under the new regime. However, the Committee met on 5 March 
2012 to consider the implications of the Act in more detail and is now making 
specific recommendations to full Council about the future shape of standards 
arrangements for the County Council. This report sets out the Committee’s 
recommendations for resolving local complaints against members.  

 

Background 
 
2. The Coalition Government proposals with regards to fulfilling their 

commitment to abolish the standards regime are now in place.  The key 
changes are: 

 
a) Abolishing predetermination rule to allow Local Members to speak up 

on local issues; 
b) Abolition of Standards for England; 
c) Local Councils to make provision for their own local arrangements for 

maintaining standards; 
d) Requirement to have a Local Code of Conduct (with reduced number of 

key principles); 
e) Freedom to make their own arrangements for handling and 

investigating complaints; 
f) Requirement to consult an Independent person; 
g) Limitation of sanctions against misconduct; 
h) Criminal sanction introduced for failing to register and declare a 

pecuniary interest (with safeguards). 
 

3. The remit of the Government is that Members should be responsible for their 
own conduct but that they should be answerable to the electorate for their 
conduct and answerable to the Court if they have broken the law. In many 
respects it is a return to the pre 1999 position whereby complaints were 
handled by the Monitoring Officer in close liaison with the Chief Executive and 
relevant Group Leaders.   

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 99



4. The law requires the Council to promote and maintain high standards, to 
adopt a local Code of Conduct and to have in place arrangements for 
investigating and deciding on any allegations of a breach of the Code.  
Therefore, there needs to be agreed arrangements as to how these matters 
will be dealt with in a proper manner, which is politically neutral and 
independent from undue influence.  The Monitoring Officer has the statutory 
responsibility for these arrangements and will need to ensure an appropriate 
procedure is in place.   

 
5. At the meeting of Standards Committee on 5 March 2012 consideration was 

given to suggesting a new arrangement which would reflect these aims. 
 

6. It has not been possible to finalise these arrangements and submit a Code of 
Conduct for Council’s approval as the relevant regulations dealing with the 
members’ register of interests has yet to be published. 

 
Proposal 

 
7. The Committee is therefore recommending the following arrangement to 

Council, whereby a standards committee is not reappointed and alternative 
arrangements are put in place.  It is suggested that a member /officer Working 
Group be set up along the lines of the existing Audit Working Group, thereby 
creating a pool of members who could be involved in handling complaints 
about Councillors under any revised Code of Conduct.  Its work would be 
reported to the Audit Committee, giving the assurance of formal Member 
oversight.  The Monitoring Officer would include reference to this work in his 
Annual Monitoring Report, which already goes to the Audit Committee. 

 
8. Adopting this arrangement would simply require the slight expansion of the 

terms of reference of the Audit Committee to reflect its oversight of the 
standards matters. The advantage is that this avoids the necessity of having 
an additional statutory Committee solely to deal with standards and becomes 
part of the wider governance framework whilst still maintaining proper Member 
oversight and ownership. 

 
9. In making such a change, and to reflect it more clearly, it might be appropriate 

to expand the title of the current Audit Committee to the “Audit and 
Governance Committee”.  The Audit Committee is well used to handling 
confidential matters in both an informal and a formal manner and in general 
terms is ‘non-political’ in its role and outlook.   

 
10. The Chief Executive and the Monitoring Officer regard this as the minimum 

arrangements that should be place in order for the Monitoring Officer to fulfil 
his statutory obligations as regards Member standards under the Localism 
Act.  This proposal, therefore, has the general support of the Chief Executive, 
the Monitoring Officer, Group Leaders and the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 100



RECOMMENDATION 
 

11. The Standards Committee RECOMMEND Council that: 
 
(a) a Standards Committee is not appointed under the Localism Act 2011; 
(b) The Audit Committee be renamed as the Audit & Governance 

Committee and its terms of reference expanded to include overview of 
member standards; 

(c) a member-officer working group be appointed to enable consideration 
of standards complaints against members of the Council reporting to 
the Audit & Governance Committee; 

(d) The Monitoring Officer to submit for Council’s approval an appropriate 
procedure for the handling of complaints.  

 
PETER G CLARK 
County Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 

 

Background papers:   The Localism Act 2011 

Contact Officer: Peter Clark  

 
March 2012 
 

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): NA 
COPY 

 
CABINET – 13 MARCH 2012 

 

EQUALITY POLICY 2012-2017 
 

Report by Head of Law and Governance 
 

Introduction 
 
1. The Equality Policy 2012-2017 sets out how the Council is approaching its 

responsibilities for ensuring that all residents in Oxfordshire have fair access 
to services and equal life chances.  It also demonstrates how the Council is 
meeting the requirements placed on public bodies under the Equality Act 
2010, including setting equality objectives for the next four years. 
 

2. A draft of the policy has been out for public consultation since January, and 
the final policy has been amended to reflect feedback from internal and 
external stakeholders. To fulfil our legislative requirements, the final policy will 
be published by 6th April 2012, and progress in implementing it will be 
monitored and reported as part of the council's overall performance 
management arrangements. 

 
 

 Requirements of the Equality Act 2010 
 
3.  The Equality Act 2010 places a requirement on public bodies to give due 

regard to the need to: 
 
• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct prohibited by the Act. 
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 
• Foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic, and those who do not. 
 
4. There is also an Equality Duty that replaces the previous public sector 

equality duties for disability, ethnicity and gender and covers the following 
protected characteristics: 
 
• Age 
• Disability 
• Gender reassignment 
• Marriage and civil partnership (but only in respect of eliminating unlawful 

discrimination) 
• Pregnancy and maternity 
• Race – this includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality 
• Religion or belief – this includes lack of belief 
• Sex 
• Sexual orientation 

Agenda Item 10

Page 103



CC10 
 
 

 
5. The Equality Duty requires public bodies to consider how the decisions that 

they make, and the services they deliver, affect people who share different 
protected characteristics. The Council must publish information by 31st 
January 2012 to demonstrate that it has done this, and at least annually 
thereafter.  
 

6. In addition the Council is also required to set specific, measurable equality 
objectives and publish these, along with an equality policy, by 6th April 2012. 
There is an expectation that this will follow consultation and should be linked 
to the information that is published. The equality objectives must be refreshed 
at least every four years. 

 
 

Demonstrating Compliance with the Equality Act and specific 
duties 

 
7. A detailed report has been produced that evidences the wide range of actions 

the Council is taking to comply with the requirements of the public sector 
equality duty, and provide examples of how service areas are improving 
outcomes for people who share the protected characteristics. It also 
summarises the make-up of Oxfordshire’s population in relation to people who 
share protected characteristics.  
 

8. This information was published on the Council’s website before 31st January 
2012 as part of demonstrating compliance with the equality duty, and is 
available at:  
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/public-site/equality-and-cohesion 
 

9. This document includes a general statement of effectiveness in complying 
with the requirements of the Equality Act. Based on the examples and actions 
provided it is considered that the council performs very well in meeting the 
needs of people who share protected characteristics.  
 

10. However, there are a number of areas where there is room for further 
improvement and these will form the basis of the council’s equality objectives 
for the next four years.  
 

11. The Council is also required to publish information to demonstrate it has 
considered how its activities as an employer affect people who share different 
protected characteristics. A separate Equality Duty in Employment Report 
2011 has been produced and is available at: 
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/fairness-and-equality-work 
 
 

Consultation with Stakeholders 
 

12. Public consultation on a draft of the Equality Policy 2012-2017 took place 
between 19 January and 2 March 2012 (a period of 6 weeks).  
 

Page 104



CC10 
 
 

13. Details of the written consultation including the draft policy document, 
supporting information and links to an online survey were placed on the 
council’s intranet site and public website and promoted using home page 
features and headlines. 
 

14. Key stakeholders were also contacted directly and invited to comment, 
including all staff and Councillors; district, town and parish councils; other 
public sector organisations including Thames Valley Police, the Primary Care 
Trust, schools, universities and the military; voluntary, community and faith 
sector organisations and charities, including those representing people who 
share protected characteristics as set out in the Equality Act 2010.   
 

15. A stakeholder workshop took place on 17 February 2012, offering an 
opportunity to discuss the draft policy and comment in more detail as part of 
the consultation. A wide range of public, voluntary, community and faith sector 
organisations and charities were invited, along with some existing service 
users.  
 

16. In total 21 people attended the stakeholder workshop and 10 responses were 
received to the online consultation, with a further 2 responses sent by email. 
 

17. A summary of the outcomes of the consultation is attached as Annex 2, with 
the detailed responses available in the councillor’s resource room. 
 

18. Overall, the outcomes of the consultation indicate there was broad support for 
the council’s overall ambition for and approach to equalities.  There we some 
objections expressed about the use of language; the need for clarification and 
examples of current performance; more consideration of governance and 
accountability; further explanation of the council’s approach to mainstreaming; 
and the need to manage expectations. The feedback also provided helpful 
suggestions for how the key issues might be delivered. 

 
 

Equality Policy 2012-2017 
 

19. Attached to this report is the Equality Policy 2012-2017. It sets out the 
Councils ambition for equality of opportunity as follows: 
 
“Oxfordshire County Council is committed to making Oxfordshire a fair 
and equal place in which to live, work and visit.   

 
We aim to ensure that our staff are equipped with the knowledge and 
skills to meet the diverse needs of customers, that our services are 
accessible and to encourage supportive and cohesive communities 
through our service delivery.”  
 

20. The policy also includes a general statement of effectiveness: 
 
Oxfordshire County Council considers that it performs well in meeting 
the requirements of the Equality Duty. 

Page 105



CC10 
 
 

 
21. In setting out how the Council will achieve its ambition, and in recognising that 

there despite performing well there are areas where improvement is needed, 
the policy is structured around four key equality objectives: 
 
Objective 1 - Understanding the needs of individuals and communities 

 
Objective 2 - Providing accessible, local and personalised services 

 
Objective 3 - Supporting thriving and cohesive communities 

 
Objective 4 - Promoting a culture of fairness in employment and service  

delivery 
 
22. The policy has been updated and amended to reflect the outcomes of the 

consultation and the feedback will continue to inform implementation of the 
policy. In particular, more detail has been added under each objective to 
provide more explanation of what each means and why it is considered to be 
important. This includes more examples of what the council is already doing, 
providing a stronger link to the supporting information about our current 
performance that has already been published on the council website to 
demonstrate our compliance with the public sector equality duty (see   
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/public-site/equality-and-cohesion) 

 
23. The four key equality objectives have also been amended slightly from the 

key issues published as part of the consultation document, to reflect feedback 
during the consultation period:  
 

(a) Objective 1 previously referred to ‘understanding the needs of customers’, 
a term that people did not feel accurately reflected the fact that many 
service users do not choose to access our services, or that many people do 
not access council services at all. 

(b) Objective 4 was previously ‘promoting a culture of fairness’, and in 
response to feedback has been amended to be more specific about what 
we are aiming to achieve. 

 
24. These key equality objectives link closely to the overall strategic objectives of 

the council as set out in the Council Plan 2012-1017. A number of actions are 
set out under each objective, based on the need to build on current practice 
and address areas for improvement. These actions are closely linked to 
existing strategies, plans and objectives, and will be reported on as part of the 
Council’s quarterly performance monitoring arrangements (rather than 
establishing another performance management process).  

 
 

Financial and Staff Implications 
 
25. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. However 

there may be financial implications arising from the delivery of some of the 
actions against the objectives in the Equality Policy 2012-2017. These will be 
met from within existing budgets. 

Page 106



CC10 
 
 

 
26. The implementation of the Equality Policy 2012-2017 will require all staff to be 

aware of their responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010, and of the 
Council’s approach to ‘mainstreaming’ its equality work. Appropriate training 
and briefing opportunities will be delivered throughout the coming year, 
including through the corporate learning and development programme. 
 
 
Equality Implications 
 

27. By definition the Equality Policy 2012-2017 is intended to have a positive 
impact on all groups that share protected characteristics as defined in the 
Equality Act 2010. However, in keeping with Council guidance these 
implications have been considered in more detail in the Service and 
Community Impact Assessment attached at Annex 4. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
28. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to approve the Council’s judgement on 

effectiveness and key equality objectives as set out in the Equality 
Policy 2012/2017 and to RECOMMEND Council to receive the report. 

 
 
Peter Clark 
Head of Law and Governance 
 
Background papers:  None 
Contact Officer:  Ben Threadgold, Senior Policy and Performance Officer,  
01865 32 8219  

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Annex 1: Equality Policy 2012-2017 
 

 
 

Oxfordshire County Council 
Equality Policy 2012-2017 

 
Fair Access to Services; 

Equal Life Chances 
 

How the County Council ensures fairness and 
real choice in the delivery of services 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 109



 
What equality means to us 
 
Equality, opportunity, local choice. 
 
These values inform how Oxfordshire County Council delivers services to the people 
of Oxfordshire. Both the Cabinet and management team are united in their 
commitment to ensure that everyone in Oxfordshire has the opportunity to share in a 
thriving Oxfordshire. 
 
The new equality policy brings together many years of work in developing fairer and 
more accessible services. It represents the county council’s continuing commitment 
to customer service and local choice. No single approach to delivering services can 
be expected to meet everyone’s needs. Effective services should be flexible, 
responsive and designed around the diversity of interests that their customers have.  
 
The purpose of the policy is also to establish a change of approach, based on the 
principles of transparency about how our services are performing, clarity about what 
action we are taking and the involvement of users, community groups or staff in the 
solution. We are also committed to making equalities integral to everything we do, 
ensuring it seen as part of everyone’s business and a way of helping us deliver 
excellent outcomes for individuals and communities. The document has been 
developed in line with the objectives of our Corporate Plan and sits alongside 
published information on the county council’s performance. 
 
The county council promotes equality though the broad range of public services that 
it delivers. Oxfordshire County Council is responsible for providing many key local 
services and employs over 20,000 people to deliver them. Each year the council 
manages over £900 million of public money in the provision of these services on 
behalf of Oxfordshire's 650,000 people. This includes schools, social services, the 
fire service, roads, libraries and the museums service, trading standards, land use, 
transport planning and waste management. Ensuring that such diverse services are 
responsive to the needs of individuals and communities is a key challenge that this 
policy aims to tackle. 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Kieron Mallon 
Cabinet Member for Police & Policy Coordination 
 
Joanna Simons CBE 
Chief Executive 

Page 110



 
Contents 

 
 
 

1.0 Introduction ....................................................................................................... 4 

2.0 Equality of Opportunity – Our Ambition ............................................................. 7 

3.0 Objective 1 - Understanding the needs of individuals and communities ........... 9 

4.0 Objective 2 - Providing accessible, local and personalised services .............. 11 

5.0 Objective 3 - Supporting thriving and cohesive communities .......................... 13 

6.0 Objective 4 - Promoting a culture of fairness in employment and service   

          delivery ........................................................................................................... 15 

7.0 Service and Community Impact Assessments ................................................ 17 

8.0 Monitoring and Governance............................................................................ 18 

9.0 More information ............................................................................................. 18 

 

Page 111



 

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1. The purpose of this policy is to set out how the Council is approaching its 

responsibilities for ensuring that all residents in Oxfordshire have fair access 
to services and equal life chances.  It also demonstrates how the Council is 
meeting the requirements placed on public bodies under the Equality Act 
2010.  
 

1.2 Our approach to equalities is based around addressing four key objectives: 
 
• Understanding the needs of individuals and communities 
• Providing accessible, local and personalised services 
• Supporting thriving and cohesive communities 
• Promoting a culture of fairness in employment and service delivery 
 

1.3 This policy is supported by a document that sets out how we are meeting each 
of these key issues in terms of current performance, focusing particularly on 
how we  meet the needs of people who share protected equality 
characteristics. The supporting evidence does not include everything the 
Council is doing, but highlights the key areas of success and, where 
necessary, where action is being taken to improve outcomes. The supporting 
information is available at: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/public-site/equality-
and-cohesion.  
 

1.4 The following information has been used to inform this policy: 
 
• The number of people with different protected characteristics who access 

and use services in different ways. 
• Customer satisfaction levels and informal feedback from service users with 

different protected characteristics, and results of consultations. 
• Complaints about discrimination and complaints from people with different 

protected characteristics. 
• Details of policies and programmes that have been put in place to ensure 

high equality standards or address equality concerns in service delivery. 
 

1.5 Monitoring and reporting on these areas enables us to analyse the information 
to see if there are differences between protected characteristics and 
investigate the processes which have resulted in these differences, taking 
action as necessary to try and remove barriers and promote equality for all 
groups.  
 
The Equality Act 2010 
 

1.6 As a public body, Oxfordshire County Council recognises the requirement to 
give due regard to the three main aims of the Equality Duty, and the need to: 
 

Page 112



• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

• Foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic, and those who do not. 

 
1.7 The Public Sector Equality Duty replaces the previous public sector equality 

duties for disability, ethnicity and gender and covers the following protected 
characteristics: 
 
• Age 
• Disability 
• Gender reassignment 
• Marriage and civil partnership (but only in respect of eliminating unlawful 

discrimination) 
• Pregnancy and maternity 
• Race – this includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality 
• Religion or belief – this includes lack of belief 
• Sex 
• Sexual orientation 

 
1.8 The Public Sector Equality Duty requires public bodies to consider how the 

decisions that they make, and the services they deliver, affect people who 
share different protected characteristics and publish information to 
demonstrate that they have done this. In addition the Council is also required 
to set specific, measurable equality objectives and publish these, along with 
an equality policy.  
 

1.9 The Council is also required to publish information to demonstrate it has 
considered how its activities as an employer affect people who share different 
protected characteristics. This is available at: 
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/fairness-and-equality-work 

 
Human Rights Act  
 
1.10 The Human Rights Act requires public bodies to have regard to the human 

rights set out in the European Convention, and to ensure that the human rights 
of all members of the community are respected in all that they do. Human 
rights are based on core principles like dignity, fairness, equality, respect and 
autonomy. 
 

1.11 The Human Rights Act is not just about preventing public authorities from 
taking certain actions. It also requires them to take proactive steps to prevent 
breaches of human rights from happening in the first place, no matter who or 
what is causing the harm. The Act seeks to respect all individuals' rights, 
including the right to effectively take part in decisions made by public 
authorities and to get fair and equal services from public authorities.  
 

Page 113



 
1.12 All children and young people up to the age of 18 years have rights under the 

United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC). Some groups 
of children and young people – for example those living away from home, and 
young disabled people – have additional rights to make sure they are treated 
fairly and their needs are met. 
 

1.13 The purpose of the UN Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities 
(UNCRPD) is to promote, protect and ensure the full and equal enjoyment of 
all human rights by disabled people 
 

1.14 Local authorities must consider human rights when making decisions and 
determining policies. This can be of particular value in underpinning a range of 
policy and practice developments, and in safeguarding vital services, 
particularly for the most vulnerable groups. It can also help to determine 
proportionate action, especially where the interests of different parties conflict. 
 

Page 114



2.0 Equality of Opportunity – Our Ambition  
 
 
2.1 Oxfordshire County Council is committed to making Oxfordshire a fair and 

equal place in which to live, work and visit.   
 

2.2 We aim to ensure that our staff are equipped with the knowledge and skills to 
meet the diverse needs of customers, that our services are accessible and to 
encourage supportive and cohesive communities through our service delivery.  
 

General Statement of Effectiveness 
 
2.3 In general, Oxfordshire County Council considers that it performs well in 

meeting the requirements of the Equality Duty. This is based on the range 
of evidence contained in this document and the supporting information, which 
demonstrates the wide range of actions being taken across service areas to 
avoid discrimination and harassment, advance equality of opportunity or foster 
good relations. 

 
2.4 The Council has a raised awareness of the impact of our policies, practices 

and decisions on people with different protected characteristics. This enables 
us to make informed decisions about policies and practices which are based 
on evidence about the impact of our activities on equality, and have due 
regard to the aims of the general equality duty by ensuring that staff have 
appropriate information for decision-making.  

  
2.5 We regularly assess whether we are discriminating unlawfully when carrying 

out any of our functions, and benchmark our performance and processes 
against those of similar organisations nationally and locally. We also consider 
taking steps to meet the needs of staff and service users who share relevant 
protected characteristics where appropriate, based on evidence and 
assessment of performance. 

 
 

2.6 However, as demonstrated elsewhere in this document there are a number of 
specific areas where we need to take action to improve our performance, and 
to improve outcomes for people who share protected characteristics. These 
areas form the basis of the key equality objectives for the Council, and the 
priorities for action we have identified. 

 
What we are seeking to achieve 
 

2.7 In achieving our ambition, we have identified four key equality issues for the 
Council, and these will guide our approach: 

 
• Objective 1- Understanding the needs of individuals and communities 
 
• Objective 2 -Providing accessible, local and personalised services 

Page 115



 
• Objective 3 - Supporting thriving and cohesive communities 
 
• Objective 4 - Promoting a culture of fairness in employment and service 

delivery 
 
2.8 These key equality objectives align closely with the Council’s overall strategic 

objectives, as set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan. This helps to ensure 
that our work on equality and diversity is embedded within service planning 
delivery rather than being seen as separate, and supports our commitment to 
making equalities integral to everything we do.  

 
3.0 For each key objective we have identified a number of actions will be taking to 

build on current achievements and address areas where improvement is 
needed in our performance. Progress in delivering these actions will be 
monitored as part of the Council’s overall performance management 
framework to further reinforce the ‘mainstreaming’ of our approach to equality 
and diversity. 

 

Page 116



 

2.0   Objective 1 - Understanding the needs of individuals 
and communities  

 
 
2.1 This objective is focused on how we understand the needs of the people and 

communities of Oxfordshire, including the wide range of consultation and 
engagement arrangements we already have in place. The objectives that follow 
focus on how we use this better understanding of need to plan services in 
response to the needs we have identified. 
 

2.2 Over the next twenty years Oxfordshire is expected to continue to become more 
ethnically diverse, and to have a higher proportion of older people and people 
with disabilities. Everyone will rightly expect to be treated fairly, and will demand 
services that are appropriate for their needs.  

 
2.3 The Council already collects a significant amount of data about the accessibility 

of our services and how our customers are using them. We also engage with 
service users and interested groups to discuss their needs and how well we meet 
them, and will continue to do so. This helps us to understand the areas where we 
are meeting people’s needs effectively so we can build on these, and identify 
where we need to do more to reduce inequality and promote better outcomes.  

 
2.4 We recognise that we can do more to use the data that we hold already more 

effectively to inform service planning and decision-making. We have also 
identified a number of areas where we hold very little data, or where the data we 
hold is out of date, and will seek to address this. This will be addressed in part 
through updating key evidence bases such as the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment, and through analysis of the outcomes of the Census 2011 when 
published later this year.  

 
2.5 We will also continue to monitor and analyse our performance in key service 

areas to understand how well we are addressing areas for improvement we have 
identified, such as narrowing the gap in educational attainment or in levels of 
satisfaction with adult social care between different groups. 
 

 
Priorities for Action - we will: 
 

1a) Investigate why levels of satisfaction with services that are generally high 
are variable between different groups, for example by running focus groups 
with adult social care service users. 
 

1b) Ensure that Oxfordshire Voice Citizens’ Panel, our resident’s panel, is 
broadly representative of the makeup of the county by increasing the 

Page 117



number of people who share some of the protected characteristics to 
ensure it is balanced to reflect age, gender, ethnicity and disability. 
 

1c) Implement our new Strategy for Education to improve 
educational outcomes for all young people. In particular, we will take 
action to close unacceptable gaps in attainment levels between children 
from different backgrounds and who share protected characteristics (for 
example looked after children, some black and minority ethnic groups, and 
some children with special educational needs).   
 

1d) Provide information and support to vulnerable adults so that more people 
who use services report that they feel safer each year.  

 
1e) Ask older people and people with a disability who we work with if we can 

pass on their details to other services and organisations, including the Fire 
and Rescue Service who will be able to undertake Fire Risk Assessments 
in their homes.  

 
 

Page 118



 

3.0   Objective 2 – Providing accessible, local and 
personalised services  
 
 

3.1 This objective, and those that follow, is focused on how the Council responds to 
the needs of the people and communities of Oxfordshire.  
 

3.2 Customer choice is at the heart of the county council’s approach. We want 
county council services to be flexible, local and developed around the diversity of 
individual needs. For example, we have created a new Early Intervention 
Service, specifically designed to reflect our understanding of the needs of our 
children and young people and  based around seven locality ‘hubs’ in those 
areas of the county where there is most need. 

 
3.3 We are developing a joint approach to commissioning adult, community and 

children’s services. This will ensure our approach focuses on local circumstances 
and is able to meet the needs of vulnerable people irrespective of whether they 
share protected characteristics or not, including those living in rural areas where 
isolation and access to services can be particular issues. 

 
3.4 The county council is also radically transforming the way it delivers adult social 

care services, increasing the number of people with personalised budgets that 
provide choice about how to spend money on their care. We also continue to 
implement strategies to improve educational attainment, to protect and safeguard 
the most vulnerable groups in the county, and support carers of all ages. 
 

3.5 We aim to ensure our physical assets (eg roads, buses, public buildings and 
reception areas) maintain high standards of accessibility for all residents, and 
leading on the roll out of superfast broadband in Oxfordshire to improve access 
to online services (especially in rural areas).  

 
3.6 Through the Oxfordshire Online project we have an emphasis on making more 

services available online, and making online services more accessible to all. 
However we also recognise that this is not suitable for everyone, and will 
continue to make our publications available in alternative formats and languages 
where requested, and to develop our customer services in response to feedback.  

 
Priorities for Action - we will: 

 
2a) Maintain our focus on preventing the need for more specialist services 

through early identification of problems and early intervention in adult and 
children’s services.  

 
2b) Analyse the number of children from minority ethnic backgrounds on child 

protection plans. The findings will be used to develop plans to address any 
over representation identified, and to learn from where the number of 

Page 119



young people from certain groups on child protection plans is lower than 
might be expected.  

 
2c) Map the dispersal of young carers around the County to see if there are 

any geographical clusters or patterns, with a view to understanding why 
this occurs and what action is needed to address issues that cause it. 

 
2d) Change the way day services for older people are provided, maintaining 

services in major towns, but focusing on community initiatives and local 
decision-making about how best to support older people in their 
community. 

 
2e) Focus on giving people choice in the way they lead their lives and how 

they secure the services they need to support them. We will increase each 
year the proportion of people who receive a direct payment which allows 
them to secure the services they need to support them. 

 
2f) Support older people, and people with a disability to live in their own home 

for longer by:  
 

o Providing more support to help older people increase their ability to 
cope so that more of them can return home and stay there after hospital 
discharge 
 

o Increasing the number of hours of long term support made available to 
clients  

 
o Devolving budgets to local area managers so that they are specifically 

able to address the needs of their locality 
 

o increasing the availability of extra care housing and assistive 
technology  

 
o continuing to provide information and support to carers.  

 
2g) Work with business network providers to develop and implement a strategy 

for the roll out of super-fast broadband across the county, to improve 
access to online services for all. 
 

2h) Enable all Adult Learning tutors to integrate equality and diversity into their 
teaching – content and classroom management – in order to ensure 
inclusivity for all learners  
 

2i) Continue to develop improved accessibility routes on the public rights of 
way network. 
 

2j) Provide training to Highways & Transport staff involved in policy and 
design to ensure they understand the constraints faced by customers with 
a disability using our services, and have regard to these constraints in 
service design and delivery. 

Page 120



   

4.0 Objective 3 - Supporting thriving and cohesive 
communities  

 
 

4.1 The county council has been working to get closer to the communities we serve, 
understand the challenges they face and make sure our services are working 
together as effectively as possible. Our Closer to Communities Strategy 
recognises the importance of the council showing community leadership, and 
ensures officers and councillors work together with partners and communities at 
a local level to share information and meet needs.  
 

4.2 The county council is also committed to empowering communities to do things 
for themselves, including identifying and/or responding when public sector may 
not be able to continue to provide a service. We believe that supporting 
communities to take on this challenge, as we have done with youth provision and 
other community activities through the Big Society Fund, will lead to better quality 
services that local residents feel that are truly theirs and reflect the needs of all 
those in their community. 
 

4.3 There is a significant military presence in Oxfordshire, which brings a number of 
specific challenges. Oxfordshire was the first local authority to pledge support to 
the Community Covenant in June 2011, and our Military Civilian Partnership has 
been working on a number of key themes to address areas such as school 
admissions and attainment for children from service families, health care and 
employment and skills for service leavers 
 

4.4 As part of the countywide work to improve community safety, the county council 
is committed to working with its partners and suppliers to protect individuals, in 
the community and on our premises, where they have been targeted because of 
their characteristics. We have worked with schools, advice centres and care 
homes to prevent bullying, harassment or abuse. We have also launched a hate-
crime reporting service to enable people to report incidents to a wide range of 
different local agencies other than the police and receive support from 
organisations with the appropriate expertise. 
 
Priorities for Action - we will: 
 

3a) Continue to work in partnership to improve the quality of life in the most 
deprived areas of the county. This will include promoting better engagement in 
education, employment and training; supporting the vulnerable and those with 
multiple and enduring problems; promoting healthy lifestyles and reducing 
health inequalities; reducing and mitigating the effects of child poverty.  
 

3b) Continue to provide a Big Society Fund that will support local communities and 
organisations who wish to identify local priorities and do things for themselves 
about issues that matter to them. We will also review expressions of interest, 

Page 121



applications and funding patterns from 2011/12 and work with community 
groups to raise awareness and encourage access to the Fund.  
 

3c) Continue to work closely with our military partners to maximise the value 
obtained from the pupil premium by focusing on specific needs of children 
from armed forces families, and ensure schools have appropriate information 
to support these children.   
 

3d) Continue to work closely with military partners to ensure we maximise the 
support we offer to carers of vulnerable people. We will ensure that we provide 
more information and support to carers around military bases and ensure that 
we support developments such as good neighbours’ schemes by military 
bases. 
 

3e) Raise awareness of the MANTRA (Multi-Agency Network for Tackling Racially 
Aggravated Harassment) service. We will also increase the number of 
agencies and venues people can use to report incidents of and concerns 
about hate crime, including in rural areas.  

 

Page 122



 

5.0   Objective 4 - Promoting a culture of fairness in 
employment and service delivery 
 
 

5.1 The County Council is committed to ensuring equality of access, fairness and 
consideration to all of our staff and potential future staff, and in the delivery of 
services to the people and communities of Oxfordshire.  
 

5.2 The council’s Dignity at Work policy states all employees will have due regard to 
the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, to promote equality of opportunity 
and to promote good relations between different groups., There are a range of 
learning and development opportunities to ensure staff are aware of this 
commitment and their responsibilities, including the ‘Respect for People’ 
electronic learning package that must be completed as part of induction for new 
employees.  
 

5.3 We review our policies and practices to ensure they are appropriate and are 
implemented effectively to enable individuals to work to the best of their abilities 
and protect them from discrimination and harassment. The council is working 
with union partners to develop staff forums to listen to how different groups of 
staff think practices can be improved. We also recognise there may be barriers to 
applying for jobs at the council that are beyond the control of the applicant, and 
have made changes to our recruitment policies to help ensure we get the best 
possible staff for any given role regardless of their circumstances. 

 
5.4 As well as the services we provide directly, our commitment to equality of 

opportunity extends to services delivered on our behalf through contracts and 
commissioning, and through services linked closely to the council such as 
schools and the Fire and Rescue Service. It also includes working with our 
partners to ensure the same high standards apply across those that we 
commission services from, whether they are public, private or voluntary sector 
organisations. 
 
 
Priorities for Action - we will: 
 

4a) Ensure all managers and Councillors are aware of their responsibilities under 
the Equality Act 2010, and encourage all employees to access learning and 
development opportunities to increase their awareness and understanding of 
equality and diversity issues. 
 

4b) Ensure equality and diversity is integrated into the culture of the Customer 
Service Centre by embedding it within the behaviour and attitudes of staff, as 
well as the routine policies, procedures and practices of the service. 
 

Page 123



4c) Undertake a full review of existing equality and diversity policies to ensure 
they remain in line with best practice and meet the requirements of the 
Equality Act 2010. 
 

4d) Continue to encourage people from diverse backgrounds to apply for roles at 
the council, and do more to increase awareness of the support available to 
staff and guidance for managers to ensure that reasonable adjustments are 
made where appropriate.  
 

4e) Investigate the reasons for the lower levels of young workers employed by the 
council, and continue to expand the number of apprenticeship opportunities to 
create entry level posts. 
 

4f) Identify opportunities to work with others to deliver services that improve 
outcomes for groups with protected characteristics more effectively and 
develop innovative approaches to common issues, whether through formal 
partnership arrangements or more informal collaborative arrangements. 
 

4g) Ensure that where services are being restructured there is a well-managed 
approach to diversity, including completion of Service and Community Impact 
Assessments to ensure that under-represented groups are not 
disproportionately affected in the resulting staff reductions. Statistics for 
redundancy will also need to be closely monitored. 

 

Page 124



 

6.0   Service and Community Impact Assessments 
 
 

6.1 The Equality Act 2010 requires all public authorities to assess the impact of their 
policies on communities. In this context, 'policies' is a general term that could 
include strategies, projects or contracts. The assessment has five parts: gather 
information, engagement, analysis, objective setting and review. 

 
6.2 In Oxfordshire County Council, this process is termed Service and Community 

Impact Assessments (SCIA). A SCIA is intended to ensure policies meet the 
diverse needs of our customers. We assess the impact of decisions on any 
relevant community, but with particular emphasis on groups that share protected 
characteristics.  

 
6.3 All policies undergo an initial assessment that is proportionate to the significance 

of the change and the potential impact. Assessments are available to Councillors 
when making a decision on whether to agree a new policy or not. Any significant 
decisions have a full assessment, demonstrating the data and research that has 
been used, feedback from consultations with affected groups and an action plan 
to mitigate any impacts. Partners, staff or stakeholders are involved to check the 
assumptions match the experience on-the-ground.  

 
6.4 Each year, an initial assessment is produced on the potential impact of the cross-

cutting issues in the overall Council budget. This year, it also covers the Medium 
Term Corporate Plan and the capital programme, to ensure there is a consistent 
and considered assessment of the potential impacts across the whole of the 
Council’s service and resource planning process. 

 
6.5 Once a decision is made the assessments are updated and then reviewed on a 

regular basis over the implementation of the project or policy or contract to 
ensure that the initial assessments were accurate, and that the impact of any 
changes in approach and learning from implementation are included. 

 
6.6 Completed Service and Community Impact Assessments are published on the 

public website at: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/public-site/equality-and-cohesion   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



 

7.0   Monitoring and Governance 
 
 
7.1 To help ensure that our work on equalities and diversity is embedded within 

service planning delivery, responsibility will rest with Directorate Leadership 
Teams. Issues will then be escalated and reported as appropriate to the County 
Council Management Team and Cabinet, as part of the Council’s quarterly 
performance monitoring and risk management arrangements. This document 
and the supporting information will be updated annually to reflect performance, 
and progress in implementing the actions we have identified will be reported to 
the relevant Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet and the Council. 

 
7.2 We will also continue to engage with a wide range of stakeholders from within 

and outside the Council to help us assess how successfully we are meeting the 
needs of the people and communities of Oxfordshire. We will continue to publish 
information about our performance, the outcomes of Service and Community 
Impact Assessments, new policies and proposals for changes in service delivery 
on our website. We will continue to seek feedback and comment on our plans 
and our performance, and consult both formally and informally with key 
stakeholders to inform our service planning and inform our decision-making.  

 

8.0    More information 
 
 

More information about our work can be found in the following documents and 
links: 

 
• The Council Plan (www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/corporateplan)  

 
• Directorate business strategies 

(www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/businessstrategies) 
 
• The Council website 

(http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/equality-and-cohesion)  
 

• Children and Young People’s Plan 
(http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/children-and-young-peoples-
plan-2010-2013)  
 

• Walk the Talk? (http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/fire-service-
recruitment-information-women-and-ethnic-minorities)  
 

• Equality Duty in Employment Report, 2011 
(http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/fairness-and-equality-work)  

Page 126



 
Alternative formats of this publication can be made available. These 
include other languages, large print, Braille, Easy Read, 
audiocassette, computer disc or email. Please telephone  
01865 32 8219. 
 

 

Page 127



Annex 2: Summary of Consultation with Stakeholders 
 
1. This Annex sets out the key messages from consultation about the Draft 

Equality Policy 2012-17, which took place between 19 January and 2 March 
2012 (a period of 6 weeks).  
 
Written consultation  

2. Details of the written consultation including the draft policy document, 
supporting information and links to an online survey were placed on the 
council’s intranet site and public website and promoted using home page 
features and headlines.   
 

3. A wide range of stakeholders were informed about the consultation and invited 
to comment, including: 

• county council staff 

• county councillors 

• schools and universities 

• district, town and parish councils 

• public sector organisations such as Thames Valley Police, Primary Care 
Trust 

• military 

• voluntary, community and faith sector organisations and charities, including 
those representing people who share protected characteristics as set out in 
the Equality Act 2010.   

4. In total, we received 10 responses to the online survey and two email 
responses.  A copy of the consultation documents and a marked-up 
questionnaire are available on the council’s consultation calendar at 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/consultation. A copy of the marked-up questionnaire 
giving the detailed comments will be placed in the councillors resource room. 
 
 
Stakeholder workshop 

5. A stakeholder workshop took place on the morning of 17 February 2012, 
offering an opportunity to discuss the draft policy and comment in more detail 
as part of the consultation.   A wide range of public, voluntary, community and 
faith sector organisations and charities were invited, along with some existing 
service users and in total 21 people attending the event. 

 
6. The workshop was chaired by Peter Clark, Head of Law & Governance and 

included: 

• A presentation to provide a high level overview of the Equality Act and the 
council’s approach to equalities 

• An open discussion on the aim and ambition presented in the Draft 
Equality Policy 2012-17 and on the four key issues it identified 

Page 128



• Round-table discussions focussing in detail on the priorities for action 
allocated to each of the four key issues.  Each table was allocated two 
issues to explore in detail 

• A feedback session to share key messages from the round table 
discussions 

 
7. A copy of the workshop agenda, the presentation given and the flip chart 

notes are available on the council’s consultation calendar at 
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/consultation. A copy of the detailed notes will be 
placed in the councillor’s resource room. 

 
Outcomes – High Level Feedback 

 
8. Overall, the outcomes of the consultation indicate there was broad support for 

the council’s overall ambition for and approach to equalities.  There we some 
objections expressed and the feedback also provided helpful suggestions for 
how the key issues might be delivered, including how the council might 
engage with and support communities. 
 
Overall Themes 

• Use of language in the policy document such as use of specific terms 
e.g. customers and the need for clearer definitions e.g. how does the 
council define the term ‘fairness’?  

• The need for more greater clarification including using examples, to 
help illustrate what is meant under each key issue  

• More consideration of governance and accountability especially 
external to the council including measurement, oversight, audit and 
challenge  

• Further explanation on the council’s approach to mainstreaming 
equalities, including how the council’s approach to policy implementation 
and how outreach, engagement, advocacy and service delivery will be 
balanced 

• Manage expectations of what can and cannot be achieved in current 
economic climate and associated constraints 

 
9. The feedback also provided helpful, practical suggestions for how the key 

issues might be delivered including: 
• learning from others 
• working in partnership 
• making use of existing data tools 
• signposting 
• investing in training  
• promoting funds options e.g. Big Society Fund 
• raising awareness of existing services 
• how the council might engage with and support communities and use a 

development approaches 

Page 129



Annex 4: Service and Community Impact Assessment 
 
 
 
 
Directorate Name: Chief Executive’s Office   

 

Equality Policy 2012-2017 

 
Service and Community Impact Assessment 

 
Lead Officer: Peter Clark  

 
Purpose of the assessment 
 
This is an initial assessment of the potential impact of the new Equality Policy 2012-
2017, with particular reference to groups of people who share protected 
characteristics. This assessment will be kept under review as the policy and actions it 
contains are implemented, and updated as necessary to ensure emerging risks are 
identified and appropriate mitigating action taken. Separate assessments will be 
undertaken on specific actions as appropriate, for example where they in themselves 
constitute a significant change in policy in their own right.  

 

Summary 
 
The Equality Policy 2012-2017 sets out how the Council is approaching its 
responsibilities for ensuring that all residents in Oxfordshire have fair access to 
services and equal life chances.  It also demonstrates how the Council is meeting the 
requirements placed on public bodies under the Equality Act 2010, including setting 
equality objectives for the next four years. 

 

A draft of the policy has been out for public consultation since January, and the final 
policy has been amended to reflect feedback from internal and external stakeholders. 
To fulfil our legislative requirements, the final policy will be published by 6th April 
2012, and progress in implementing it will be monitored and reported as part of the 
council's overall performance management arrangements. 

 

The policy establishes the intention to build on current practice and address areas 
that are identified as requiring improvement, with appropriate actions identified and 
plans to monitor their implementation.  

 

Although the policy is intended to have a positive impact on outcomes for all 
individuals and groups who share protected characteristics, potential negative 
impacts are identified on customers, staff and providers. However these are 
mitigated by a range of actions, including the completion of service and community 

Page 130



impact assessments for individual actions and policies, training and briefing for staff, 
responsibility for equalities resting with Deputy Directors and Directorate Leadership 
teams, and standard contract procurement and monitoring practices. 

 
Introduction 
 

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 (“the 2010 Act”) imposes a duty on the 
Council to give due regard to three needs in exercising its functions. This proposal is 
such a function. The three needs are: 
 

• the need to eliminate any conduct which is prohibited by or under the 2010 
Act; 

• the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
• share any of the protected characteristics listed in section 149(7); and the 

need to foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
Complying with section 149 may involve treating some people more favourably than 
others, but only to the extent that that does not amount to conduct which is otherwise 
unlawful under the new Act. 
 
The need to advance equality of opportunity involves having due regard to the need 
to: 

• remove or minimise disadvantages which are connected to a relevant 
protected characteristic and which are suffered by persons who share that 
characteristic, 

• take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and which are different from the needs other people, and 
encourage those who share a relevant characteristic to take part in public life 
or in any other activity in which participation by such people is 
disproportionately low. 

• Steps to meet the needs of disabled people which are different from the needs 
of people who are not disabled include steps to take account of a person’s 
disabilities. 

 
The need to foster good relations between different groups involves having due 
regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding. 
 
These protected characteristics are: 

• Age (people of different age groups) 
• Disability (e.g. physical or sensory impairments, long-term illnesses and 

conditions, hidden impairments such as a heart condition, frailty, learning 
disabilities or mental health problems) 

• Gender Reassignment 
• Marriage/civil partnerships (but only in respect of eliminating unlawful 

discrimination) 
• Pregnancy & Maternity 
• Race (including ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality) 

Page 131



• Religion or belief (including lack of belief) 
• Sex 
• Sexual orientation 

 

In addition to the characteristics above, the Council has also considered the effect of 
the proposals on particular communities (e.g. urban, rural, deprived). 

 
Consultation with Stakeholders 

 
Public consultation on a draft of the Equality Policy 2012-2017 took place between 19 
January and 2 March 2012 (a period of 6 weeks).  

 
Details of the written consultation including the draft policy document, supporting 
information and links to an online survey were placed on the council’s intranet site 
and public website and promoted using home page features and headlines. 
 
Key stakeholders were also contacted directly and invited to comment, including all 
staff and Councillors; district, town and parish councils; other public sector 
organisations including Thames Valley Police, the Primary Care Trust, schools, 
universities and the military; voluntary, community and faith sector organisations and 
charities, including those representing people who share protected characteristics as 
set out in the Equality Act 2010.   

 
A stakeholder workshop took place on 17 February 2012, offering an opportunity to 
discuss the draft policy and comment in more detail as part of the consultation. A 
wide range of public, voluntary, community and faith sector organisations and 
charities were invited, along with some existing service users.  

 
In total 21 people attended the stakeholder workshop and 10 responses were 
received to the online consultation, with a further 2 responses sent by email. 

 
Overall, the outcomes of the consultation indicate there was broad support for the 
council’s overall ambition for and approach to equalities.  There we some objections 
expressed about the use of language; the need for clarification and examples of 
current performance; more consideration of governance and accountability; further 
explanation of the council’s approach to mainstreaming; and the need to manage 
expectations. The feedback also provided helpful suggestions for how the key issues 
might be delivered, including how the council might engage with and support 
communities. 
 
The policy has been updated and amended to reflect the outcomes of the 
consultation. In particular, more detail has been added under each objective to 
provide more explanation of what each means and why it is considered to be 
important. This includes more examples of what the council is already doing, 
providing a stronger link to the supporting information about our current performance 
that has already been published on the council website to demonstrate our 
compliance with the public sector equality duty (see   
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/public-site/equality-and-cohesion) 

Page 132



 
The four key equality objectives have also been amended slightly from the key issues 
published as part of the consultation document, to reflect feedback during the 
consultation period 

 
Impact on customers 
 

By definition, the Equality Policy 2012-2017 is intended to have a positive impact on 
outcomes for people who share protected characteristics, and in many cases for the 
wider communities of Oxfordshire as well. The policy and supporting information 
specifically identifies the need to fulfil the three key aims of the Equality Act 2010 and  
the public sector equality duties, and identifies issues related to age, disability, 
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, 
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. It also identifies issues related to 
deprivation and rurality, and in all cases sets appropriate action where needed to 
improve outcomes for specific groups.  

 

As such, there is unlikely to be any negative impact on particular groups as a direct 
result of the policy itself. However the implementation of specific actions will need to 
be closely monitored to ensure that, in positively impacting circumstances for one or 
more groups, there are not unintended negative impacts on others. 

Risk Mitigation 

The key equality objectives 
and priorities for action are 
not implemented, or do not 
have the desired positive 
impact 

Progress in implementing the objectives and actions 
will be monitored reviewed as part of the council’s 
overall performance and risk management 
arrangements, and amended as appropriate / 
required 

 

Service users, individuals and communities who 
share protected characteristics, and representative 
organisations will be engaged in the development and 
implementation of actions as appropriate  

Implementing actions to 
have a positive impact on 
one or more groups who 
share protected 
characteristics has an 
unintended negative 
consequence on others 

Progress in implementing the objectives and actions 
will be monitored reviewed as part of the council’s 
overall performance and risk management 
arrangements, and amended as appropriate / 
required 

 

All actions that represent a significant change in 
policy or are likely to impact on one or more groups of 
customers will undergo a Service and Community 
Impact Assessment, with appropriate mitigating 
actions identified and implemented 

Page 133



 
Impact on staff 
 

The Equality Act 2010 requires all decision-makers to be aware of their 
responsibilities in relation to the aims of the Act, and all staff (and elected members) 
will need to be aware of the key equality objectives and actions identified with the 
Equality Policy 2012-2017. Staff will also be required to consider the potential impact 
of their own actions and decisions on people who share protected characteristics 
during the course of their ‘everyday work’, in keeping with the Council’s approach to 
‘mainstreaming’ equality and diversity work.  

 

Risk Mitigation 

Staff are not aware of the 
new policy, or their 
responsibilities under the 
Equality Act 2010 

A communications plan has been developed to help 
implement the new strategy, utilising a range of 
methods to raise awareness including intranet, CCMT 
core brief cascade and targeted briefing and training 
sessions 

Mainstreaming equalities 
makes it ‘no-one’s business’ 
rather than ‘everyone’s 
business’ 

Responsibility for the implementation of the Equalities 
Policy and ensuring high standards of equality and 
diversity practice rests with Deputy Directors and 
Directorate Leadership Teams.  

Key equality objectives are closely aligned to 
corporate objectives, and priorities for action 
embedded within existing plans and strategies 
(including directorate business strategies. 

Issues will be identified and escalated as appropriate 
as part of the council’s overall performance and risk 
management process. 

Staff do not feel confident 
considering or dealing with 
equality and diversity issues 

A range of training and briefing opportunities will be 
delivered, including targeted sessions for specific 
services or areas / topics of concern 

 
Impact on providers 
 

Public bodies are responsible for ensuring that any third parties which exercise 
functions on their behalf are capable of complying with the Equality Duty, are 
required to comply with it, and that they do so in practice. It is a duty that cannot be 
delegated. It is therefore important that all individuals and organisations providing 
services on behalf of the council are aware of their responsibilities under the Equality 
Act, equality duty, and the new Equality Policy. 

 

Page 134



Risk Mitigation 

Any provider will be 
expected to uphold the 
same high standards of 
equality and diversity as the 
Council in furthering the 
aims of the Equality Act 
2010 and specific public 
sector equality duty 

There is a requirement that all organisations in receipt 
of council funding will adopt appropriate equalities 
policies, and ensure all staff are aware of their 
responsibilities in achieving the aims of the public 
sector equality duty. This requirement is made clear 
within procurement guidance and toolkits that are 
available to all staff, and is written into funding 
agreements and contracts awarded including 
monitoring arrangements. In the event of non-
compliance appropriate action can be taken. 

 
 
Impact on other council services 
 

The Equality Policy 2012-2017 will apply to all council services, and in many cases 
will require changes in practice as a result of implanting actions identified within the 
policy and/or the review of other policies in line with the Equality Act 2010 and public 
sector equality duty.  

However no risks specific to other council services have been identified, beyond 
those already considered above.  

 

 

 
 

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Oxfordshire County Council Corporate Plan 2012/13 - 2016/17
	Corporate Plan

	7 Director of Public Health Annual Report
	8 Pay Policy
	annex

	9 Local Authority Standards
	10 Equalities Policy and Objectives - Equality Policy 2012-2017
	Annexes and Policy


